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Instructions to Shareholders : Most Urgent and Immediate

The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) and Financial Institutions Laws (Amendment) Act,
2006, which has come into force on 16 10 2006 has inserted a new section 10(B) in the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 which provides as under :

m  Within 7 days from the expiry of 30 days from the date of declaration, if any shareholder has not encashed/claimed
the dividend, such amounts lying in the bank Dividend current account, shall be transferred to a separate account
styled “Unpaid Dividend Account of IOB for the year ?

m  Any money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend account which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven
years from the date of such transfer, shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)established
under section 205(1) (C) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Hence the Shareholders who have not received/encashed the dividend for financial years 2000-01, 2001-02, 2002-03
Interim/Final Dividend 2003-04, Interim / Final Dividend 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and for the year 2008-09
are requested to send their claim along with details of Folio No.(s) to Investor Relations Cell, Indian Overseas Bank,
Central Office, 763 Anna Salai, Chennai 600 002.

Shareholders are also requested to send their claims, if any, in case of non receipt of refund orders in respect of our
Public Issue 2000 and Follow on Public Issue 2003 along with Application Number to Investor Relations Cell, Indian
Overseas Bank, Central Office,763, Anna Salai, Chennai-600 002.

The shareholders, who are holding shares in electronic form have to approach only the DP concerned and
not the Registrar for any change in the mandated particulars like change of address, Bank Account, etc.,
Please note that the Registrar would send the dividend warrant (or credit to the mandated account in the case of
shareholders who have opted for ECS credit) based on the particulars furnished by DP to the Registrar as on
28.05.2010.

Consolidation of Folios : It has been found that many shareholders maintain more than one folio (ie.) multiple folios.
In order to provide efficient service to shareholders, we request the shareholders to consolidate the folios by forwarding
their share certificates to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for necessary corrections in their records.
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

#ft T, T "

3e7eT F el ey A 9Teh

Shri S.A. BHAT
Chairman & Managing Director

[PERIEICItCcan

a 2009-10 & foTT 31 1 Ft anfifes fure o1 fawfta
feramoT e X @1 &1 o o A9 9% & o Feeyul
Tl 3 fsuTees gl W T § YHer e agmi
a 2008-09 & A TR sreferawen ¥ g% 6.7% s
F o § & 2009-10 % 0 7.2% - 7.5% i 35
g7 13 10, 2009 T e fafm smfafrar 9
ug & 279 fafers= @, s f 7 adf 3wt erafy & forw
20 Juaet fafee it Feft @t g § 11 Juaet fafae=
F Tt 8 | e /T F IR F AR A F gUR
g3 2, IR 2009 § fafd # agiad g @ <t awd
AT F St B I @ 3 ot e e s #
st g2 S 2009-10 &t 3HY fom 7 E g3 | A
2009-10 % 3 et TR afvas fEE & Fed
AT GO o 919 o) @1 | ot w9 g 9959
1.04.2009 % 9902 Ft Terl & 31.03.2010 1 17528
@IS s & < 77.01% i 9l ¢ |

weftereft e & SO o & FEfTRT B e
fafyreand @ 2 :
» 3] g 2010 T A9 A H A(¥aH BT

%.1,91,577 ®UE T wgd 71 S 1 e av &
%.1,75,925 FU H qa § 8.90 % e 7 |

Dear Shareholders,

| present your Bank’s Annual Report and financial
statements for the year 2009-10. | would like to
briefly highlight some key issues and performance
indicators of the Bank during the year.

The Indian economy is estimated to have
recorded a growth in the range of 7.2%-7.5%
during the year 2009-10 as against 6.7% recorded
during 2008-09. As on April 10, 2009, Foreign
Exchange Reserves stood at USD 279 billion
showing an increase of USD 11 billion as against
a decline of USD 20 billion during the
corresponding period a year ago. Imports have
improved evidencing recovery in domestic
demand, exports have turned around since
October 2009 reflecting revival of external demand
and on the whole, economic recovery which
began in the second quarter of 2009-10 is gaining
momentum. During 2009-10, equity markets
generally remained firm with intermittent
corrections in line with the global movement. The
BSE Sensex improved by 77.01% during the year
from 9902 on 1.04.2009 to 17528 on 31.03.2010.

The performance of the Bank during the year
under review :

» Your Bank’s global business reached Rs
1,91,577 crore as at 315 March 2010 resulting
in an increase of 8.90% over last year’s figure
ie. Rs. 1,75,925 crore
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Deposits of the Bank registered a year-on-
year (y-o-y) growth of Rs. 10679 crore
(10.67%) during the year 2009-10 and
increased from Rs. 1,00,116 crore for the
year 2008-09 to Rs. 1,10,795 crore.

Gross Advances registered a y-o-y growth
of Rs.4972 crore (6.56%) and stood at
Rs.80,782 crore for the year 2009-10, as
against Rs.75,810 crore for the year 2008-09.

Operating Profit for the Bank was Rs. 1,845
crore as on 31.03.2010 as against Rs. 2,524
crore as on 31.03.2009.

Net Profit stood at Rs 707 crore at the end
of the year as against Rs. 1,326 crore for
the previous year.

Net investments of the Bank increased to
Rs. 37,651 crore from Rs. 31,215 crore in
2008-09.

The percentage of priority sector advances
to Adjusted Net Bank Credit was at 40.59%
as against RBI norms of 40%.

The agricultural credit portfolio of the Bank
registered a growth of Rs. 1,780 crore from
Rs. 10,817 crore to Rs. 12,597 crore in the
year under review. The Bank’s ratio of
agricultural advances to Adjusted Net Bank
Credit at 18.77% exceeded the 18% norm.
The Bank took a number of initiatives to
increase the flow of credit to this sector.

The total exposure of the Bank as on March
31, 2010 to SME sector stood at Rs. 11,660
crore. The Bank has executed MOUs with
the private sector for financing of auto
rickshaws, commercial three wheelers, trucks
and commercial transport vehicles.

The CD Ratio registered a level of 72.91%
as at the end of the reporting period.

The Bank’s Net Profit as a percentage of
Average Networth as of 31.03.2010 stood at
11.97%.

Total Net Interest Income improved to Rs.
3,168 crore when compared to Rs. 2,870
crore last year, registering a growth of
10.39%.
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=» Net Interest Margin stood at 2.74% for the
year.

=» The Bank’s total income stood at Rs. 11,389
crore as against Rs. 11,237 crore for the
previous year.

» While the business per employee has
improved from Rs 6.89 crore to Rs. 7.12
crore, the profit per employee stood at Rs
2.63 Lacs as against Rs 5.20 Lacs for the
previous year.

=» Gross NPA stood at Rs. 3,611 crore in March
2010. In percentage terms, the Gross NPA
ratio was 4.47% as at 31.03.2010 as against
2.54% as at 31.03.2009. Net NPA ratio stood
at 2.52% for the year under review as against
1.33% as at 31.03.2009.

=» A dividend of 35% has been recommended
by the Board of Directors for the year 2009-10.

Your Bank’s Operating Profit fell by 26.91% to
Rs. 1845 crore and Net Profit fell by 46.68% to
Rs. 707 crore for the year ended 31.03.2010 due
to fall in other income including treasury income,
lower growth in advances and higher provisioning
for bad debts and for wage revision. The downturn
in the global economy that was witnessed in 2009
has impacted the repayment capacity of our
borrowers and bad debts were added mainly in
the infrastructure, priority sector, trade finance
and real estate sectors. Increase in NPAs also
results in non reckoning of interest on NPA
accounts, adversely affecting interest income.

Your Bank has increased its provisioning for bad
debts to 54% from 48% and expects to reach
the 70% provisioning norm by September 2010
or later as mandated by Reserve Bank of India.

As a Bank with international presence, we have
already moved to the revised New Capital
Adequacy Framework (BASEL Il) from 31t March
2008 in line with RBI guidelines. CRAR as per
BASEL-l framework as on 31.3.2010 works out
to 14.78% which is above the requirement of 9%
prescribed by RBI.

In the area of para-banking, focus was directed
on marketing of insurance products, sale of gold
coins and IT enabled products. Periodic
campaigns were conducted at our branches to
improve our fee based income. The fee based
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income which was Rs.15.27 crores as on 31/3/
2009 has gone up to Rs.23.47crores as on 31/
3/2010. The Bank continues with its Corporate
Agency arrangement entered into, with effect from
20.12.2008, with Universal Sompo General
Insurance Company Limited (the Non-Life
Insurance Joint Venture Company of your Bank
with Allahabad Bank, Karnataka Bank, Dabur
Investment Corporation and Sompo Japan
Insurance Inc.) for distribution of non-life insurance
products.

As regards our overseas operations, we have six
full-fledged overseas branches — two in Hong
Kong and one each in Singapore, South Korea,
Sri Lanka and Thailand. Remittance Centres
function in Boon Lay and Serangoon, Singapore
while an Extension Counter is located in Sri Lanka.

The Bank’s Representative Offices are located in
Guangzhou, China and Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam and Al Karama, Dubai.
During the year, the Bank has opened
Representative Office at Dubai and the office has
become fully operational since February 2010.

The Bank has signed a joint venture agreement
with Bank of Baroda and Andhra Bank to open
a Banking subsidiary in Malaysia. The subsidiary
has applied for license from Bank Negara, the
Central Bank of Malaysia.

Promotion of good industrial relations continues
to be an objective of our Bank.

During the year under review, globally, recovery
in the advanced economies from the
unprecedented economic crisis is slow. In this
background Emerging Market Economies
(EMEs)(of which India is one), although facing
inflationary pressures, are showing significant signs
of recovery. In the domestic front, the economic
recovery, which shows evidence of sustained
improvement, stands testimony to the resilience
of the Indian economy and its financial sector.
RBI’s intervention and regulation was largely
responsible for mitigating the adverse impact of
the global crisis in India. India’s growth curve is
in sharp contrast to the overall global scenario.
However on a note of caution, it is imperative
to note that while recovery in India is largely
expected to be driven by domestic demand, the
forces of globalization could ensure that negative
developments in the global environment would
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impact the Indian economy. Further, inflation has
accentuated in the last quarter of 2009-10 with
the Whole Sale Price Index accelerating from
0.5% in September 2009 to 9.9% in March 2010,
resulting in RBI’'s policy focus shifting to the
containing of inflation.

Looking forward, your Bank faces exciting
business opportunities in future. Our inherent
strengths are our potential, our wide network of
branches and our long term vision. These will
enable us to capitalize on the opportunities and
face the challenges in the Industry so as to
consolidate our market position and deliver our
commitment to generate value and returns for
our customers, shareholders and employees.

As always, your Bank relies on the continuing
trust and support of our shareholders and we
take this opportunity to thank the shareholders
for their commitment to the Bank’s vision over
the years.

Yours sincerely,

)=

S A BHAT

Chairman and Managing Director
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the TENTH Annual
General Meeting of the shareholders of INDIAN
OVERSEAS BANK will be held on Tuesday, the 20"
July 2010 at 10.00 A.M. at Narada Gana Sabha,
(Sathguru Gnananda Hall) 314 TTK Road, Chennai
600 018, to transact the following business :

1. To discuss, approve and adopt the Audited
Balance Sheet of the Bank as at 31st March
2010, Profit and Loss Account of the Bank
for the year ended 31t March 2010, the
report of the Board of Directors on the
working and activities of the Bank for the
period covered by the accounts and the
Auditors’ report on the Balance Sheet and
Accounts.

2. To declare dividend for the financial year
2009-10.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

-
(S A BHAT)
Chairman and Managing Director

NOTES

1.  APPOINTMENT OF PROXY :

A SHAREHOLDER ELIGIBLE TO ATTEND AND VOTE,
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND
SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER
OF THE BANK.

The instrument appointing proxy should,
however be deposited at the Central Office
of the Bank (Indian Overseas Bank, Investor
Relations Cell, Accounts Department, Central
Office, 763, Anna Salai, Chennai 600002) not
less than four days before the date fixed for
the meeting i.e. on or before 5.00 p.m. on
Thursday, 15" July 2010.

2. APPOINTMENT OF AN AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE :

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote
at any meeting of the shareholders of Indian
Overseas Bank as the duly authorized
representative of a company unless a copy
of the resolution appointing him as a duly
authorized representative, certified to be a
true copy by the chairman of the meeting
at which it was passed, has been deposited
at the Central Office of the Bank (Indian

Chennai
29.05.2010
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Overseas Bank, Investor Relations Cell,
Accounts Department, Central Office, 763,
Anna Salai, Chennai 600002) not less than
four days before the date fixed for the
meeting i.e., on or before 5.00 pm on
Thursday, 15" July 2010.

No officer or employee of the Bank shall
be appointed as Authorised Representative
or proxy of a shareholder.

ATTENDANCE SLIP-CUM-ENTRY PASS :

For the convenience of the shareholders,
attendance slip-cum-entry pass is annexed
to this notice. Shareholders/proxy holders/
representatives are requested to affix their
signature at the space provided therein and
surrender the same at the venue. Proxy
holders / representatives should state on the
attendance slip-cum-entry pass as “proxy or
representative” as the case may be and
should have proof of their identity by getting
their signature attested by the shareholder.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS :

The Register of Shareholders and Share
Transfer Books of the Bank will remain closed
from 29.05.2010 (Saturday) to 4.6.2010
(Friday) (both days inclusive) with cut off date
as 28.05.2010 for determining eligibility of
shareholders for the purpose of dividend.
Dividend shall be mailed within one month
from the date of Annual General Meeting.

BANK MANDATE FOR DIVIDEND OR
ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE (ECS) :

a) In order to get protection from fraudulent
encashment of warrants, shareholders are
requested to furnish their bank account
number, the name of the bank and the
branch where they would like to deposit
the dividend warrants for encashment.
These particulars along with the name
of the shareholder will be printed on the
cheque portion of the dividend warrants,
so that these warrants cannot be
encashed by anyone else. The above
mentioned details should be furnished by
the first / sole shareholder in case of
shareholders holding shares in physical
form, directly to the share transfer agent
quoting the Folio No. and the number
of shares held on or before 05.07.2010.
If shareholders choose not to submit any
modification, the warrants will be printed
based on bank mandate earlier received
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by the Registrar or data downloaded from
NSDL / CDSL as on 28.05.2010 for
demat shareholders. This is applicable
for all shareholders who have not
submitted ECS mandate(s).

b) The Bank is also offering the facility of
ECS Direct Credit for those shareholders
who maintain accounts with IOB branches
residing in specified cities. This facility
could be used by the shareholder instead
of the Bank Mandate system for receiving
the credit of dividend. The ECS Option
Form is annexed to this report.
Shareholders are required to give details
of their Account numbers (15 digit) and
IFS Code No. of their bank branch in
their ECS Mandate to facilitate the
transfer of dividend to their designated
account. For selected Centres, payment
through NEFT/NECS will be effected
wherever such facility is available.

7. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND, IF ANY

The shareholders who have not encashed
their Dividend Warrants / received dividend
from previous years viz. 2000-2001 onwards

7. S i, A are requested to contact the Registrar and
Rt aot S 2000-2001 F R SeRERET 3 3 Share 'I_'ransfer Agent of the Bank for issue
SR e ’ ot i o 3 of duplicate.
AT UL T/ AT TR G , .
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srffem, 1970 #t R 10 & g H9ite & 3FER ?r:‘ saven .ﬁegr_s_;rorz ;he datt—: of tran_sfe(; :o
o . ' : e Unpaid Dividend Account is required to
;”;2 ar & m: i ¥ Q;qaﬁ aﬁ be transferred to the Investor Education and
3y & RAIGIEEC T 7 37 CITHIRT Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the
H G S AT 1956 it arg 205 Gt & i Central Govt. under Section 205C of The
TR Tonfie FIavTE - Companies Act, 1956 and thereafter no
w3 e fRUEfT Tl heegmn e claim for payment shall lie in respect
(31 € ft wh) § orafid el 8 ud g waof F thereof either to the Bank or to the IEPF.
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T 1 (W& 98 HTHI SR oI - SFae elria) (Pt. 9e - General Shareholder information -
T8 2009-10 % AT HMORE T W ([2TH Hed Unpaid Dividend), forming part of this Annual
F R a1 g Report.
‘ . ) . 8. CHANGE OF ADDRESS AND DIVIDEND
8. wd H uRadd S amwrer st MANDATE :
5 SIERERE 3 TR s w9 § 8, 3 e § In case of shareholders holding shares in
. ’ physical form, they are requested to intimate
3T Y b W € A o v ulted, to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of
[ ‘
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the Bank any change in their address,
dividend mandate and the particulars of the
bank, branch and bank account number
which the shareholder desires to incorporate
on the dividend warrant, on or before
05.07.2010 at the following address:

Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(I0OB - unit)
1t floor, Subramanian Building,

No. 1, Club House Road, Chennai 600 002

10.

11.

Chennai
29.05.2010

In case of shareholders holding shares in
Electronic form ie. through Demat account,
they are requested to intimate to their
depository participant any change in their
address, dividend mandate and the
particulars of the bank, branch and bank
account number which the shareholder
desires to incorporate on the dividend
warrant etc., as the aforesaid information
provided by the Depository as on 28.05.2010
would only be considered for the purpose
of payment and distribution of dividend.

CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOS :

It has been found that many shareholders
maintain more than one folio (ie.) multiple
folios. In order to provide efficient service,
we request the shareholders to consolidate
the folios by forwarding their share certificates
to Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for
necessary corrections in their records.

BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS :

As required under the revised Clause 49 IV
G of the Listing Agreement executed with
the Stock Exchanges, brief profile of Directors
are given in the Report on Corporate
Governance.

REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS :

(@ Shareholders are requested to bring their
copies of the Annual Report enclosed
herewith.

(b) Shareholders may kindly note that no
gifts / coupons will be distributed at the
venue of the meeting.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
e
(S A BHAT)
Chairman and Managing Director
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TS TS § AT A GLANCE

%. sl 4 Rs.in crore

e atfies SHET-aRE
Global Deposits

2t smr-afdrEt

Domestic Deposits

e At Gohel AUH

Global Gross Advances

23ftT gohet g
Domestic Gross Advances

grerfiehar &7 STuH
Priority Sector Advances

P IUR

Agricultural Credit

Tohe 9
Gross Profit

IECGRSIE
Net Profit

A= 2010 A= 2009
March 2010 March 2009

1,10,795 1,00,116
1,05,434 95,434
80,782 75,810
73,026 68,479
27,237 24,294
12,597 10,817
1,845 2,524
707 1,326
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2009-10

The Board of Directors have great pleasure in
presenting the Annual Report together with audited
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of the
Bank for the year ended March 31, 2010.

During 2009-10, the Bank’s performance is to be
viewed in the backdrop of economic slow down. The
Bank has grown in a balanced manner and crossed
the business level of Rs.1,90,000 crore mark. The
Bank has focused its attention in consciously
shedding high cost deposits, cautious credit
expansion and NPA Recovery during the year.

Global Business Performance

The Bank’s global deposits went up from
Rs. 1,00,116 crore in 2008-09 to Rs.1,10,795 crore
in 2009-10 by 10.67 %. Global gross advances
expanded from Rs. 75,810 crore to Rs. 80,782 crore
at 6.56 %. Total business reached Rs. 1,91,577 crore
(growth at 8.90 %).

Overseas Branches

During the year the Bank has opened Representative
Office at Dubai and the Office has become fully
operational from February 2010. The Bank signed
the joint venture with Bank of Baroda and Andhra
Bank to open a Banking subsidiary in Malaysia. The
subsidiary has applied for license from Bank Negara,
the central bank of Malaysia.

As at the end of March 2010, the Bank had 13
establishments abroad, comprising 6 full-fledged
branches (two branches in Hongkong and one each
at Singapore, South Korea, Sri Lanka and Bangkok)
4 Representative offices (Guangzhou-China, Kuala
Lumpur-Malaysia, Ho Chi Minh City-Vietnam and Al
karama-Dubai), 2 Remittance Centres (Boonlay and
Serangoon, Singapore) and 1 Extension counter in
Sri Lanka.

Financial Performance

Global operating profit of the Bank was at
Rs.1,845 crore in 2009-10 as against Rs.2,524 crore
mainly due to lower treasury gains in the subdued
market condition and increased liability for Pension,
Gratuity and wage revision relating to employees of
the Bank in the backdrop of ongoing wage settlement
negotiation process.

Provisions

The Bank has made a total provision of
Rs.1,138 crore in keeping with the guidelines issued
by the RBI.

Net Profit \ Dividend

Net profit of the Bank was at Rs.707 crore for
2009-10 as against Rs.1,326 crore in 2008-09 due
to lower operating profit and increased provision for
ageing Non Performing Assets as per RBI guidelines.
Dividend for the year 2009-10 is proposed at 35 %
as against 45% paid last year.
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Income and Expenditure Analysis

The total income increased to Rs. 11,389 crore in
2009-10 compared to Rs.11,237 crore in 2008-09,
with a marginal growth of 1.35% on account of
reduction in treasury income by Rs.345 crore over
last year and lower growth in credit due to global
economic recession. The total interest income
increased to Rs. 10,246 crore in 2009-10 from
Rs.9,641 crore in 2008-09 at 6.28%. Interest income
on Advances increased to Rs. 7660 crore compared
to Rs.7,290 crore in the last year. Interest received
on advances impacted by decline in domestic yield
on advances to 10.44 % in 2009-10 from 11.13% in
2008-09 on account of downward revision in Bench
Mark Prime Lending Rate by 50 basis points effective
from July 1, 2009.

The commission and exchange earnings stood at
Rs. 578 crore against Rs.594 crore last year. Profit
on exchange was at Rs. 127crore as compared to
Rs.157 crore due to volatility in the currency market.
The profit on sale of investments was lower at
Rs. 292 crore against Rs. 637 crore last year in the
subdued market.

The increase in interest expenditure was significantly
brought down to 4.52 % in 2009-10 from 28.04 % in
2008-09, due to conscious shedding of card-plus
deposits and successive interest rate realignment on
domestic term deposits during the year. Card- plus
deposits as percentage to total domestic deposits
significantly came down to 3.82 % at the end of
March 2010 compared to 14.10% in March 2009.
As a result, the domestic cost of deposits declined
by 51 basis points from 6.87% in 2008-09 to 6.36%
in 2009-10.

Total operating expenses increased to Rs.2,466 crore
compared to Rs.1,942 crore last year due to increased
provision for pension, gratuity and wage revision
which is under negotiation at the industry level. The
non-staff expenditure increased to Rs.731 crore from
Rs. 670 crore mainly due to higher depreciation, rent
and taxes during the year. Net Interest Income
increased to Rs. 3,168 crore in 2009-10 with a growth
of 10.39 %. Consequently Net Interest Margin was
lower at 2.74% as against 2.84% in last year mainly
due to downward revision in Bench Mark Prime
Lending rate in line with the market. Hence the Bank’s
operating profit stood at Rs.1,845 crore for 2009-10
as against Rs.2,524 crore in 2008-09.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank improved
from 13.20% as at the end of March 2009 to 14.78%
as at the end of March 2010 as per the Basel I
norms.

Branch Network

The Bank opened 65 new branches and upgraded
20 extension counters into full-fledged branches in
the year ended March 2010. Total domestic branch
network reached 2,002 as at the end of the reporting
year. As regards population group wise break-up,
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rural branches numbered 589 accounting for 29.4%
of the total branches, semi-urban 520(26%), urban
492(24.6%) and metropolitan 401(20%).

Customer Service

The Bank has adopted the Code of Commitment to
Bank’s Customers as drafted by Banking Codes and
Standards Board of India (BCSBI). The Code has
been revised during August 2009. As part of customer
education “Information to Customers” Booklet is made
available at all branches. Customer Fortnight was
observed in select branches in May 2009 and in all
branches during November 2009.

During the year, incorporating certain provisions of
USD Cheque Collection Policy, the Compensation
Policy document related to customer service was
amended.

The details of customer complaints received and
redressed are given below.
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During the year 2009-10, 1338 complaints were
handled (including the complaints carried over from
the earlier year) of which 1280 complaints were
resolved. The redressal rate was 95.67 % .

Number of awards passed by the Banking
Ombudsman and implemented by the Bank are as
follows.

Unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year 2
Awards passed by Banking Ombudsman during the year - 1
Awards implemented during the year -1
Appeal against the awards allowed in the High Court 1
Unimplemented awards at the end of the year 1
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Customer Service Centre, Chennai City, for which
the Bank is the Convener, had resolved all the
complaints during the year. Customers are provided
with the facility of Toll Free Tele-services (No.1800-
425-4445) by engaging an outside agency for
receiving complaints. These complaints are resolved
within 48 hours. This facility is being upgraded for
24x7 model.

Retail Banking and Marketing

Income from fee-based products including Life and
General Insurance Products and Insurance Linked
Products, grew by 53.69 % over the previous year.
Life Insurance Linked Products, I0B Jeevan, OB
Healthcare Plus, Vidya Jyothi with Suraksha
performed well with wider coverage and improved
income.
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Distribution of life policies, as a Corporate Agent of
Life Insurance Corporation of India, withessed growth
both in premium as well as commission. So also
were the non-life insurance products of Universal
Sompo General Insurance.

The income from marketing of life policies, life
insurance linked policies, non-life policies including
health care was Rs.14.28 crore. Income from sale
of retail gold coins clocked Rs.8.64 crore. Retail
Loans grew at 15.5 % over the previous year with
major contribution from Housing Loans.

The following campaigns were conducted during the
year 2009-10.

CASA campaign

Retail Sale of Gold Coins.

Marketing of Healthcare Plus Policies.
Campaign for Asset Insurance Cover.
Marketing of Debit Cards.

Special Tax Saver Campaign

apr 0N~

6.

There was all round improvement in volume and
increase in income in the retail-banking segment.

Official Language Policy

During the year 2009-10, the Bank has taken all efforts
to implement the Official Language Policy of Government
of India. During the year, 248 Staff members, who did
not possess working knowledge of Hindi, were trained
in IOB Praveen and Banking Pragya Courses. 2,809 Staff
members, possessing working knowledge of Hindi, were
trained in General Hindi Workshops held during the year.
Rajbhasha Sangoshti was held on September 12, 2009
for heads of Central Office departments to strengthen
the Official Language Implementation in Central Office.

Minutes of meetings of all board level committees
were translated in Hindi. As per the directives of
Govt. of India, the Bank has enabled Hindi Unicode
font in all Regional Offices and has provided the
facility of Hindi font Shusha on IOB ONLINE for
downloading purpose in branches. Bank has also
provided the Banking terminology on IOB ONLINE
for the benefit of staff members. Bank has given
necessary training to 2,445 staff members for the
use of Hindi in computers. Bank has published all
the four issues of quarterly Hindi Magazine “VANI”
in print as well as in digital form. Bank’s website
has been made available in Hindi also.

Bank won the First Prize under Indira Gandhi
Rajbhasha Shield for the year 2008-09 for
commendable work in the area of Official Language
Implementation. Shri S A Bhat, Chairman & Managing
Director of the Bank, received this Award from Her
Excellency President of India Smt. Pratibha Devi
Singh Patil on September 14, 2009.

Reserve Bank of India awarded Second Prize to the
Bank for Hindi house magazine “VANI” for the year
2008-09 in the Inter-Bank & Financial Institutions
Hindi in-house Magazine Competition.
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Regional Offices were inspected on Official Language
implementation by Official Language Department,
Central Office and Rajbhasha Shields were awarded
to Regional Offices and branches doing good work
in official language implementation.

The drafting and evidence Sub -Committee of
Parliamentary Committee on Official Language had
discussions with the Chairmen and heads of Banks
of Town Official Language Committees at Raipur. The
Bank was also invited for discussion and the
committee expressed satisfaction over the
performance of the Bank at this centre.

As convener of Chennai Town Official Language
Implementation Committee, the Bank has received
the Second Prize for its efforts in implementation of
Official Language Policy during the year 2008-09
from Official Language Department, Ministry of Home
Affairs, Government of India. The Prize was given
by Shri Ajay Makan, Minister of State for Home Affairs,
New Delhi on October 9, 2009. On behalf of the
committee, the Bank conducted two General Hindi
Workshops, 12 Inter-Bank Hindi competitions, Joint
Hindi Month Celebration function and Hindi Unicode
training programme for the staff members of member
banks / Financial Institutions. A special Seminar in
Hindi on Customer Service for Managers of Scale
IV was held on January 8 ,2010. In addition to this
two half yearly meetings were also conducted.

Regional Rural Banks

The Regional Rural Banks (RRBs) sponsored by the
Bank, viz Pandyan Grama Bank and Neelachal
Gramya Bank performed well during the year. Both
the RRBs recorded net profit during the year.

Corporate Governance

The Bank prides itself on its diligence in ensuring
compliance with norms laid down by regulatory
authorities. The Bank lays emphasis on the need
for ensuring that structures and processes are put
in place to help in fulfilling its governance
responsibilities. The Board recognizes its role in
promoting good governance and in creating a
framework of best practices, processes and ethics
to observe and foster high ethical standards.

The Bank has laid down a well-defined Code of
Conduct, which address issues of integrity, conflict
of interest and confidentiality and stress the need
for ethical conduct, which is the basis of good
governance. This Code of Conduct is applicable to
all the members of the Board and Senior Management
(i.e. General Managers) of the Bank.

High standards of reporting and disclosure are
essential for proper accountability between an entity
and its investors/stakeholders. Thus, the Bank
facilitates and adopts good Corporate Governance
by its commitment to ensuring timeliness and integrity
of disclosures and financial reporting so as to keep
investors and stakeholders adequately informed to
ensure transparency and efficiency.




LRI ol TIW SR F dF T Tl

Heftag SR & @UE 49 % FUR Faiud == S fFersoy
e, FHOiRe e W) (Ui & W9-Tg HURe 7o
& oTefiT sTHaTeht vl o I o e § own el
1 gH0T o f 39 Al R o Uk 9 |

Ry Aga

sft Sft. ARMEVE, FEUC R 31 SRS 2009 H T
7% T war-fge gul siudt U A 7 REe 2009
HETETh (RYeh & &Y § HIEAGR G 8 | dshehrd SHois
(3USHT hT ST WA 3TART) AT 1970 - Tt
AWIHR o7 B & 9 (3) (S) =5 dgd sft W= rohy,
fwes 3 @9 o & FEw B FEIE & aR STHEER, 10,
2009 =t (FRYE & Y H U1 U @

9T TWHR 7 ot G Tt i HvRIerR - qehrt R
& ®Y 7 & 26 FTRER 2009 § @ 7% & FwrEfwra &
o gedt aR A e 2 |

gt <t.gtml 1, St adae | gfiead et s Ao SAftenr
T (meAttaNT) & 37edeT €, 30 AFH 2009 I AHR
FHAM (TIEh & &7 | U1 SR @ &2 JHR A
ot o, MR HAR B S FAAH & AT 7 7RI e
g, e wHE fRwe & &9 F A 26, 2010 ¥ diF
I hl STl & forg ATfhd foRar)

(TR HEd qaqd (R o agHed AT hi (IS
FIAT & X AT FRYH FI I WA B g |

ST R

FRY HEa 310+ agT T, VARSI, 3 L HUNH
T I | 3T (FR9 § fReyd Sk o HUhahdl3A i, 37k
YAH, GIIOT T GEAT & foTT U1 SR Ghe HI B |

R T8d, NG TR, aRdta R o, ardta gfegfy
TS fafmg @€, wie s, fafve 59 wER e faay
T3 g 93 Yedd HeAlT Bl HE H 2| Re
Hed g Hifih W, R wise wie, fawda
ueaeft Gard, sifan, sierent o5 shate sen, =T T
i FHyE, d% A, qAE, g% S g iR
T2 o At fgadqam T g=2d o A% qug o vl oft
3T HEAT & o s §

Ry 5T T § (% HHAN T S Sy §9 @
HRIHF FEHIT 3 FHROT ek Gaier s;ga el
21 Rk Hed Wit gew & ufd 3965 e a5 (o
TR =R A B

R Y HEd & AU qo7 3Tt T 9

b
EEl T T 9
29 #7ge 2010 ege] o gaY (R Ieh

Vi
&

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement,
Management Discussion & Analysis Report, Report on
Corporate Governance as well as Certificate by the
auditors regarding compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance, form part of this Annual Report.

Board of Directors

Shri G. Narayanan, Executive Director, demitted office
on October 31, 2009. Smt. Nupur Mitra assumed
charge as one more Executive Director on December
7, 2009 . Shri M. Ravindra Vikram, Director under
section 9 (3) (g) of the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act 1970
- Chartered Accountant Category, demitted office as
director on October 10, 2009 on completion of his
tenure of three years.

The Government of India nominated Shri Sooraj
Khatri as a part-time non-official Director for a second
term of three years with effect from October 26, 2009.

Shri J. D. Sharma, presently President of the Indian
Overseas Bank Officers’ Association (IOBOA)
demitted office as Officer Employee Director on
November 30, 2009 . The Government of India
nominated Shri K. Ananda Kumar, presently
General Secretary of IOBOA, as Officer Employee
Director for a period of three years with effect from
March 26, 2010.

The Board of Directors place on record the valuable
contributions made by the erstwhile Directors and
extend a warm welcome to the new Directors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic Environment

Indian economy recorded 7.2% growth during
2009-10. Agriculture was impacted by the poor
monsoon but the impact could be muted by better
performance in the Rabi season. Industrial growth
in the first nine months of the financial year was
8.6%. During the same period, exports and imports
showed signs of recovery from the slowdown caused
by the global crisis.

Banking Environment

The Reserve Bank of India, in its Annual Policy,
reduced Repo Rate under the LAF by 25 basis points
from 5.0% to 4.75%. Reverse Repo Rate was also
brought down by 25 basis points from 3.5% to 3.25%.
From the fortnight beginning November 7, 2009, the
RBI raised SLR to the pre-crisis level of 25%. CRR
was increased from 5.0% to 5.75% in two stages in
February 2010. As an anti-inflation measure, the RBI
hiked the repo rate from 4.75% to 5.0% and reverse
repo from 3.25% to 3.50% on March 19, 2010.

The year traversed from easy money policy to tight
—policy regime in the second half of the year and it
is likely to continue in 2010-11 as could be inferred
from the Annual Policy 2010-11 wherein the RBI has
raised Repo Rate and Reverse Repo Rate by further
25 basis points to 5.25% and 3.75% respectively.
CRR was also hiked by 25 basis points to 6.0%.

THE BANK’S OPERATIONS
Deposits

Aggregate domestic deposits of the Bank increased
from Rs.95,434 crore in March 2009 to Rs.1,05,434
crore in March 2010 at a growth rate of 10.48%.
Domestic core deposits of the Bank registered a
significant growth of 24.89% over March 2009 due
to conscious shedding of high cost term deposits.

Credit

Domestic Gross advances rose from the level of
Rs.68,480 crore in March 2009 to Rs.73,026 crore
in March 2010 despite adverse market condition on
account of global economic slow down.

Priority Sector Credit

As per the guidelines of RBI, achievement under
Priority Sector for the year 2009-2010 is computed
taking the Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC) of
March 2009 as the base. For the year ended March
2010, the percentage of Priority Sector advances to
Adjusted Net Bank Credit was at 40.59 %, the
quantum being Rs. 27,237 crore. Thus the Bank
fulfilled the stipulated norm of 40% under Priority
Sector credit.

SME

The Bank extended credit of Rs.11,660 crore to SME
Sector as at the end of March 2010. This includes
advances to Micro and Small enterprises to the tune
of Rs.9,659 crore which forms part of Priority Sector




1 BT (oafid (ohar| s99 H&H o @ 3T i (AT T
%. 9,659 HUT b1 0T o IMUA € S Gref¥erar e
freT 21 9k 3 20% o SAfTaTd STV H IR
gT 24.10% =1 31y9 wH w7 € &7 | f=

At A1, ¥ Y&H ITAl HI IUR 27 & dg A & fon
d% H g A F I UG §F | AT g, T § f
g St oft Frfhn & Fat=ea § 9% gt a9 § W WE |
@1 2009-10 35 T Sk T A AT, TS 7 700
ek qReiSHTST & H9d & fSEeh wRoT deRda 9,900
TSR =1 o g3

Her &9 9 T &0 TH TH ¥ THEA oh dig [AeSsiod
% foe, ©q ww € &7 % fog AT ek qEaty i g 7
T et #t 71 g A A ser @ A g oA
& gftanferd s & foae Sfa & qea o Rewed 3uasy
¢ HEW 9 @H ITA, S qEAH o I ITA B AN H
ek STHAET HT WA FA &, B A T T qAA
T GATE AT I o {70, TH TH € &7 o a0 gg® =&
e aard 3T @y ) AT B S THEE FoRO
T ST THT ® AN 37 W E | Eeh Yanan goH  qef
U A o fIT &, 1 HUE T o Gy Ugd N o
AS@ W et ST e w2

a5 2009-10 & = ff o6 T TH T € @ & (AU shiee
dohst & FrfaE B S @ et gE st X S e
F 3T fafera fared o et 71w+t st wEte
9 T ¥ G &5 9 U 9 & S a9g e § e
UH § YR @Al &l GAH A H T |

T TE T A R T A 3UR <A e & e §
T T T AN dh o o f U AR ged W = @A
FHHt T qT D |

et Rarem iR FAfae fqufear ae- & fag 5= goias
gfasfa / qafta v TR & ash | fammee wH & o
dep A oSS el fAMeE | e 9, 2009 T 2 &t
T mied st fatee | @A 3 99, 2009 T Hewd
O O EEARE (el & 2009-10 & &I 39 T3S S
e & T=ta 3500 | ST W G (R TC | 3
R GeH I G F g B KU H AR a¢T A A
fedtes 5 Fear, 2009 i T W T e 9 Th
ST TR A8 o [Iaivu & Telu 37 e ish 22
qrel 2010 =Rl 2T HITH (AHET o e EE whl 31T
el U e s el & TN @ Y ggurd
O I AT ToRa |

Cokl

Y Fow F A 2009 3 % 10,817 HUT H 5. 1,780
FUE H a5 & H T I AT T 12,597 HUE W KA
AT Sk T BT YT T TN (et Ak IUR FH
AT 18.77% T ST 18%3 TUfed Ar=UE § (e
g

J = faes HY 3uR AT (T T A f) & d=d € 12,780

Vi
&

Credit. The Bank increased its advance to SME Sector
by 24.10% surpassing the mandatory requirement
of 20%.

The Bank was awarded Chief Minister's trophy for
good performance in lending to Micro Enterprises
in Tamil Nadu. The Bank was in second position
among all banks in implementation of PMEGP
Programme in Tamil Nadu State. The Bank
sanctioned more than 700 projects in the state of
Tamil Nadu during 2009-10, which resulted in creation
of over 9,900 jobs.

To help speedy revival of potentially viable sick SME
units, Nursing and Rehabilitation Policy for SME
Sector was formulated and implemented. The policy
is more liberal and various concessions are available
under the policy for viable units for restarting their
operations. To facilitate smooth and hassle free flow
of credit to Micro and Small Enterprises, who face
many disadvantages as compared to Medium and
Large Enterprises, Separate Loan Policy for MSE
Sector was formulated and implemented. The policy
emphasises sanction of timely and adequate amount
of credit to MSEs. Thrust is given to sanction
collateral-free loans up to Rs.1 Crore, in all eligible
cases.

The Bank continued the implementation of relief
package for SME sector during 2009-10 also. Various
concessions including reduced rates of interest were
continued. SME Facilitation centres were activated
at all Regional Offices. Large number of SME borrowal
accounts was restructured during the year.

All lending to MSME were exempted from Minimum
Interest Rate clause to enable them to get the benefit
of interest rate reduction whenever bank’s BPLR is
reduced.

The Bank signed MOU with Bajaj Auto Ltd., on
April 9, 2009 and TVS Motor Company Limited, on
June 3, 2009 for financing auto rickshaws and
commercial three wheelers in a speedy manner,
without requirement of collateral security/third party
guarantee. More than 3,500 loans were sanctioned
under this tie-up arrangements during 2009-10,
enhancing flow of credit to transport operators in
Micro Enterprises Sector. On November 5, 2009, the
Bank signed MoU with Asia Motor Works Ltd., for
financing trucks and commercial transport vehicles
and on March 22, 2010 with TATA Motors Limited
for financing commercial transport vehicles on easy
terms and conditions.

Agriculture

Agricultural credit registered a growth of
Rs. 1,780 crore from Rs.10,817 crore in March 2009
and reached Rs. 12,597 crore in March 2010. The
Bank’s ratio of agricultural advances to Adjusted Net
Bank Credit stood at 18.77% exceeding the required
norm of 18%.

The Bank disbursed Rs. 13,327 crore under Special
Agricultural Credit Plan (SACP) as against the target
of Rs. 12,780 crore during the year. The increase in
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disbursement of credit to agricultural sector over the
last year’s disbursement was 30.35%, as against 30%
mandated by the Govt. of India under Special Farm
Credit Package.

Kisan Credit Card Scheme( KCC )

The Bank issued 2,03,757 KCCs during the year.
The total number of cards cumulatively issued by
the Bank as at the end of March 2010 stood at
19,19,155.

Micro Finance

During the year, the Bank credit-linked 68,112 Self
Help Groups (SHGs )with a credit outlay of Rs.706.92
crore. The cumulative number of SHGs credit-linked
by the Bank increased from 2,92,507 (amount
disbursed Rs.2,162.68 crore) as at the end of March
2009 to 3,60,619 SHGs (amount disbursed
Rs.2,869.60 crore) as of March 2010.

During the year, the Bank contributed Rs.1.16 crore
towards NABARD’s Micro Finance Development &
Equity Fund.

Janashree Bima Yojana (JBY)

JBY is a Social Security Scheme to provide life
insurance cover to the rural and urban poor living
below the poverty line. The Bank, in association with
LIC of India, launched the scheme to cover women
Self Help Group members. During 2009-10, the Bank
covered 42,791 women members belonging to 3,854
SHGs under the scheme.

Credit flow to Women

As on March 31, 2010, Bank’s credit to women
amounted to Rs.3,529.69 crore constituting 5.26%
of the Bank’s Adjusted Net Bank Credit, as against
the norm of 5%.

Lead Bank Scheme

The Bank has Lead Bank responsibility in twelve
districts in Tamil Nadu and one district in Kerala.
The Bank is also the Convenor of State Level Banker’s
Committee of Tamil Nadu. During the year under
review, as Convenor of State Level Bankers
Committee, Tamil Nadu, the Bank conducted three
SLBC Meetings and one State Level Review Meeting.
In addition, the Bank convened Special SLBC
Meetings on Special Package for MSME, Auto &
Housing Sectors. Special Bankers’ Meeting was
convened on Credit Linking of Panchayat Level
Federations, Scheme for Rehabilitation of Manual
Scavengers (SRMS) and on the Relief Package for
Tiruppur Dyers’ Association. Senior level officials from
member Banks and Government of Tamil Nadu
participated in the above meetings.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank has, always, supported worthy social
causes and endeavours. During the year, the
Bank contributed Rs. one crore each to two
states, viz., Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka,
towards the respective Chief Minister’s Relief
Funds to give relief to the flood affected people
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in these two states. Apart from these, the Bank
also made donations to other organizations
serving the community at large.

Sakthi Indian Overseas Bank Chidambaram Chettiar
Memorial Trust

The Trust, set up jointly by the Management of the
Bank, Indian Overseas Bank Officers’ Association and
All India Overseas Bank Employees’ Union, to
perpetuate the memory of Bank’s Founder Shri
M.Ct.M. Chidambaram Chettiar, continued to provide
entrepreneurial development training to women
thereby empowering them socially and financially.

The Trust has so far conducted 44 Entrepreneurial
Development Programmes (EDPs) exclusively for
women at various centres, benefiting 1,601 women.
For the women entrepreneurs and Self Help Groups,
‘IOB Sakthi Bazaars’ were organized at many
branches, for exhibition cum sale of their products.

IOB-Sampoorna Project - A Total Village
Development Project

The Bank launched an innovative rural development
project aiming at Total Village Development called
I0OB-Sampoorna in Kuthambakkam and Padur
Villages in Tiruvallur District, Kameshwaram village
in Nagapattinam District, Dhaliyur Village in
Coimbatore District and Innambur village in Thanjavur
District of Tamil Nadu. IOB-Sampoorna is an unique
Project encompassing several livelihood initiatives
in the villages to ensure all-inclusive growth of rural
population.

It comprises credit and non-credit components such
as Financial Inclusion, I.T. enabled banking operations
with Bio-metric Smart Cards under Business
Correspondent model, Tree Planting and Social
Forestry, Cleaning Water Bodies, Health Care, Skill
Training for youth in computer, Rural Business
Process Outsourcing, Promotion of non-conventional
energy and Rural Tourism.

Rural Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs)

In line with the guidelines issued by Ministry of Rural
Development, Govt of India, Bank had set up RSETIs
at Thiruvananthapuram (Kerala State), Tirunelveli,
Thanjavur and Trichy (Tamilnadu State) to provide
training to farmers, members of SHGs, beneficiaries
under SGSY, Educated Unemployed Youths, Artisans
and Beneficiaries belonging to weaker sections.

One Rural Training Centre was set up by the Bank
(jointly with NABARD and Indian Bank) at Karaikudi
(Sivaganga District, Tamil Nadu). The Bank has Lead
Bank responsibility in these Districts. During the year
under review, through these Training Institutes, the
Bank conducted 142 training programmes benefiting
3,322 trainees.

Financial Literacy and Credit Counselling Centres
(FLCCC) viz., SNEHA
With a view to promoting financial education and

awareness among general public the Bank set up
two FLCCCs at Nagercoil and Trichy during the year
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under review. These centres will educate the people
in rural and urban areas with regard to various
financial products / services available from formal
financial sector, provide face-to-face financial
counselling services and offer debt counselling to
indebted individuals.

Financial Inclusion

In order to bring hitherto excluded people under
banking fold during the year under review, Bank has
opened 2,06,162 No-frills SB accounts and granted
16,930 General Purpose Credit Cards.

To increase the outreach of banking services the
Bank introduced Smart Card Banking in 33 Branches
(18 Regions) across 6 States and one Union Territory.
Rural people can transact banking business at the
village itself with the use of bio-metric smart cards
through Hand Held Devices. Business
Correspondents deliver the services at the door step
of the customers. The devices are voice - enabled
in vernacular language and user friendly for illiterates.
3,504 biometric smart cards were issued during the
year under review.

Agricultural Debt Waiver and Debt Relief Scheme
2008

Agricultural Debt Waiver and Debt Relief Scheme
2008 was announced by the Hon’ble Union Finance
Minister, Govt. of India. Under the scheme, the Bank
has identified 3.07 lac Small and Marginal Farmers
eligible for waiver to the tune of Rs.580.89 crores
and 68,000 other farmers eligible for Relief of
Rs.133.00 crores totaling 3.75 lac farmers and
Rs.713.89 crores respectively.

Bank received an amount of Rs.371.98 crores from
Reserve Bank of India , as the reimbursement of
waiver claim amount. Out of 68,000 Other Farmers
(OF) 46,000 other farmers, paid their share and Bank
has made a preliminary claim of Rs.83.16 crore. The
last date for payment of other farmers share is
extended upto June 30,2010.

Risk Management

The Bank has adopted the New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel-Il) with effect from March 31, 2008.
In line with Reserve Bank of India’s instructions to
all commercial banks, the Bank is adopting
Standardised Approach (SA) for computation of Credit
Risk Capital, Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) for
calculating the capital for Operational Risk and the
Standardised Duration Approach (SDA) for computing
capital requirement for market risks. The Bank is in
compliance with the regulatory requirement in this
regard.

Further, the Bank is in the process of upgrading its
risk management systems and practices for migrating
to the advanced approaches envisaged under the
Basel-ll Framework.
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Compliance Function

In order to arrive at the Compliance Risk by
ascertaining the concentration of non-compliance, the
system of verification of level of compliance in
branches is used as a tool. An official of a branch
would verify the level of compliance in core issues
in another branch which are of “High” and “Medium”
risk on quarterly basis. The overall Compliance Risk
in branches, which was at 4.69 % as on December
31, 2008 has been brought down to 3.95 % as on
December 31, 2009. The Self Assessment procedure
introduced for overseas branches and Representative
Offices also serves as an effective tool for Regulatory
Compliance Check List. The compliance self
assessment procedure introduced for Currency
Chests, Central Clearing Offices and Depository
Service branch has improved the level of compliance
in these offices.

Recovery Management

Many pro-active efforts were initiated such as 1)
dissemination of information 2) motivation/support 3)
empowerment through new and innovative schemes
and 4) monitoring of progress. These measures
infused positive outlook at the operational level and
there was a perceptible improvement under NPA
Management. The measures include

a) Emphasis on 100% action under SARFAESI in
all eligible cases

b) Emphasis on recovery of “critical amount” towards
upgrading the accounts

¢) Launching of One Time Settlement Scheme for
Small Value Accounts (OTS-SVA), which
delegated Discretionary powers to Branch Heads.
The Scheme was in force from 19.10.2009 to
31.03.2010.

d) Launching of recovery contest to staff from
01.02.2010 to 31.07.2010, which provided
payment of Cash incentive to successful
performers.

During the year, the Bank made substantial recovery
of Rs.787 crore including recovery from written-off
accounts. NPAs to the extent of Rs. 435 crore were
also upgraded during the year.

Disposal of petitions received under RTI Act

The Bank received 1,421 petitions seeking information
under RTIl Act during the year 2009-10. All the
requests were duly replied within the specified period
of 30 days. Eligible petitions (85%) were positively
replied and the balance applications were found
ineligible for the requested details.

First Appellate Authority received 122 first appeals,
which were not satisfied with the reply of Central
Public Information Officer. These appeals were duly
disposed as per the due provisions of the Act.

19 Appeal petitions were escalated as Second
Appeal before the Hon’ble Central Information
Commission. All 19 Appeals were disposed by the
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Hon’ble CIC. Bank had maintained favourable
decisions in all the 54 Second Appeals decided till
date.

Industrial Rehabilitation

Number of cases under BIFR/AAIFR as at March 31,
2010 were 27 with an exposure of Rs. 153.36 crore.
Of this 7 accounts for Rs. 74.78 crore were standard
and performing. Out of NPA accounts, recovery in 6
cases amounting to Rs. 4.53 crore was made and
one standard account under BIFR reference with an
exposure of Rs. 3.23 crore was also closed. During
the year, 3 accounts with an aggregate exposure of
Rs. 11.38 crore were brought out of SICA purview,
two accounts through SARFAESI action and one
account by winding up order passed by BIFR.

Corporate Debt Restructuring

As on March 31, 2010, the number of restructured
borrowal accounts under CDR mechanism was 12
and the total outstanding was Rs. 335.60 crore (9
cases with an outstanding of Rs. 176.05 crore
outstanding as on 31.3. 2009) of which 10 accounts
for Rs. 285.66 crore are under standard category
and 2 accounts for Rs. 49.94 crore are sub-standard.
During the year, 3 new standard accounts entered
CDR mechanism with total exposure of Rs. 173.88
crore . Efforts are on for recovery of sub-standard
accounts.

Investments

The growth in investments during the year 2009-10
was mainly driven by the increase in Statutory
Liquidity requirements resulting mainly out of Deposit
growth of the bank. Gross Domestic Investments as
of March 31, 2010 stood at Rs. 36,795.09 crore as
against Rs. 30,497.19 crore as on 31.03.2009
registering a growth of 20.65% over the previous
year. Investments in SLR securities registered a
growth of Rs.5,516.11 crore or 20.67% during the
year while Non SLR Investments increased by
Rs.709.21 crore or 18.62%.

During the year 2009-10, securities for Rs.1,001.46
crore were transferred from Available for Sale (AFS)
to Held to Maturity (HTM) segment, Rs.2,216.70 crore
from Held to Maturity (HTM) to Available for Sale
(AFS). As on 31.03.2010, the SLR securities held in
HTM stood at 22.39% of DTL against the limit of
25% prescribed by Reserve Bank of India, compared
to 22.62% as on 31.03.2009.

The market was volatile and the Bank continued to
trade both in Fixed Income Securities and Equities
throughout the year. Total turnover (Book Value) in
the secondary market reached Rs.65,790 crore during
the year 2009-10 as against Rs.83,581 crore during
the year 2008-09. Total profit on sale of securities
amounted to Rs. 291.86 crore during the year
2009-10 as against Rs. 636.83 crores during the
year 2008-09. Return on total investments (excluding
Profit on Sale of Securities & including amortisation)
decreased from 7.37% in 2008-09 to 6.85% in
2009-10.
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The Bank started trading in Rupee interest rate swap
and the outstanding as on 31.03.2010 was
Rs. 25 crore. During the year 2009-10, the Bank
has not entered into any fresh rupee interest rate
swaps towards hedging its assets and liabilities but
swaps already taken matured for a sum of Rs.750
crore during the year. The total Rupee interest rate
swaps held by the Bank as on 31.03.2010 is
Rs. 1075 crore as against Rs 1800 crore as on
31.03.2009.

Forex Operations

Despite the global recession that badly hit the Indian
exports, the Bank managed to increase its forex turn
over (merchant and interbank) from Rs.3,02,696.52
crore during 2008-09 to Rs.3,11,619.04 crore during
2009-10. The retail sales of gold coins rose from
614.252 Kgs to 928.440 Kgs during the same period.

The Bank has started centralization of submission
of various regulatory returns leveraging the core-
banking platform thus improving the data integrity.
The connectivity established between the core banking
platform and the overseas branches has eliminated
the delivery time in respect of overseas remittances
emanating from its overseas offices to Bank’s
account holders in India. As a result, beneficiaries
get instantaneous credit of the remitted amount.

The access to the core-banking platform provided
to the overseas office has improved the service
standards to the NRI clients with instantaneous
balance enquiries and generation of statement of
accounts at all the overseas offices of the bank.

Opening of NRI account has been centralized at the
NRI cell at Treasury (Foreign). The account opening
forms from various overseas offices are pooled at
the NRI cell and accounts opened in the books of
the branch of the client’s choice and an NRI kit
comprising of the pass book, cheque book, ATM card
and the Pin mailer is issued without loss of time.

The correspondent banks maintaining rupee account
with the bank have been provided a web-based
facility to access their account and check the status
of their payment instructions including payment of
their drafts.

As Chairman of the southern chapter of FEDAI, the
Bank conducted the quarterly meetings of the member
banks where issues pertaining to the forex business
were deliberated.

The Bank conducted the meetings of the sub-
committee of the State Level Bankers Committee for
Exports during August 2009 and February 2010 with
active participation from various export-oriented
organizations such as ECGC, Council for Leather
Exports, FIEO, EEPC, etc. The Bank in association
with FIEO organized an export awareness programme
at Madurai.

A comprehensive Risk Management Policy, with limits
duly approved by the Board, covering all risks arising
out of forex activities, is in place. Currency-wise Day-




YR T yate a7 < @181 IUR Sifw, Tha-giar
e we ga-qy waed (gf giar / ufd s ufd @)
A FHe FA o T gfa-uret et & garet 9 F gares
IECIISIR G

EQECACTS

% F1 ST AT JFT hfSe BIS U UTEH! B SFTIHA
P T @ E TS Gl quArEd o fget aff @ e o
26.23% = g g3 wa fwee amHaEA €.291.70 @@ §
TS 3EH 14% g I B T G & G, T
fedard gfteyl & YR W Uehl & sAmie gfasH §
fasht SfHfaeq o TMfid &t 1€ g A o TR e
3T T (OTT T T (T WA HET ST HB GIE
F F gEH Tyl i @ w500 e vwe &
T foha ST T 21 32T a2 3 (SEHish),
o - e @ AHYT g o e gE fFa
of, 9% 37 T I 2

=M ST
de 3 fede e, fotal 3 (o e wa S s

A/ TS SETEA AL A T H A R B S
W@l o o e ek 3 (ufe e

) @ dK W YE fFu T sEthat gk weEdn (sees
T 3 g7 TAfdd STgErT) & fau sgefisd a5
& & H h HET|

11) 9= FW aTet dBH & ®T F A/ 0 aR_E P
gSeE 3 UGHAT &l 98e | THeh faw STISTYEEh
FHT JIUT (a3 T € Te g9 Therargash
wdeqor f3ham T 2 |

IR ai=re

deh TATEETTA shl (HeIamR giaqrft € e 56 @er avg
et (I oA (vl (e e 9@q) & i
iy gaieh dard gam X w8, e 14 e 99+,
25 wTETT qEE ¥ uS 9 5 AR OH F

VT AHEA Hred e

e o AR AT GANT & T THEA SFF A HOT TR
oRaT-el § 9 o QU YA fFA 21 % T 9wa o
o foky § qvfta vd faRel qam & shufaal it A SR
T T U R H BT UG FIH § YT eIk
/ T STl SyEERTs i e g g1y & R,
A% T 5.645 FUE o At F=07 veeh Tieq 98 THET 27
Toreeftar sFeliSi 9w f3ham 81 %.1,475 SUS & R0 92F o
oTT Uk 31X TEA UG o g § 37 A1 o WY TSeeH
g g WA

TR A

g R agferar

doh 354 @S 9 ST AT o SH IR T (AR
(TTertTEE) @ At =Tl i g §R ST ST
I el X B el 3 (T UIpd 21 9% 1 g
F UV - & TR WHFR FH o o e ardta

Q%
&

Light/Overnight exposures, duly approved by the
Board, are being monitored on daily basis. Counter-
party limits to cover the credit exposure, single-deal
limit and stop-loss limits (per deal /per dealer per
day) are being monitored effectively.

Credit Card

The Bank’s own Visa enabled Credit Card is catering
to the requirements of its clientele and the turnover
has increased by 26.23% over last year and the net
earnings is Rs. 291.70 lakhs - an increase of 14%.
During the year, on a revenue sharing model, a tie
up was made to venture into Card Acquiring
business by deploying Point of Sale terminals at
clients’ merchant establishments. This would serve
as a tool to build up CASA deposits and 500
terminals have already been installed. The Internet
Payment Gateway (IPG), which was also launched
to popularize E-commerce payment, is gaining
momentum.

Merchant Banking

The Bank continues to act as Debenture Trustee,
Collecting Bankers to Issues and Dividend/Interest
Paying Banker. During the year, the Bank decided
to

i) act as Collecting Bankers for the newly
introduced IPO process ASBA (Applications
Supported by Blocked Amounts).

ii) change the procedure for handling Dividend/
Interest Warrants as Paying Bankers. Necessary
computer programme for this has been
developed and successfully tested.

Depository Operations

The Bank is a Depository Participant of NSDL and
is extending depository related services through 56
service centre branches (including the controlling
Chennai Depository branch), of which 14 branches
are in Chennai, 25 in Mumbai and the remaining in
other cities.

Loan Syndication Activities:

Loan Syndication Desk of the Merchant Banking
Division of the Bank took advantage of the benefits
arising out of syndication activity. The Bank has acted
as Lead Arranger/Co-Lead Arranger for loans to
Companies in India and abroad both in INR and
USD respectively. During the year, the Bank achieved
financial closure for a large syndication proposal with
a term loan component of Rs.645 crores. Tie-up with
other banks in respect of another syndication
proposal for a debt component of Rs.1,475 crores is
under progress.

Government Accounts
Direct Tax Collections

The Bank is authorised to collect Income Tax and
other Direct Taxes through On Line Tax Accounting
System (OLTAS) in 354 branches. The Bank is given
All India Authorisation to receive e-Payment of Direct
Taxes and it has been implemented since 2007.
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Gemini Circle Branch, Chennai is functioning as e-
Focal Point Branch for Direct Tax collections. TAN
data quality is 99.41% and PAN data quality is
98.35%.

Indirect Tax Collections

The Bank is authorised to receive Indirect Taxes
through Electronic Accounting System in Excise and
Service Tax (EASIEST) in 217 branches. The Bank
is given all-India authorization to receive e-payment
of Excise and Service Taxes which has been
implemented since December 2006. Haddows Road
Branch, Chennai is functioning as e-Focal Point
Branch for collection of Central Excise and Nariman
Point Branch, Mumbai is functioning as e-Focal Point
Branch for Service Tax.

Payment of Pension

The Bank handles payment of Pension in respect of
Central Civil, Defence, Railways, Telecom, State
Governments, TNEB, Chennai Port Trust, Employees’
Provident Fund Organisation Pension, Malaysian
Government Pension and Coal Mines Provident
Fund Pensioners.

The Bank has established Centralised Pension
Processing Centre (CPPC) and Central Civil Pension
is being paid by CPPC since January 2009. During
the year, the Bank completed disbursement of pension
arrears under 6™ Pay Commission for Civil and
Defence Pensioners, as per Government directives.

Treasury

Treasury Business of the Government of Tamil Nadu
is conducted in 9 branches and Government of Orissa
in 1 branch. Recently, Valliyoor Branch (Tirunelveli
Region) and Eppodum Vendran Branch (Tuticorin
Region) in Tamil Nadu have also been authorised
by the RBI to conduct treasury business.

Other Government Business

The Bank actively participates in the Government of
India Savings Schemes like Senior Citizens Savings
Scheme 2004, Relief Bond, Special Deposit Scheme,
and Public Provident Fund. Post Office collection
Account is maintained in 42 branches in Tamil Nadu.

Currency Chest

The Bank has 34 Currency Chests; which includes
Two Currency Chests opened at Erode (Erode
Region) and Gajapathinagar (Berhampur Region)
during 2009-10.

Inter Branch Reconciliation

The Reserve Bank of India directive stipulates that
all debit and credit entries in the IBR accounts are
required to be reconciled / eliminated within a period
of 6 months. The Bank has significantly reduced the
reconciliation cycle, elimination of the COMPASS and
Demand Draft debit entries to 15 days. Besides, the
Bank ensures that no funds transfer and telegraphic
transfer entry is outstanding for more than one month.
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Inspection

Central Office Inspection, along with EDP Audit and
NIPSA, was carried out in 1,633 branches during
the year 2009-10. Since all branches were converted
to CBS, inspection was conducted in all the
branches on-line. Out of the branches inspected, 451
branches were rated as “Good”.

Inspection of Hong Kong, Singapore, Seoul, Bangkok
and Colombo branches including Representative
Offices were also conducted during the period.

Regional Offices carried out periodical Short
Inspection of Branches. Management Audit of all 41
Regional Offices and 34 Central Office Departments
was also conducted during this period. Total of 336
branches were brought under Concurrent Audit
covering 58.23% of Deposits and 74.78% of
Advances, thereby exceeding RBI guidelines of
covering at-least 50% of Bank’s Business. Revenue
Audit was carried out in 1,419 branches and Test
Check Audit in 334 branches. Stock Audit was
conducted for 754 accounts on selective basis.

Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA) was conducted in
the 1633 branches, where CO Inspection was carried
out. Management Audit of Regional Offices was also
conducted under RBIA by preparing Risk Profile of
the Regions.

Information Systems (IS) Audit was conducted in all
the 41 Regional Computer Centres, one Depository
branch and 321 branches, consisting of 4
Exceptionally Extra Large, 96 Exceptionally Large and
221 Very Large branches. Information Systems Review
/ Audit of CO-Departments, viz. Data Centres and
DR Site, Network, Core Banking Solution, ATM / Debit
Card operations, RTGS/NEFT Operations, Internet
Banking and Mobile Banking handled by Information
Technology Department, Credit Card operations,
Treasury (Domestic) and Treasury (Foreign) operations
were conducted by engaging Qualified External
Auditors.

Audit Sub Committee (ASC):

Board of Directors in the meeting held on
August 26, 2008 approved the formation of Audit
Sub Committee (ASC). During the financial year
2009-10, 8 ASC Meetings were held. The Review of
COIR reports of ELB, EELB/ Specialized Branches/
Overseas Branches including Management Audit of
Regional Offices, Review of Stock Audit / Concurrent
Audit / Test Check Audit / Revenue Audits were taken
up for discussion in the ASC Meetings. The major
findings of ASC with Action Taken Report was placed
to ACB once in a quarter.

Vigilance

During the year 2009-10, the Bank has taken effective
steps for disposal of pending Vigilance Disciplinary
cases within the time frame fixed by Central Vigilance
Commission. During the year 133 vigilance
disciplinary cases were disposed. The operational
Risk Management Committee and the Committee of
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the Board monitoring Large Value Frauds analysed
the frauds reported periodically and observations/
remedial measures made/suggested by the
Committee have been implemented by the Bank.
During the year, the Bank issued 12 circulars
(internal) captioned Preventive Vigilance — CVO'’s
special circular elaborating the vigilance disciplinary
cases handled by the Department. Besides
incorporating the details of punishments awarded,
the important preventive measures to be taken by
the staff members are also included in these circulars.
Further emphasis has been given by the Bank
towards Preventive Vigilance measures through
periodical Branch inspection by the Chief Vigilance
Officer and also by Vigilance Officers attached to
Vigilance Cell at select Regional Offices. The role of
staff at all levels in adherence to Systems and
Procedures especially compliance to KYC norms,
AML guidelines, fraud prone areas etc., has been
emphasized during periodical visits to Regional
Offices and Branches by Chief Vigilance Officer.
Vigilance Awareness Week was observed in
November 2009.

Information Technology
Branch Computerisation

The Bank has achieved 100% networking status as well
as 100% CBS status of branches with a total number of
2018 CBS branches and Extension Counters.

As on March 31, 2010, 17 Central Clearing Offices,
41 Regional Offices and 4 Central Office Departments
and 6 Inspectorates have been brought under CBS.
2 more Central Office Departments have been
brought under CBS, with effect from April 2, 2010.

The total number of ATMs as on 31.03.2009 stood
at 576 (445 Onsite, 115 Offsite and 16 Railway
ATMs). During the year, 195 ATMs were brought into
the network taking the total to 771 (590 Onsite, 146
Offsite and 35 Railway ATMs).

Bank has a total debit card base of 17,67,050 cards
which includes 1,75,456 Insta Cards. The volume of
transactions put through our ATMs amounted to
Rs.545.52 crores during the month of March 2010.

As on March 31, 2010, 731 ATMs out of 771 have
been provided with Video Surveillance Systems.

RTGS / NEFT - Networked branches are covered
under RTGS and NEFT payment systems. During the
year, the dividend paid by the Bank was credited to
the eligible shareholders through NEFT.

Internet Banking

Gamut of services have been provided under Internet
banking facility. The number of customers who are
registered as well as the volume of transactions put
through using the Internet is increasing steadily. Apart
from the standard services offered, Bank has
introduced facility for viewing VOSTRO accounts by
the Correspondents. Viewing of income tax particulars
from NSDL site by the registered Internet Banking
Customers, i.e., Form 26 AS view, using their PAN
is now enabled.
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Mobile Banking

The Bank has introduced Mobile Banking, offering
entire range of services. Various services have been
offered in two phases during the year. Phase |
includes query services, funds transfer (inter and intra
banks), statement of accounts. Services like air /
movie ticketing, de-mat services, facility to suspend
ATM/Debit Cards, ATM/Branch locator are tested and
implemented.

Cheque Truncation System (CTS) has been launched
in 85 Branches in NCR, Delhi as per RBI directives.

Payment Gateway

Bank has launched own Payment Gateway on ASP
Model. Bank has integrated payment of TNEB bills
by Bank’s customers, using their Debit Cards.
Integration of Payment of utility bills, like mobile
payment, insurance premium payment etc., using the
debit cards is in process.

12 branches of erstwhile Swarna Sahakari Bank Ltd,
Pune have been brought under CBS from day one.

3-way Data-centre has been established to ensure
BCP. Primary Data Centre at Chennai, and Command
Centre at Chennai and DR Site at Hyderabad have
been set up. CBS and critical applications are
functioning from Data Centre. Primary DC and CC
are connected by 1 Giga Dark Fiber Connection,
which ensures synchronous replication. DR Site and
DC are on asynchronous replication. Automation Tool
is used for automatic fail-over. The network
equipments and hardware used are provided with
high availability and complete redundancy (at service
provider level, media level and at hardware level).

IP Telephones have been provided to all Regional
Offices / Central Office Executives and to Singapore
Branch. On-line tracking of loan applications has been
enabled. Borrower / Applicant can track and know
the status of their loan application.

Overseas Branches Computerisation

To ensure uniformity of solutions used by Overseas
Branches, centralised CBS software is now being
used in Singapore, Bangkok and Colombo. The
system for overseas branches has been established
on hub and spoke model with the hub set up at
Singapore with DR Site at Bangkok. Bangkok Branch
is running parallel and would go online by June
2010. In Colombo, parallel run has been completed
and Branch is online with effect from April 1, 2010.
Reporting and NOSTRO modules are under process
of being implemented.

Direct online remittance through our Singapore
Branch to the beneficiary’s account maintained
in our Indian Branches has been enabled. This
facility has been well received by remitters as well
as the beneficiaries. This has also brought the
Remittance Business of the area under organised
channel.
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In the present set up of Network Infrastructure,
redundancy has been achieved at node level in full.

From the existing BSNL point-to-point leased line
connections between the branches and the regional
network nodes, the Bank has entered into an MoU
with  BSNL under Platinum partner status at
competitive rates for migrating the leased line links
under BSNL MPLS-VPN cloud connectivity, which
would connect the branches directly to the data
centres. Migration process is in progress now.

ATMs are now outsourced under ATM Managed
services with M/s TCBIL. Vendor is in the process of
taking over the ATMs under the managed services.
As on March 31, 2010, 129 ATMs in 12 regions
have been brought under the managed services. All
the ATMs of the Bank will be handed over during
the next three months.

The Bank has launched its first Mobile ATM in
Chennai Region. The ATM is functioning using GPRS
Connectivity and has been functioning successfully
with an average 200 transactions daily.

New [T initiatives include projects on implementation
Technology aided Financial Inclusion Plan, setting
up of Kiosks with features like Cheque Deposit
System (CDS)/Cheque Truncation System (CTS) and
e-ticketing. Further, implementation of ERP-SAP
solution, which will enable corporate customers to
connect to the bank’s network directly for straight
through processing of transactions like bill payments,
LG/LC requests, utility payments etc., is in the process.

Oracle Business Intelligence Suite is being
implemented. This solution will provide dashboards
and tools, which will enable generation of various
reports. This will help the Executives at Central Office,
Regional Office and Branch Managers to use the
tools to generate reports that will help them to do
trend analysis and assist in taking business
decisions.

The Bank played the major role in assisting the
Regional Rural Banks sponsored by our Bank
(Pandyan Grama Bank and Neelachal Gramya Bank)
to establish their Data Centre at Siruseri, Chennai
and Disaster Recovery Centre at Hyderabad. They
have been assisted in finalizing the procurement of
hardware, network equipments and in establishing
network connectivity. Both the Banks have gone on
line and brought some of their branches under their
CBS.

Technology Aided Financial Inclusion Plan

The Bank has launched a technology assisted
smartcard based Financial Inclusion Project to initially
cover about 300 branches with a coverage of about
1,500 smart cards per branch. Appointment of
Business correspondents and issuance of smartcards
is outsourced to M/s TCS Lid.

During the year, various policies like the Business
Continuity Plan and Disaster Recovery (BCP / DR)
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Policy, IT Procurement Policy, IT Outsourcing Policy
and Information System Security Policy have been
put in place.

Costing of Operations

The Costing Cell prepares the profit budget for the
Bank and allocation of profit budgets to individual
Regions for onward distribution to branches.
Periodical review note on profitability of the bank
vis-a-vis budget are placed to Top Management. In
this process, cost of operations and income
generation are monitored on a continuous basis and
corrective actions are initiated wherever necessary.
Cost and yield factors are analylsed periodically and
any major variations are reported to Top Management
besides taking up with concerned regions
immediately for further action. Statement of Intent
submitted to Finance Ministry involves projecting
growth of key parameters based on past
performance, present market trends and future
potentials.

Security

The effective implementation of security measures
at branches and administrative offices ensured a safe
environment for business for customers and staff.
The security measures were reviewed periodically
keeping in view the local law and order situation
and additional steps as necessary were taken to
strengthen the security measures. The Bank
continued to stress on preventive measures for
security and fire fighting arrangements and
inculcation of security consciousness among staff to
ensure safety to life and property.

Human Resources Development
Staff Strength

The Bank’s staff strength in India stood at 26,732
comprising 10,252 Officers, 11,997 Clerks and 4,483
Sub-staff as of March 31, 2010.

Of the total staff strength, 6,421 members belonged
to SC category, 1,473 to ST Category, and 2,282 to
OBC Category. Staff Strength includes 5,543 Women
employees, 1,847 employees from Religious minority
community, 769 ex-servicemen and 556 physically
challenged members.

HR Initiative

During the year 2009-10, the Bank recruited 98
Specialist Officers (52 Financial Analysts, 41
Marketing Managers and 5 HR/IR Officers), besides
769 Probationary Officers and 1040 Clerks.

Motivation

As a part of staff motivation, Quiz Programme was
conducted by Bank both for Officers and Award Staff
members. Towards staff motivation and self-
development, HR Motivation series on various Human
Developmental aspects is circulated to all Staff
Members.
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Training

Keeping in view the mission of the bank “to enrich
Human Capital through all-round development aiming
at providing excellent customer service & value
appreciation to shareholders” training is imparted on
contemporary issues of banking apart from basic
areas of banking through the internal and external
mode. The focus continued to be on Credit Appraisal/
Credit Monitoring, NPA Management & Recovery in
addition to Risk Management and Computer
awareness. Apart from the above, training was also
given in Foreign Exchange, Priority Credit, KYC/ AML,
BCSBI, SME /Micro Finance & Rural Credit, IT
Products. Programme for Inspectors, Preventive
Vigilance, Management Development programme for
AGMs & Chief Managers were also conducted.

Induction programme for newly recruited probationary
officers were conducted apart from Orientation
programme & Pre Confirmation Programme for
Probationary Officers.

Pre Promotion Training for SC/ST members who are
eligible for promotion from Sub Staff to Clerical cadre
was conducted at various Staff Training Centres.

Special emphasis was given on programmes like
Marketing of the bank’s products, SME Finance,
Marketing of CASA & Ancillary Services, apart from
Region specific programmes & on location programme
for efficient handling of branches. Session on
Compliance Policies, Official Language
Implementation and Preventive Vigilance were
included in the general training programmes
conducted at Staff Training College and Staff Training
Centres. Training slots were allotted to different Central
Office Departments for organising ad-hoc
programmes to enable them to train key functionaries
at Branches/ Regional Offices on new emerging
areas.

The Pre Retirement counseling programme was
conducted for Officers and Award Staff Members who
retired during the year. Bank has engaged the
services of retired executives on contract basis in
training system to derive the benefit of their
experience, knowledge and expertise in various
facets of banking.

Executives were nominated for overseas training to
acquire international perspective on banking &
technology and share their expertise and experience
with other participants.

As a part of E-Learning ,a portal was launched by
Staff College , to serve as a vehicle for providing
e-lessons on different areas of banking operations.

Internal Training

The internal training system comprises of a Staff
College, 9 Staff Training Centres and one Rural
Banking Training Centre. Internal training was
imparted to 15,613 staff comprising of 8,548 Officers,
5,915 Clerical and 1,150 Sub-staff by conducting 995
programmes. Of the total staff trained 3,205 belonged
to SC, and 1,104 belonged to ST.
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External Training and Overseas Training

The Bank had also deputed 48 Executives and
270 Officers for training programmes conducted by
reputed external institutes. Apart from these 8
executives and 6 officers were deputed for training
abroad.

Training for Staff of RRB’s

The Bank had also trained 508 staff members of
Neelachal Gramya Bank and Pandyan Grama Bank
through 33 Training Programmes. Of the total staff
trained 88 belonged to SC and 3 belonged to ST .

Prospects

The year 2010-11 is expected to witness improved
economic performance, revival of export demand and
more conducive global economic environment. All
these positive features are expected to strengthen
the economy and launch it on a higher growth path
in the subsequent years.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR 2009-10

A. MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

1. BANK’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF
GOVERNANCE:

Corporate Governance provides the all-important
structure through which the objectives of an
organization are set as well as determines the means
of attaining those objectives and monitoring
performance. The primary objective of sound corporate
governance is to contribute to improved corporate
performance and accountability in creating long term
shareholder value.

The Bank has been scrupulously ensuring
compliances with norms laid down by regulatory
authorities in all areas. The Bank has always been
proactive in adopting as well as practicing good
Corporate Governance. The Board recognizes
its accountability to all stakeholders of the Bank
for creating, protecting and enhancing wealth and
resources for the Bank and reporting to them
on its performance in a timely and transparent
manner. It is the Bank’s endeavour to ensure the
implementation of best practices for the purpose
of enhancing corporate governance and in turn
benefiting shareholder interests.

The Bank appreciates its fiduciary duty and
responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of its overall
governance process, for ensuring the maintenance
of effective financial reporting and disclosure norms
and adherence to high ethical standards.

The Bank’s Corporate Governance policies are
based on the following principles:

= Satisfy the law both in letter and in spirit

= Be transparent and maintain a high degree
of disclosure levels.

= Communicate externally in a truthful manner
about how the bank is run internally

= Comply with laws of all the countries in which
the Bank operates

= Realise that management is only the trustee
and custodian of the public funds and not
the owner

The Bank’s existing corporate vision: To be a
Leader in terms of Profit and Growth and also
providing Safe & Ethical Banking Services to
Customers. The Bank will continue to focus its
resources, strengths and strategies to achieve this
vision.
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2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:;
a. Composition:

The business of the Bank is vested with the Board
of Directors. The CMD and two EDs function
under the superintendence, direction and control
of the Board. The strength as on 31.03.2010 is
twelve directors comprising three whole time
Directors and nine non-executive Directors, which
includes three directors elected by the
shareholders to duly represent their interest.

b. Particulars of directors who held office
during the financial year 2009-2010:

F.5. Ry EECit] frwsma ffma afsadm

@Ey GiriEe] Tarfage/
EIREICES
T
1 fimguge qFIAYEY  FEqed/  04.06.2007 -
ECtiE ToiEfe®
2 ot sft TRETH Frefes FEwes/  07.11.2007  31.10.2009
EERED qufepfer @ Farga
3 ot ar T weH FEUe®  FEwes/  16.05.2008 -
s buEitced
4 sftert o FrRfmeE  @Emas/  07.12.2009 -
ECtiE oiEf®
5 gl fadmER T A g 10.06.2008 -
fRys -
6 Sind EndgaeivaE aRdES  WaEETes 27.02.2007 -
e freve
7 fwded FaRFHE WERTEs 20.04.2007 -
ECtc
g At Tl e W TEE 09.03.2006  30.11.2009
ECtiE & e
T
9 o FaHIFR At RaFHes 26.03.2010 -
et e
10 ot v @ffs faspm T eEE TEETes 11.10.2006 10.10.2009
R/ & FEe
ENEIE @ fea
IEecati)
11 st e v/ T FET 29.08.2008 -
-
hirgsrcarit
12 fgwah frRes/  WEHwTE® 26.10.2009 -
ENENI e
Bekereatil
13 e anfa TRAE  WEETes 08.12.2008 -
ECtiE
14 = fsfia @ TRARE  WEETEs 08.12.2008 -
ECtiE
15 A udwi IS WEETeEs 08.12.2008 -

SI' Name of the Director Designation  Nature of Date of Retirement/

No Directorship ~ Appointment demission of
office during
the year

01 Shri S A Bhat Chairman & Executive/  04.06.2007 —

Managing ~ Whole Time

Director

02 Shri G Narayanan Executive Executive /  07.11.2007 31.10.2009 -
Director Whole Time Retired

03 Shri Y L Madan Executive Executive/  16.05.2008 —
Director Whole Time

04 Smt.NupurMitra Executive Executive /

Director Whole Time ~ 07.12.2009 —

Govt. Nominee Official —
Director Non Executive 10.06.2008 —

06  Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran ~ RBI Nominee  Non Executive 27.02.2007 —
Director

07 Shri N Sridaran Workmen
Employee
Director

08 Shri J D Sharma Officer Non Executive 09.03.2006 30.11.2009 -
Employee demitted office
Director

09 Shri K. Ananda Kumar  Officer
Employee
Director Non Executive 26.03.2010

10 Shri M. Ravindra Vikram  Chartered Non Executive 11.10.2006 10.10.2009 -
Accountant demitted office
Director
Part time -
Non official

11 Shri B V Appa Rao Director/
Part-time
Non - Official

12 Shri Sooraj Khatri Director /
Part-time
Non - Official

13 Shri AK. Bhargava Shareholder
Director Non Executive 08.12.2008 —

05 Dr. Vinita Kumar

Non Executive 20.04.2007 —

Non Executive 29.08.2008 —

Non Executive 26.10.2009

14 Dr. Chiranjib Sen Shareholder
Director Non Executive 08.12.2008 —
15 Shri A Vellayan Shareholder

Director Non Executive 08.12.2008 —
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Profile of Directors of the Bank is enclosed
as an Annexure.

It is declared that none of the directors are related
to each other or related to any of the employees
of the bank.

The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for
Directors and all the General Managers and a
declaration has been obtained from the CMD
confirming their compliance with the Code of
Conduct and is attached to this report.

Shri K Sundar Rajan, Deputy General Manager,
a qualified Company Secretary, attached to Board
Services Department, is also the Secretary to the
Board, in accordance with the recommendations
of the Dr. Ganguly Committee.

c. Meetings of the Board:

The date and place of the meeting as well as
the agenda papers are advised to all Directors
well in advance. The Directors have access to
all additional information on the agenda.
Executives of the Bank are also invited to attend
the Board meetings to provide necessary
clarifications. During the year under review, the
meetings of the Board were held 12 times as
against the requirement of holding meetings at
least once a quarter with a minimum of six times
a year.

e During the financial year 2009-10, the Board
meetings were held 12 times on the following

6.9 a3k Sk ard@ T dates and places :

1 04.05.2009 a4 SL NO. DATE OF MEETING PLACE HELD

2 13.06.2009 | 01 04.05.2009 Chennai

3 05.07.2009 a4 02 13.06.2009 Chennai

4 29.07..2009 feeett 03 05.07.2009 Chennai

5 18.08.2009 a9 04 29.07.2009 Delhi

6 22.09.2009 a9 05 18.08.2009 Chennai

7 20.10.2009 I3 06 22.09.2009 Chennai

8 29.11.2009 Eﬁ?’ﬁh—lﬁT 07 29.10.2009 Chennai

10 78.01.2010 33 09 04.01.2010 Chennai

pos — 10 28.01.2010 Chennai

B ig'giggig o 11 24.02.2010 Delhi

0o 1 12 30.03.2010 Mumbai
° mﬂ ok 3 I & T T o fa et All the meetings were conducted with proper

H TN quorum and without any adjournments.

o TEA® Il N feiH 04.07.2009 i AT
fuseh wsium & fadvmel ot sultafa = & m=ft 2 -

Attendance of the directors at the above
Board meetings and last AGM held on
04.07.2009 are furnished below:




F.9. AR & W qrr et el wsiea 5 SI.  Name of Director Number of  Attendance in
T A3 ey No. Board Meetings the last AGM
@ e attended/Held
1 S v ae, waufa 12/12 ki 01 Shri. S A Bhat, CMD 12 /12 Yes
2 Adaww  obr d G Y L Madan 0 N
! ri adan o

3 A, 7. T 10/12 @ 04  Smt. Nupur Mitra 04/04 Appointed after
4 o e e 04/04 TS S A & 1R the date of AGM
5 3l fEfar g 07/12 Bl 05 Dr. Vinita Kumar 07/12 No
6 sftqd REreedtetva 11/12 el 06 Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran ~ 11/12 No

" 07 Shri N Sridaran 12/12 Yes
7 A A 12712 i 08 Shri J D Sharma 07/07 Yes
8 At 1. <. 07/07 @ 09 Shri.K.Ananda Kumar 01/01 Appointed after
9  ofi.F IH IR 01/01 TS i e o e e the date of AGM
10 ot @ iz fasm 06/06 & 10 Shri M. Ravindra Vikram 06/06 Yes
11 Sy 06/06 e o anfi e e 11 Shri Sooraj Khatri 06/06 Appointed after
12 shsh ot smmae 11/12 & the date of AG

. 12 Shri B V Appa Rao 11/12 Yes
13 A 11/12 a 13 Shri A K Bhargava 11112 Yes
14 e fRseEs 09/12 Bl 14 Dr. Chiranjib Sen 09/12 No
15 AT dedad 03/12 & 15  Shri A Vellayan 03/12 Yes

Y. 3 HUSH AT HUSH (Al h G&
FRY% Ueh USET LT & :

d. Number of other Boards or Board
committees in which the Director is a
member / Chairperson:

Name of the Director ~ Number of other companies Number of

(excluding private companies) Committees

[t EEIE ST Sl & G afufaa it g
(forsft huferedt 1 Biea) s 3w §
ol & wew /e € (3113 31 &t = BrgwR)
(Fhfees / e
39T I Bz i

ot w s amfa 03 - Ge= 01- 37eet

02 - g2=

A T 02 - 37T 06 - T&=
0l - 9a=

SAECIEEE] 0l - T&=1 =

s, wHfaal 9 9ESdn:

Ted & ARy & 9 &g off 10 gfufaat @ e1fers § gew
7 §  ooft St §, frad 3 fys & e affe 9
e | o1eme7 % ®9 F vy 7§ 1 (Tfes R FH
e 49(1) () F Tl o TTHR H S A 5 T
T, TG-Ien q91 I GRS {hEd qiufd @ reem/
ewrd W & faEr fhar T g |

3. #ed ® |HfE:

fofar wfthen & gfaen asft @= & fofe #ea = f=fataa
gfufaat Mfeq Ft § 3t 3% foviy sfER oft Ru & 1 &=
o & g il e daw & guel qfie 3

TET 6T S € q91 SHIEA U T Sega # fawe
Hed & quel Yudd Hed dos H G fhar S @ |

in which he/she

(other than 10B)

is a member/Chairperson in which
of the Board (excluding a member
alternate/ nominee director)
Shri A.K. Bhargava 03 - Member 01 - Chairman
02 - Member
Shri A Vellayan 02 - Chairman 06 - Member
01 - Member
Dr. Chiranjib Sen 01 - Member Nil

e. Membership in Committees:

None of the directors on the Board is a member in
more than 10 committees or acts as a Chairman of
more than five committees across all companies in
which he is a director. (For the purpose of reckoning
the limit in terms of clause 49(1)(C) of the listing
agreement, the chairmanship/membership of the Audit
Committee and the Shareholders’ Grievance
Committee alone have been considered).

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

In order to facilitate the decision-making process,
Board has constituted the following committees
and delegated specific powers to them. The
minutes of each meeting are subsequently placed
before the next meeting of the committee for
confirmation and the minutes thus approved, are
placed before the Board Meeting for their
information.




e 3.1 HEa ® wdyw @iHfa (TH o )

Heol it Jaed QA H Te TR a8 (T T
fafae grag™) ST 1970 & S9aHE o SFHR R T
21 e & R # e A R

%F. SUR THE H Wgpd & (AR semla i 1
fafer smenia)

g, T SR A GHEA/AEE W § eleH % I

T S ud o = & STHIEd & (oY g

¥, IREE AT W AR 3R e & ey ge,
TRER & o & forw 9 sifewgor & e Arevel &
A dfed
qre/3rdTe AR HAT, TR Ffeare HeT T
TR ST 371 STHIfEa gfafea, sufi & v
3R fed=di | grfierd wfed frawr S
ol
3 g fawg S &I g/ yereq qinfa & " T
il
e (F) T (F), 316997 9 Yoy (RS & (AR
* R gl & gag § 2

Gfufq a9 & S 23 a) et gt d3e 3fa wiE &
o T U i s @t e |

femi 01.04.2009 G 31.03.2010 % &t 37af¥ & S
giufa 3t dadl & =R 3 TAF G g 36 FRFA
¥ 3 daal § IURAf i g faEfafad g

Q%
&

e 3.1 Management Committee of the Board
(MCB):

MCB is constituted as per the provisions of the
Nationalized Banks (Management and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970. The
functions and duties of the MCB are as under:

a. Sanctioning of credit proposals (funded and
non funded)

b. Loan and Interest Compromise / Write off
proposals

c. Proposals for approval of capital and revenue
expenditure

d. Proposals relating to acquisition and hiring
of premises, including deviation from norms
for acquisition and hiring of premises.

e. Filing of suits / appeals, defending them etc.

f.  Investments in Government and other
approved securities, shares and debentures
of companies, including underwriting.

g. Donations

h.  Any other matter referred to the Management
Committee by the Board.

ltems (a) to (g) will be in respect of proposals
beyond the discretionary powers of CMD.

The committee met 23 times during the year.
All the meetings were conducted with proper
quorum and without any adjournments.

The Members who held office during the period
01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010 and the details of
number of meetings attended during their tenure
by each committee member are as under:

%. 9. feys & 99 o AT 31 3afy ISH T Sl Name of Director Position  Tenure of membership  Number of
No. From To Megtings
il % st attendgd
1 Miwguaesayfy g 04.06.2007 23/23 1. Shri S.A. Bhat, CMD Chaiman  04.06.2007 2323
2 oft St AR = 07.11.2007  31.10.2009 14/14 2. Shri G. Narayanan Member ~ 07.11.2007 31.102009 14714
3 sftaE uamee = 16.05.2008 21/23 3. ShriY L Madan Member  16.05.2008 21/23
4 ftmet o o = (7.12.2009 06/07 4. Smt. Nupur Mitra Member ~ 07.12.2009 06/07
5 st e HgEel v we= 12.07.2007 21/23 5. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran Member ~ 12.07.2007 21/23
6 oft um s fosm e 11.10.2006  10.10.2009 11/12 6. Shri M. Ravindra Vikram Member 11102006 10.10.2009  11/12
7 ftusdanta ge=  01.12.2008  31.05.2009 7. Shi AK. Bhargava Member  01.12.2008 31.05.2009
01.12.2009 31.05.2010 10/11 01.122009 31.052010  10/11
8  eiRRSiagT Feg 08.12.2008  07.06.2009 7. Dr. Chiranjib Sen Member  08.12.2008 07.06.2009
08.12.2009 07.06.2010  08/11 08122009 (07.062010  08/M
9 st qu}w &= 22.03.2009  21.09.2009 10/11 8. Shri N. Sridaran Member ~ 22.03.2009 21.09.2009 10/11
10 sttt som g = 01.06.2009  30.11.2009 10/12 9. ShriB.V. Appa Rao Member  01.06.2009 30.11.2009 1012
11 %ﬁqa“m?m =@ 08.06.2009  07.12.2009 00/12 10. Shri A. Vellayan Member  08.06.2009 07122009  00/12
11. Shri Sooraj Khatri Member  29.10.2009 28.04.2010 0910

12 dgEet " 29.10.2009  28.04.2010 09/10




e 3.2 #Wed HI @ yhen wiHfa (THish)

Ted S o gden gy ardtE s s /9N R &
SR % IR FRYs Fed g e e 71 wfufy
# T Gae §- & HE T (R, g Ry, ARt
fisd d% Ry, @ W el s [ 4 s g9d
AWHR & AN YRT TWHR & o, 3w 18.02.2008
F Il % STTUR JTohehrit At (STHHT BT 3T ST 3Feom)
st 1970/1980 &t &RT 9(3) (i) 3 e AfHa Tt
&7 3 dal Bl Hed H @ e gHfy § A-wwd
Td AWHR H IMHA FH 2 AR TH 7
AR Tet T 2 |

Hed ow wem Tl & F1d 9 Fefer faeEr @

o % U HWy @l yden Hd & e & 2@-19
AT I AT 311 9T T gdter Akt §
oI 1 3T7afieh fArteroT @ T werr s HeH, TorEdr
=0T & URETe T 3 A 91 R e o
& e & wifafes /aed darier F sadd
T

o % ¥ graret aviafte ftevy/crmrodten wt wrftan
HET A o Fad § FUel, TR oA qdn
gl i THe FT 3 fafdre qor aga 9t
IS ST TS ATaret Teft wmns #
e BT

o FREN &l o U AN 9 3¢ afen
i g1 T @ 3 ST geftem

o Tifaf¥e o when =it feurd qem At wif crar-wden
e (TAUHUaR) § 33T U geft 7l W ST
g geien HTT S i/ fache faawon qen fRavef

& Sifan 9 37 T UEA T AW WeThl & WY
foem fausf e

o T Rsd % &t fafierny Ruiefl § 3o 7w gt
ae /fedree fawal @ e T SEa S
g Tify faerve fafarad amd W 9 = 3 @

= I - G GHSH @

= 3% dUT AL Wil | s 7 G FHHAT
dfea wfafeat

D
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e 3.2 Audit Committee of the Board (ACB):

The Audit committee of the Board has been
constituted by the Board of Directors as per
instructions of the Reserve Bank of India/GOIl and
consists of six members comprising of two EDs,
Government director, RBI director, two non-official
directors of which one is a Chartered Accountant
and non-official Chartered Accountant director
nominated under section 9(3)(g) of the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of
Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 in terms of GOI
Circular dated 18.02.2008 advising Public Sector
Banks to include such Director in the Audit
Committee of the Board.

The delegated functions and duties of the ACB
are as under:

= To provide direction as also oversee the
operation of the total audit
function in the Bank. Total audit function will
imply the organization, operationalisation and
quality control of the internal audit and
inspection within the Bank and follow up on
the statutory / external audit of the Bank
and inspections of RBI.

= To review the internal inspection / audit
function in the Bank — the system, its quality
and effectiveness in terms of follow-up and
also the inspection reports of specialized and
extra large branches and all branches with
unsatisfactory ratings

= To obtain and review half — yearly reports
from the Compliance Officers of the functional
areas

= To review and follow up on the report of
the statutory audits, and all the issues raised
in the Long Form Audit Report (LFAR) and
interact with the external auditors before the
finalization of the annual / quarterly financial
statements and reports.

= To review and follow up all the issues /
concerns raised in the Inspection reports of
RBI.

This committee specially focuses on the follow-
up of:

= Inter — Branch Adjustment Accounts

= Unreconciled long outstanding entries in Inter
— Bank Accounts and Nostro Accounts




= fafte vmarsd | afedl & e § 98 &1 gae
= el e sawen gedh o wft ym &

Wi TS § geftag gt afvrfas S @ Rt
fisrd @ g1 S St WA F oAl o TR HORE

T R el WHEd S eiar-uden giufd & fefafad
Al & fefFat |9t T

o Tfufd & arefiq ot oft nifafafey & Sif= ggdaret S|
o [t of = O SR 9T HET |
o L ¥ fafts 1 3= AEEIS Hag 9T T |

o S&I U W Hefyd fqwg § fagivgdr ot el
AfFT Hl AHET FET

AaEr-uden 9iufd & wEf § ot foeAe sEt & s

frefafiad s ot wfa 2:

o HU H forita fRwfdm yomelt W gfte T e ST
farta ST 1 TeheTahtul AT difsh I8 Gfrdad
fepan ST |eh o6 farta foamor Wit , wafe qon fava-fia
g

o TG AT 7 =N WAL A 3Y, AGERLT
AFe T STUEH X 3 HAA TE@l BT
T g ot foaott &1 qdieon o o Wi faita
foawoll & geige @ gefian |

o 3T fAFFUT JUIeh &t yAiwer it THteT yee,
el UF Fals oEr qherhl & g T |

o TEAYU WU & Al v yumeht # faherar
71 it a1 ey et gadt gegs ame §
3fafeh AQ@IHeTsh 3R &1 T3 AR S & o
1 TG0 F A Fl AE Bl RS BT

o TG YF B § Teel @I B WET AN
foR & aR § aedt on werh o 919 == i &

TI-T1Y AGT-T0eT & a8 fheft s &7 & 9
T & foT ==t &E |

o Ul @t fachta den sifiaq geiea fifast =t gefen
HET |

Vi
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= Arrears in balancing of books at various
branches

= Frauds and all other major areas of house
— keeping,

The following additional role functions/powers have
been entrusted to ACB in terms of SEBI
Committee on Corporate Governance guidelines
issued by RBI to Indian Commercial Banks listed
on stock exchanges:

e To investigate any activity within its terms
of reference.

e To seek information from any employee.

e To obtain outside legal or other professional
advice.

e To secure attendance of outsiders with
relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

The role of the Audit Committee shall also include
the following in addition to the existing role
function:

e Overseeing of the company’s financial
reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and
credible.

e Reviewing with the Management the financial
statements with special emphasis on
accounting policies and practices,
compliance of accounting standards and
other legal requirements concerning the
financial statements.

e Reviewing with the Management, external and
internal auditors, the adequacy of internal
control systems.

e Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board.

e Discussing with external auditors before the
commencement of audit the nature and scope
of audit as well as having post audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

e Reviewing the company’s Financial and Risk
Management Policies.




T & A Gl fe i 06.04.2009, 04.05.2009,
29.07.2009, 26.08.2009, 19.09.2009, 29.10.2009,
05.12.2009, 15.12.2009, 28.01.2010 T& 24.02.2010
10 IR fireft

geft 93% 3T BE F Y Wi HU T R &
e
fede 01.04.2009 § 31.03.2010 T &t 37@f¥ & 0

giufa 3t dadi & AR 3R T&E G5 g0 35S FAHA
& 2N da § IURAfY g fefafad 2

HEE it Iy CECIE:
3 GED 3uftefa

%. §. fRv &1 W I

| sftumefizfass s@emr 08.12.2007 10.10.2009  04/05
2 oft st ARTETH &= 07.11.2007 31.10.2009  06/06
3 fiaE AR & 16.05.2008 09/10
4 st g e = 07.12.2009 03/03
5 = faia R e 10.06.2008 09/10
6 i fEdsideE W= 27.02.2007 09/10
7 AT, Ao gE= 09.12.2008 08.12.2010  02/10
8 sfidft. A emym  wld S 11.10.2009 28.08.2011 0505

eI 93

I faffad

T/ e

e 3.3 WIfEw ysua 9iHla

T4 9y & 39w §% & a9 81 9 1.4.2009
g 31.3.2010 & = 6 a1 firch | g% Ge=T g daal §
SURAM & &R e &

%.4. Ry &9 Tl i A Ercok:l
) T Sufafy
1 Mg T g 04.06.2007 6/6

2 off St TR 01.12.2007  31.10.2009 3/3

3 dftaR.udmEn 16.05.2008 4/6
4wl q@imn 07.12.2009 3/3
5w fEEsddE 27.02.2007 6/6
6 s R emmam 08.12.2008 6/6
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The committee met 10 times during the year on
06.04.2009, 04.05.2009, 29.07.2009, 26.08.2009,
19.09.2009, 29.10.2009, 05.12.2009, 15.12.2009,
28.01.2010 and 24.02.2010.

All the meetings were conducted with proper
quorum and without any adjournments.

The members who held office during the period
01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010 and the particulars of
the number of meetings attended by them during
the year are as under:

Sl Name of Director Position  Tenure of membership ~ Number of
No. From T Megtings
attended
1. Shri M. Ravindra Vikram Chairman  08.12.2007 10.10.2009  04/05
2 Shri G. Narayanan Member ~ 07.11.2007 31.10.2009  06/06
3 ShriY L Madan Member ~ 16.05.2008 0910
4 Smt. Nupur Mitra Member  07.12.2009 03/03
5. Dr. Vinita Kumar Member ~ 10.06.2008 0910
6. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran Member ~ 27.02.2007 0910
7. Shri A Vellayan Member ~ 09.12.2008 08.12.2010  02/10
8. ShriB.V. Appa Rao Membe/ ~ 11.10.2009 28.08.2011 0505
Chairman
elect at each
megting of ACB

e 3.3 Risk Management Committee:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of
the Bank. The committee met 6 times during
the period 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010. Number of
Meetings attended by each Committee Member
during the year:

Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri S.A. Bhat 04.06.2007 6/6
2. Shri G. Narayanan 01.12.2007  31.10.2009 3/3
3. Shri'Y L Madan 16.05.2008 476
4. Smt. Nupur Mitra 07.12.2009 3/3
5. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran 27.02.2007 6/6
6. ShriB V Appa Rao 08.12.2008 6/6

o 3.4 9l AeHarce wi@mHiEA & (AT geieA
geeh arifa
gfufy & sty 9% % wanfA F1 gy 01.04.2009

¥ 31.03.2010 i 7Y o SH Th aR et | a9 &
S 9T & Toe 92T g 9N fu dal it g |

e 3.4 Committee For Monitoring Large Value
Frauds:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of
the Bank. The committee met once during the
period 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010. Number of
meetings attended by each member of the
committee during the year:




)

Y

w4, FRvE %W e A Ay Foa Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership Number of

a % Syfeafy No. From To Meetings

attended
I Awew 04.06.2007 7 1. Shri S. A . Bhat 04.06.2007 1/1
2 AT 29.11.2008 1 2. Shri Y L Madan 29.11.2008 1/1
3 At R e 07.12.2009 1 3. Smt. Nupur Mitra 07.12.2009 1/1
4 SlfeimgaR 10.06.2008 11 4. Dr. Vinita Kumar 10.06.2008 1/1
5 oft. w3, anfg 29.11.2009 /1 5. Shri A.K. Bhargava 29.11.2009 1/1
6 Afu. et 29.11.2009 0/1 6 Shri A Vellayan 29.11.2009 0/1

3.5 UTgsh 9ar |iHfa

i o e 9% & AT 71 01.04.2009 9
31.03.210 & 3@y & S Gifd 3 ax et | af &
AU GG & TS GeH R 9N {7 93l & G

%.9. ey & am HEEd S afy CECIR
) T Sufafy
1 f T T 9 04.06.2007 3/3

2 off St TR 02.01.2008  31.10.2009 2/2

3 dteE. va wem 16.05.2008 3/3
4 sfmh @i 07.12.2009 11
5 o fafa g 10.06.2008 2/3
6  dwdfEEsEdE 27.02.2007 3/3
7 AR e 20.04.2007 3/3
8 oS & owmi 09.03.2006  25.09.2009 212

9 o &ft. = 3o e 30.01.2009 3/3

e 3.5 Customer Service Committee:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of
the Bank. The committee met 3 times during
the period 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010. Number of
meetings attended by each member of the
committee during the year:

S, Name of Director Tenure of membership Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri S. A. Bhat 04.06.2007 3/3
2. Shri G. Narayanan 02.01.2008 31.10.2009 2 /2
3. Shri Y L Madan 16.05.2008 3/ 3
4. Smt. Nupur Mitra 07.12.2009 1/1
5. Dr. Vinita Kumar 10.06.2008 2/ 3
6. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran ~ 27.02.2007 3/3
7. Shri N. Sridaran 20.04.2007 3/3
8. Shri J.D. Sharma 09.03.2006 25.09.2009 2/ 2
9. Shri B V Appa Rao 30.01.2009 3/ 3

o 3.6 FFIEIIH FATA ki TFT&IT 8,
urHra

(e o5 7ezel sieh o .89, 81 01.04.2009
T 31.03.2010 =R 37a(¥r 5 ST QU 4 =T e
| oS s U WS 95 Ycksh "EE g 9T g
AT h AT :

3.6 Committee For Review Of Disciplinary
Cases:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of
the Bank. The committee met 4 times during
the period 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010. Number
of meetings attended by each member of the
committee during the year:

55, FRYE ST e =5d Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership Numbelr of
3 = Sufafy No. From To Meetings
attended
1 Eilcmtes 04.06.2007 4/4 1. Shri S. A. Bhat 04.06.2007 4/ 4
2 oft Sft. AR 01.12.2007  31.10.2009 2/2 2. Shri G. Narayanan 01.12.2007 31.10.2009 2 /2
3 dftaE va wem 16.05.2008 4/4 3. Shri Y L Madan 16.05.2008 474
4 ofteet T fEe 07.12.2009 212 4. Smt. Nupur Mitra 07.12.2009 2/2
5 st fafmgm 10.06.2008 3/4 5. Dr. Vinita Kumar 10.06.2008 3/ 4
6 fimdfEEsmEeiveE 27.02.2007 4/4

6. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran  27.02.2007 4/ 4




e 3.7 WUssehel @Il skl TLTUAT a5 11T
wrara

aify & seme §% & .89 g1 01.04.2009 &
31.03.2010 &t 37af¥y & 2 9T 2 ar el | av &
S WAl & Y& 9= g 9N {7 dadh & G

F.41 ARl & am e it 3y EECIk:)

) e Sufeafa
1. dfw@uow 04.06.2007 22
2. s e 01.122007 31102009  1/1
3. dtaE. va mem 30.05.2008 2/2
4. s anfg 09.12.2008 2/2
5. it R e 09.12.2008 212

e 3.8 Umistiier wiHld
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e 3.9 AMIshA HiHT
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e 3.7 Committee For Establishment Of
Correspondent Accounts:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of
the Bank. The committee met 2 times during
the period 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010. Number of
meetings attended by each member of the
committee during the year:

Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri S. A Bhat 04.06.2007 2/2
2. Shri G. Narayanan 01.12.2007 31.10.2009 1 /1
3. Shri Y L Madan 30.05.2008 2/2
4. Shri A.K. Bhargava 09.12.2008 2/2
5. Shri B V Appa Rao 09.12.2008 2/2

e 3.8 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Remuneration (excluding performance linked
incentive) payable to the whole time directors is
decided by the Central Government. The Bank
does not pay any remuneration to other directors
except sitting fees as per directives of Central
Government.

A Remuneration Committee, a Sub-Committee of the
Board of Directors, has been constituted for evaluating
the performance in terms of government guidelines
and to recommend payment of performance-linked
incentives to the whole time directors of the Bank,
in terms of Government of India, Ministry of Finance
(Banking Division) letter F. No. 20 / 1 / 2005 — BO-
| dated 09.03.2007.

The members of the Committee are :-

Shri M Ravindra Vikram - Chairman
Dr. Vinita Kumar

Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran

Shri A.K. Bhargava

The Committee met once on 04.05.2009 and all
members of the Committee have attended the
meeting.

e 3.9 NOMINATION COMMITTEE :

RBI, vide circular ref: DBOD. No. BC. No.47 /
29.39.001 / 2007-08 dated 01 11 2007, pursuant
to the amendment in The Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970 effective 16.10.2006, has issued necessary
guidelines for determining the authority, manner/
procedure and criteria for deciding the ‘Fit and
Proper’ status etc., while appointing the Directors.

Eal
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RBI has directed that the “Fit and Proper” criteria,
as of now, be made applicable to the elected
directors (Shareholder directors) — both present
and future.

The committee would be constituted at an
appropriate time.

4. SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMITTEES:
a. Shareholders Grievance Committee:

The Shareholders Grievance Committee,
constituted in April 2001, was last reconstituted
by the Board on 29.12.2008, consequent to the
election of Shareholder Directors at the EGM held
on 25.11.2008.

At present, the Chairman of the Committee is
Shri A Vellayan and the other members are two
directors nominated by the Board. The committee
met 4 times during the period 01.04.2009 to
31.03.2010. All the meetings were conducted with
proper quorum and without any adjournments.
The number of meetings attended by each
committee member during the year is as follows:

Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership Number of

No. From To Meetings
attended

1. Shri A.Vellayan 08.12.2008 2/4

2. Shri G Narayanan 01.04.2008 31.10.2009 22

3. Shri Y L Madan* 29.05.2008 7

4. Smt. Nupur Mitra** 07.12.2009 71

5. Dr. Chiranjib Sen 08.12.2008 3/4

* Appointed to attend meetings as a member
of the Shareholders Grievance Committee In the
absence or inability of Shri G Narayanan, ED to
attend meetings.

** Appointed to attend meetings as a member
of the Shareholders Grievance Committee in the
absence or inability of Shri Y.L.Madan, ED to
attend meetings.

The Shareholders’ Grievance Committee
appointed a Practicing Company Secretary, Shri
V Suresh, to undertake the Secretarial Audit in
the office of the Registrar, at periodical intervals
to verify the methodology followed by them
involving Shareholders Grievances & Redressal
system etc. The committee considers his quarterly
reports at every meeting.

b. Share Transfer Committee:

Share Transfer Committee consists of the Chairman
and Managing Director or in his absence the
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Executive Director, one shareholder Director and
one Director nominated by the Board. The
committee deals with all matters connected with
share transfers, transmission, issue of duplicate
share certificates, transposition, demat / remat
etc., The committee met 23 times during the year
and all the meetings were conducted with proper
quorum and without any adjournments.

The number of meetings attended by each
committee member during the year is as under:

Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1 Shri G Narayanan 01.04.2008 31.10.2009 11 / 11
2 Shri Y L Madan * 29.05.2008 11/ 11
3 Smt. Nupur Mitra** 07.12.2009 01/ 01
4 Smt Chitra Chandramouliswaran ~ 29.10.2009 29.03.2010 10 / 10
5 Shri A Vellayan 08.12.2008 04.05.2009 02 / 02
6 Shri J. D. Sharma 09.03.2006 25.09.2009 09 / 10
7 Dr. Chiranjib Sen 04.05.2009 16 / 21
8 Shri K. Ananda Kumar 30.03.2010 01/ 01

*Appointed to act as Chairman of the Share
Transfer Committee In the absence or inability
of CMD or Shri G Narayanan, ED to attend
meetings.

**Appointed to act as Chairman of the Share
Transfer Committee In the absence or inability
of Shri.Y.L.Madan, ED to attend meetings.

The Share Transfer Committee appointed a
Practicing Company Secretary, Shri V. Suresh,
to undertake the Secretarial Audit in the office
of the Registrar, to verify the methodology
followed by them involving share transfer,
transmission, consolidation, split, issue of
duplicate certificates etc., His assignment
commenced on 01.01.2005 and his fortnightly
reports are considered at every meeting of the
Committee. No request for transfer is pending
for more than one month.

c. Compliance Officer :

In terms of clause 47 of the listing agreement,
Shri K Sundar Rajan, Deputy General Manager
and Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer
for the purpose of complying with the various
provisions of SEBI, Stock Exchanges etc.
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d. Shareholders Complaints :

Number of complaints received, resolved and

pending during the year:

SL - NATURE OF COMPLAINT PENDING RECEIVED REDRESSED  PENDING
No. AS ON AS ON
01.04.2009 31.03.2010

01 Non receipt of refund

order and Share certificates Nil 25 25 Nil
02 Non receipt of Dividend Nil 1104 1104 Nil
03 Complaints to SEBI /

Stock Exchanges and

Consumer Redressal Forum 01 30 31 Nil
04 Miscellaneous (complaints

reg. change of address,

bank mandate,

demat requests etc.) Nil 57 57 Nil

Total 01 1216 1217 Nil

e. In terms of clause 47(f) of the listing agreement
we have advised the shareholders that an exclusive
e-mail ID - investorcomp@iobnet.co.in has been
allotted and our Deputy General Manager and
Company Secretary Shri K Sundar Rajan, is also the
Compliance Officer for the purpose of registering and
redressal of complaints by investors. We have
displayed this email ID and other relevant details
prominently on our website. The Investor Relations
Cell headed by an Assistant General Manager handles
the redressal of investor complaints.

5. Other Committees:

There are various other committees such as Asset
Liability Management Committee, Investment
Review Committee, Top Management Committee
comprising CMD, ED and GMs along with
Department executives, which have been
constituted for the day to day functioning, review
and monitoring of various aspects of business.

6. GENERAL BODY MEETING:

a. Location and time where last three General
6. TM=T TS 7 9395 Body Meetings were held:
. . Sl Nature of Date, Day and Venue
F. WM g T el di dach i # T No. Meseting time of Meeting
B AIHH o A, = 1 7% AGM 12 06 2007 Tuesday Narada Gana Sabha
Ll fa 3 10.00 A.M. 314 TTK Road,
1 7diwsiw 12.06.2007, He@R, ARG T H91 Chennai 600 018
10.007 34 AAFTT, T 600018 2 §" AGM 14 06 2008 Saturday Narada Gana Sabha
2 gdtustum 14.06.2008, WfER, AR TH T 11.00 A.M. 314 TTK Road,
11.00 st 3143 A& Tg, =9 600018 Chennai 600 018
3 9ff Ut T 04.07.2009 URER, ARG TH 99 3 9" AGM 04 07 2009 Saturday Narada Gana Sabha
11.00 &t 3148 A F Tz, 79 600018 11.00 A.M. 314 TTK Road,

Chennai 600 018
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g, Uz d T sh w5 HiE 99 6oy 7ikd &) f6u b. No special resolutions were put through in
el the last three AGMs
} . There was n tal ballot exercise.
T F o o | c ere was no postal ballot exercise
. . A d. Location and time where Extra Ordinary

§. T o W SR SR WA d3h A g General Body Meetings were held:

%.9. d3% & da% F A, e Sl Nature of Date, Day and Venue
THER faaTng No. Meeting time of Meeting

1 wedstwm  07.122002ufER, o i g 1 1 EGM 07.12.2002 Saturday Rani Seethai Hall

X 11.00 A.M. 603, Anna Salai,
I 11.00 591 603 U At , 919 600 006 Chennai — 600 006
2 gEidusim 30.11.2005, TR, T A B 2 2@ EGM 30.11.2005 Wednesday Rani Seethai Hall
IR 11.00 7 603 ST T, T 600 006 11.00 A.M. 603, Anna Salai,
Chennai — 600 006
3 deGIfw 25112008 R, AT 3 3¢EGM 25.11.2008 Tuesday Narada Gana Sabha
TaE 11.00 71 314AAHTL, 99600018 11.00 A.M. 314 TTK Road,
Chennai 600 018

7. SHRAH 7. DISCLOSURES:

%. TR A G el (T o Hrefurersh (R vrhl b wii a. The remuneration of the Chairman &
F WEHR g fad fFar s g1 ad 2009-10 & Managing Director and the Executive
for qufmers FRoTR 1 e TR e Directors is fixed by the Central Government.

5 Details of remuneration paid to Whole Time
T E Directors during the year 2009-10 are as
%.°. 9 q&H R A @ follows :
feraror (=) Sl. Name Designation  Details of Amount
1 S gagfa  IHIIA, 16,41,058.00 No. Remuneration (Rs.)
S 1. Shri S A Bhat CMD iﬁlary & 16,41,058.00
owances
7,00,000.00 including arrears
2 e ta . aRE SEues EEERGH 12,00,254.09 Performance
e qHE Gled Incentive 7,00,000.00
T e 4,82,192.00 2. Shri Y L Madan  ED Salary &  12,00,254.09
Allowances
Including A
3 dimfamfer wdues 39 F 9, 3,14,222.57 fielding - Arrears
s Performance
Incentive 4,82,192.00
4 sfshoaEm FEwes T 9 9, 8,54,028.00
3. Smt. Nupur Mitra  ED Salary &
TRIH A e Allowances  3,14,222.57
(Farfyge) AT W 5,50,000.00
4. Shri G Narayanan  ED (Retired) Salary & 8,54,028.00
5 dfiud.gme  wEues A T 8,00,720.99 Allowances
s including arrears
(Fe forgen) Performance
6 - ; U 72,302.63 Incentive 5,50,000.00
v 5. Shri A V Dugade ED (Retired) Salary Arrears 8,00,720.99
(3 foeg ) 6. Shri A R Nagappan ED (Retired) Salary Arrears 72,302.63
| 50 k
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The Bank does not pay any remuneration to the
Independent Directors excepting sitting fees as
per the Govt. of India guidelines, for Board
Meetings — Rs. 5000/- per meeting and for
Committee meetings — Rs. 2500/- per meeting.

b. Disclosures as to Related Party Transactions
of Key Managerial Personnel ie. Whole Time
Directors are being reviewed on a half yearly
basis by the Audit Committee of the Board.

c. There are no significant related party
transactions of the Bank with its subsidiaries,
directors, management or their relatives etc
that would have potential conflict with the
interests of the Bank at large.

d. No penalties were imposed or strictures
passed on us by Stock Exchanges/SEBI
/any statutory authority on any matter related
to capital markets during the last three years
ended 31 03 2010.

e. Presently the Bank does not have a Whistle
Blower policy. However no persons have been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

f. The Bank has complied with all the
mandatory requirements to the extent
provided for in the statutes/guidelines/
directives issued from time to time by the
RBI/Government of India to the nationalized
banks.

g The Non Mandatory requirements have
been adopted as stated in this report
against the relevant items.

h. The Certificate of CEO and CFO under clause
49 of the listing agreement has been
submitted to the Board of Directors of the
Bank and a copy is attached to this report.

i. In terms of clause 49 of the listing
agreement, a certificate has been obtained
from the statutory central auditors on
corporate governance in the Bank for the
year 2009-10 and the same is annexed to
this report.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

a. The quarterly un-audited financial results of
the Bank are approved by the Board of
Directors and the same are submitted within
the stipulated period to all the stock
exchanges where the Bank’s shares are listed.
The Bank has been sending half yearly results
to all the shareholders.
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=, ;ﬂ‘%lan—&—wa;@ngm %Wm]ﬁ?ﬁqqﬁuﬂq b. The quarterly financial results are published
T e TR T 3R S e A TaER in a ngnonal daily and a regional vernapqlar
. . daily in terms of Clause 41 of the listing
T WY Y T E T e G S A | agreement. The details and dates of
[ECIUNEISIGRIT g publication are as under:
AT EDES] asa PEANE] Quarter English Regional Date of
et HECD fren 1 fary ended Daily Daily publication
31.03.2009 = feg - [EREaS] 05.05.2009 31.03.2009 The Hindu - Dinakaran (Tamil) 05 05 2009
fasHyg oz (TfEre) Business Line
30.06.2009 & WEAMREE  faAHERX 30.07.2009 30.06.2009 The Financial Dinamalar (Tamil) 30 07 2009
T GlE)) Express
30.09.2009 = feg - fem 30.10.2009 30.00.2009 The Hindu - Dinathanthi (Tamil) 30 10 2009
fas=g g (Arwe) Business Line
31122009 = feg - TR 29.01.2010 31.12. 2009 The Hindu - Dinakaran (Tami) 29 01 2010
fasHyg oz (TfEre) Business Line
. . . c. The quarterly results are also being displayed
. fomrE afom % JaErEe Www.iob.com ¥ «f on the Bank’s web-site www.iob.com.
yefdfa e o1 @ 7
9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
B MRS e a. AGM: Date, Time and Venue:
. TSfieA: ARtE, @ S s Date  20.07.2010
e 20.07.2010 Time 10.00 A.M.
4 g 10.00 = Venue  Narada Gana Sabha
T ARE T T (Sathguru Gnanananda Hall)
(T TAAE &) 314 TTK Road,Chennai 600 018
314 3 Ts, =9 600 018 b. Financial Year:
. Tacis a9 01st April 2009 to 31t March 2010
1 319 2009 & 31 9 2010 c. Date of Book Closure:
7. o9& &€ FE H ad@: 29.05.2010 to 04.06.2010 (Both days
. ; inclusive) for determining eligibility for the
SRS %1 A1 Fuifid & & fon purpose of dividend.
29.05. 2010 & 04.06.2010(3 & wnfiret €) d. Dividend Payment Date:
. I {IaE aia: On or after 30.07.2010 subject to declaration
30.07.2010 F 4 IG% TE IIRERE T TG of dividend by shareholders.
F YT F TG W e. Unpaid Dividend:
T  3ed I : The Banking Companies (Acquisition and

16 10 2006 & gurelt dsheprd s (SUHAT A1
NIRRT T 3fR0T) e fadtar Teamd fafey (Hemer)
rfafem 2006 # bt S (SUHA & SRR
qen sfaon) stfafaam 1970 § 10 () 9™ T 78
g Sig & 7 2 o frefafiad & o geee 2

Transfer of Undertakings) and Financial
Institutions Laws (Amendment) Act, 2006
which has come into force on 16 10 20086,
has inserted a new section 10(B) in the
Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer
of Undertakings) Act 1970 which provides
as under:
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IR IR 3T AT W
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2000-01 08.12.2006
2001-02 05.12.2006
2002-03 05.12.2006
2003-04(3Tg) 04.12.2006
2003-04(TH) 04.12.2006
2004-05(3T3) 09.12.2006
2004-05(T) 05.12.2006
2005-06 04.12.2006
2006-07 13.07.2007
2007-08 19.07.2008
2008-09 11.08.2009

d% & NI FAfafad wis s 7 ge=h

= Within 7 days from the expiry of 30 days
from the date of declaration, if any
shareholder has not encashed /claimed the
dividend, such amounts lying in the bank
current account, have to be transferred to a
separate account styled “Unpaid Dividend
Account of I0B for the year 7

= Any money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend
account which remains unpaid or unclaimed
for a period of seven years from the date of
such transfer, shall be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund
established under Sec 205(1)(C) of the
Companies Act 1956.

Accordingly, the unpaid dividend of previous
years has been transferred to Unpaid Dividend
Account/s of IOB as follows and hence such
monies which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a
period of seven years from the date of such
transfer shall be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund :

Dividend for Date of Transfer
to Unpaid Dividend A/c
2000-01 08.12.2006
2001-02 05.12.2006
2002-03 05.12.2006
2003-04 (1) 04.12.2006
2003-04 (F) 04.12.2006
2004-05 (1) 09.12.2006
2004-05 (F) 05.12.2006
2005-06 04.12.2006
2006-07 13.07.2007
2007-08 19.07.2008
2008-09 11.08.2009

f. The Bank’s shares are listed on the

g T 7T §: following stock exchanges:
WTeh TS bl AT wih Hie Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code
TE Wi T amzattsh Madras Stock Exchange Ltd.** 0B
11'&3‘ i e 532388 Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 532388
Y T T ST o o i e National Stock Exchange
3% e fafies of India Ltd. IOB EQ AE BE BT
[ 53 |
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gIeesa gt # agiad

Sehebrt U (STHAT b ST qer feRT ) Srferfaw
1970/1980 @t &1 3(2T) & A H 9T THR A
TR ST T 37 W 3123 3R T 37 § 3124 faAifH
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T FEa 5. 3000 B & TR |

B. AR qel o Jehs

3afy A IIAA RiF RS a9 Rfh wHaS
Iw(®) = (%) 3=a(3) T4 (%)

g 2009 72.00 45.00 72.00 45.15

7€ 2009 92.95 59.30  92.90 59.75
S9 2009 97.30 7825 98.00 78.50
S 2009 92.00 75.30  91.70 75.10
3TE 2009 91.35 7795 91.75 78.00

THaw 2009 129.15 83.20 128.80 84.00
3Fga 2009 140.90 100.00 141.00 100.00
T’ 2009 122.90 97.00 123.15 97.05
fegm=r 2009 121.00 10525 121.00 105.00
S 2010 116.40 88.20 116.50 88.70
w2010 94.80 81.35 95.10 84.80
1 2010 96.30 84.00  96.50 86.95

Q%
&

** The shareholders of our Bank at the 8" Annual
General Meeting held on 14" June, 2008 had
unanimously passed a resolution approving the
delisting of the Bank’s shares from Madras Stock
Exchange Limited. An application for delisting
of the Bank’s shares has accordingly been
submitted to MSE in 2008 and the same is being
processed by MSE.

Annual listing fee for the year 2009-10 has been
paid to the stock exchanges except Madras
Stock Exchange within the prescribed due dates.
As our delisting application is still pending with
Madras Stock Exchange, Chennai, Annual Listing
Fee for the year 2009-10 has been paid on
31.03.2010.

Increase in Authorised Capital:

Pursuant to Section 3 (2-A) of the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of
Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980, the Government
of India has, vide GOI Notification S.O. No. 3123
and S.O. No. 3124 dated November 10, 2009,
increased the Authorised Capital of Nationalised
Banks from Rs. 1500 crores to Rs. 3000 crores.
Thus with effect from November 10, 2009, our
Bank’s Authorised Capital of Rs. 1500 crores
stands increased to Rs. 3000 crores.

d. Market price data:

Period - National Stock Exchange Bombay Stock Exchange
Month High (Rs) Low (Rs)  High (Rs) Low (Rs)

Apr 2009 72.00 45.00 72.00 45.15
May 2009  92.95 59.30 92.90 59.75
Jun 2009 97.30 78.25 98.00 78.50
Jul 2009 92.00 75.30 91.70 75.10
Aug 2009  91.35 77.95 91.75 78.00

Sep 2009  129.15 83.20 128.80 84.00
Oct 2009  140.90  100.00 141.00  100.00
Nov 2009 122.90 97.00 123.15 97.06
Dec 2009 121.00 105.25 121.00  105.00
Jan 2010 116.40 88.20 116.50 88.70
Feb 2010 94.80 81.35 95.10 84.80
Mar 2010 96.30 84.00 96.50 86.95

2009-10 % ST Haf¥d ©is TS | ddh o 90
3= / fom il & 31iehe T il § faw Mu g |

Figures in bold represent the high / low price of
the Bank’s shares during the year 2009-10 on
the respective Stock Exchanges.
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Registrar & Transfer agent:

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Lid.
(Unit-IOB) Subramanian Building, | Floor
No.1 Club House Road
Chennai-600 002
Tel: 044-28460395; 28460084 Fax: 28460129
e-mail:cameo@cameoindia.com

j. Share Transfer System:

Our bank has a Sub-Committee of the Board
for considering the requests received from
shareholders for transfer, transmission,
transposition, issuance of duplicate share
certificates, splitting, consolidation, remat, name
change etc. The Chairman and Managing Director
or in his absence the Executive Director is
Chairman of the Committee. The other members
of the committee are: a Shareholder Director (Dr.
Chiranjib Sen) and a Director nominated by the
Board (Shri K Ananda Kumar).

2. 31.03.2010 e TITLEROT HT (HaOT:
- i - k. Distribution of shareholding as on 31.03.2010:
% 9. guf TG H HEN  TIERT
% Sl.  Category No. of Shares % of share
No holding
Felh T R PROMOTERS HOLDING
L T HER 333600000 61.23 1 Government of India 333600000  61.23
39 3t 333600000 61.23 Sub-Total 333600000  61.23
S T NON-PROMOTERS HOLDING
2. ¥ e 2 Institutional Investors
®. FIAA BUSH, 3085335 0.57 A Mutual funds and UTI 3085335 057
T A TR G ST B Banks, Financial Institutions 27123191 4.98
. & 9 foeftr e 27123191 4.98 C Insurance Companies 43398235 7.97
7. &ftar SufEr 433982 .
’ 3398235 797 D Foreign Institutional Investors 46099394 8.46
o, faRel grrm fEve 46099394 8.46
Sub-Total 119706155  21.98
39 A 119706155 21.98
3 OTHERS
3. 3T X .
A Private Corporate Bodies 11264365 2.07
%. oot 4@ fem 11264365 2.07 N
B Individuals 74612990 13.70
. Jufrh 74612990 13.70
C Others 5616490 1.02
T 5616490 1.02
Sub-total 91493845  16.79
39 A 91493845 16.79
GRAND TOTAL 544800000  100.00
HA AT 544800000  100.00
| 56 L




A,
AN
WV
3. 31.03.2010 % fEawor AH - I. Distribution schedule as on 31.03.2010
T TEE @ A% 510 % R T Fad No. of % to total no. Shareholding in Share % to total
A FAEH % AR d (S ) # % share of share terms of nominal  Amount
e Wl it g holders holders  value of Rs.10/- (Face Value)
WeRea
204593 8717 Upto 5000 363251070  6.67
20193 8717 Upto 5000 363251070 667 21073 898 5001-10000 177231840 325
21073 8.98 5001 - 10000 177231840 325 5861 250 10001 - 20000 83602520 153
5861 250 10001 - 20000 83602520  1.53
1174 050  20001-30000 20452770 054 Hré 050 2000130000 20452770 054
592 023 30001-40000 19442150 036 2 025 30001-40000 19442150 036
342 0.15 40001 = 50000 16126110 0.30 342 0.15 40001 - 50000 16126110 0.30
526 022 50001 - 100000 38506560  0.71 526 022 50001 - 100000 38506560  0.71
586 025 100001 and above 4720386980  86.64 586 025 100001 and above 4720386980  86.64
234697 100.00 TOTAL 5448000000 100.00 234697 100.00 TOTAL 5448000000 100.00
. 31.03.2010 a faesh Stax 9|y m. Foreign Shareholding as on 31.03.2010
——. 310320007 310320107 Sl Category As on 31 03 2009  As on 31 03 2010
3 AT gl SWAY @i No No of shares % To No of shares % To
) e AgE total total
i% 39 capital capital
01 Freyh ey fays 1 Foreign Institutional
(T 318 218) 42710024  7.84 46099394 8.46 Investors (Flls) 42710024  7.84 46099394  8.46
02 st 48000  0.01 48000 0.01 0CBs 48000  0.01 48000  0.01
03 s 3645120 0.67 4433117 0.81 NRls 8645120 067 4433117 081
- 46403144 8.51 50580511 9.28 Total 46403144 852 50580511  9.28

I Ao affaER 31.03.2010 6 g e S (sifard,
3G, o S Faes) 9.28% o S 3% 6 g vaw T
F20% F fefftd TR F o &

. 31.03.2010 ek sieh a5 Ui™ Gai=d ITERH

A YERENH H AW oIRT WA A "R
q Calk) F %
1 9NG & Hemien T -

A THR 333600000 61.23
2 uidtE Ssfiew it fem 39648523 7.28
3 Ry Sftae sftar fm -

qrehe wd 10632813 1.95
4 {2t gu Toiee Aehed

ARYEY ggae faftes 7734840 1.42
5  9RdtE Staq sftar fm -

gifthe wd 6515555 1.20

T,

TIER GATOT-T51 ST STHARIT

% % YR A sfdor ok e € 1 o WA %
SfeRT & foru Sl ® 0t o &9 & o Tt gledfy

As detailed in the above table, the total foreign
shareholding (Flls, OCBs, NRIs) as at 31.03.2010
was 9.28% which is within the stipulated level of
20% of the total paid up capital of the Bank.\

n. Top five shareholders of the bank as on
31.03.2010:

Sl Name of the Shareholders
No

1 HE The President of India -

No of % of total
shares held holding

The Government of India 333600000 61.23
2 Life Insurance Corporation of India 39648523  7.28

LIC of India — Market Plus 10632813  1.95
4 Citigroup Global Markets

Mauritius Private Limited 7734840 142
5  Life Insurance Corporation of India —

Profitplus 6515555  1.20

o. Dematerialization of shares:

The shares of the Bank are under compulsory
demat trading. The Bank has joined as a member
of the depository services with National Securities
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Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as an issuer
company for dematerialization of the Bank’s
shares. Shareholders can get their shares
dematerialized with either NSDL or CDSL. The
depository services have allotted the following
ISIN code to the Bank: INE565A01014.

As on 31.3.2010, out of 54.48 crore equity shares,
50.80 crore shares or 93.25% are held by the
shareholders in Demat form (of which Government
of India holds 33.36 crore shares aggregating
to 61.23% - GOI's shareholding was dematerialized
in March 2008) and 3.68 crore shares or 6.75%
are in physical form.

p. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date
and likely impact on equity:

The bank has not issued any GDRs /ADRs /
Warrants or any convertible instruments.

q. The bank has raised non-convertible bonds
in the nature of promissory notes from time
to time. The details of such bonds
outstanding as on 31.03.2010 are as follows:

Series Date of Size Tenor  Coupon Redemption
Allotment(Rs in crores)(In Months) (%) Date

Tier Il

A v 01.03.2004  200.00 120 06.00 01 03.2014
v 01.03.2004  200.00 120 06.00 01 03.2014 Vi 26.07.2004  200.00 120 06.40 26.07.2014
vi 26.07.2004  200.00 120 06.40 26.07.2014 il 08.01.2005  150.00 123 07.25 08.04.2015
vii 08.01.2005  150.00 123 07.25 08.04.2015 viii 16.09.2005  200.00 123 07.40 16.12.2015
viii 16.09.2005  200.00 123 07.40 16.12.2015 iX 09.01.2006  250.00 123 07.70  09.04.2016
ix 09.01.2006  250.00 123 07.70  09.04.2016 X 13.03.2006  300.00 120 08.00 13.03.2016
X 13.03.2006  300.00 120 08.00 13.03.2016 Xi 26.07.2006  500.00 120 09.10 26.07.2016
Xi 26.07.2006  500.00 120 09.10 26.07.2016 il 22.08.2008  300.00 120 10.85 22.08.2018
Xii 22.08.2008  300.00 120 10.85 22.08.2018 iii 24.08.2009  290.00 120 8.48 24.08.2019
Xiii 24.08.2009  290.00 120 8.48  24.08.2019 BhoB ** 20.03.2004  36.00 87 07.00 20.06.2011
doasiiadt #%20.03.2004  36.00 87 07.00 20.06.2011 Upper Tier Il Call Option date
3= 2R 11 HiT faeen g i 05.09.2006  500.00 @180  9.24 @05.09.2016
1 05.09.2006  500.00 @180  9.24 @05.09.2016 i 17.09.2008  655.30 @180 11.05@17.09.2018
i 17.09.2008  655.30 @180 11.05 @17.09.2018 i 01.09.2009  510.00 @180  8.80 @01.09.2019
il 01.09.2009  510.00 @180  8.80 @01.09.2019 Tier | (Perpetual) Call Option date
TR 1 (S AT faehen aiE i 31.03.2006  200.00 @Perpetual 09.30 @31.03.2016
i 31.03.2006  200.00 @ FfwEEt 09.30 @31.03.2016 i 18.05.2006  200.00 @Perpetual 09.15 @18.05.2016
ii 18.05.2006  200.00 @ =R 09.15 @18.05.2016 i 30.09.2006  80.00 @Perpetual 09.20 @30.09.2016
1ii 30.09.2006  80.00 @ IR 09.20 @30.09.2016 v 29.09.2009  300.00 @Perpetual 09.30 @29.09.2019
iv 29.09.2009  300.00 @ IR 09.30 @29.09.2019 TOTAL  4871.30

HA 487130
@ 10 & 3 37 5 A ey e ¢ (et sl e % qatre &
1) | A2 A ferehe ot ST e foRa S W1 € it o & 50 st
Feh ST ST |

@Call option available at the end of 10 years (with the
prior approval of RBI). If the call option is not exercised,
the coupon rate will be stepped up by 50 bps.




*HgfUga Sl o & 1Y IR IS deh & faera
& Hela®y IRA A da fafies (huastst) g
S fpw T 2R 11 sfve sygensh g sifmdta fhu
M| 31-03-2010 T FAHH THAT 3o (917 H e &
TG 5.4 HUE % AR A9 H THH A & a1E 2 |

2. YINER HE HI YAl

VI T ST, AT A S v § HaAfea
3= qeft foRarehely AR 9 TR 30T Ui oad
i HIARE Yo (. & Hrafad & U g | IEeRs
AU T feE X 3 g off amE, fhEd
frrfefiad ud T &S T Thd & |

Agd SHHEl Hie gEay fo.
(Ife - 31 o1 o) geaEE fafee, 1 Hfya
q.1, T4 88Y g, F9- 600 002
AR - 044 - 28460395, 28460084, hard- 28460129
g9 : . cameo@cameoindia.com

Aok o (rffad 9d X SIERENEh] i (Rl o
fIe & T 31l 3Rt @ar & o o # faveh
T et

Teae ATl S dh
fav Hay ey
=g FEfad, 763 0O GerE, =29 -600 002
ZfAwIT : 044 - 28519491, 28415702, 28889392
e ¢ 044 - 28585675
.0 : Investor@iobnet.co.in
investorcomp @iobnet.co.in

st . M-SR e
T-SRRIES T FF g SR TS

=fh gAR d% & YA Al
g ek (R gAR dh o
FrfUTes HeAet gid §, o
I8 GUE AR o AR T 2|

qUTehTI TR TRl ol 34
Tfgfies &1 fAula % TR
% G o STTelT @ 1% ofh -
TRl &t fafeT Wi & ayetrar
1 RS 7 A d | AL
&t famTeh 22-03-2007 Ht Ho=

T FHUA & @ W I
FrfUeTs AT g Th
Frafed & W

wiefaes |fafd

¢

»

&

** Being Tier |l Bonds issued by Bharat Overseas
Bank Ltd.(Bhob) , since taken over by 10B
consequent to merger of Bhob with 10B. The
present outstanding as on 31.03.2010, is after
setting off our investment of Rs. 4 cr in the
said issue, at the time of the merger.

r. Address for Correspondence:

Share transfers, dividend payment and all other
investor related activities are attended to and
processed at the office of M/s. Cameo Corporate
Services Ltd., Registrars & Share Transfer agents.
Shareholders may lodge the transfer deeds and
any other documents, grievances and complaints
at their address:

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(Unit-I0OB) Subramanian Building, | Floor
No.1 Club House Road, Chennai-600 002

Tel: 044-28460395; 28460084 Fax: 28460129
email:cameo@cameoindia.com

The Bank has an Investor Relations Cell at its
Central Office, to deal with the services and
complaints of the shareholders at the following
address:

Indian Overseas Bank
Investor Relations Cell
Central Office, 763, Anna Salai
Chennai-600 002
Tel: 044-28519491, 28415702, 28889392
Fax : 044-28585675

email: investor@iobnet.co.in

investorcomp@iobnet.co.in

B. NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

Non Mandatory Requirements Our Adoption

The Board
Maintenance of an office
by a non executive
Chairman at the
company’s expense

Since the Chairman and
Managing Director in our
Bank is an Executive
Chairman, this clause is
not applicable to us

Remuneration
Committee

Remuneration payable to
the whole time directors
is decided by the Central
Government and the
Bank does not pay any
remuneration to other
directors except sitting
fees as per guidelines of
Central Govt.
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Shareholders Rights

Audit Qualification

Training of Board
Members

Mechanism for
evaluating non
executive Board
Members

Whistle Blower Policy

The Board in its meeting
held on 22.03.2007, has
set up a “Remuneration
Committee” as per details
furnished hereinbefore
(refer para 3.8).

All the shareholders are
provided with the Half
Yearly results and Annual
Report.

Constant efforts are being
made to move towards a
regime of unqualified
financial statements.

The Board members are
imparted training by
nominating them for
training programmes at
reputed training institutes.
Each director is provided
with a reference manual
detailing his or her roles
and responsibilities and
matters of importance.

The Bank does not have
such mechanism, as
presently it is not
applicable to us.

Presently the Bank does
not have a Whistle Blower
policy. However no
persons have been
denied access to the
Audit Committee.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chennai
29th April 2010

b

(S A BHAT)

Chairman and Managing Director
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2009-10

DIRECTORS PROFILE

Name

Age and Date of Birth
Qualification
Date of Appointment

Date of expiry of the
Current term

Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth
Qualification
Date of Appointment

Date of expiry of the
Current term

Experience

Shri S. A. Bhat
Chairman and Managing Director

59 years - 20.10.1950
B.Sc (Hons.) CAIIB Part |
04.06.2007

31.10.2010

Having 38 years of banking experience.
Joined Bank of India as Probationary
Officer in 1972. He took over as
Executive Director of UCO Bank on 2™
February 2006 and held this position
till his present assignment at 10B. He
has vast experience across the entire
gamut of banking in various capacities
in domestic and overseas operations.
He has made many contributions to
the Banking Industry, as a member of
several committees such as the
Technical Advisory Committee,
Steering Group for Basel Il, Committee
on Credit Advisory System for
Exporters, and Working Group for
revision of ALM, all of which were
constituted by Reserve Bank of India.
He was also on the Indian Banks’
Association’s Committee for drawing
Road Map for implementation of Basel
Il. During his tenure in Bank of India,
he was nominee director for STCI, IL
& FS and Indo Zambia Bank.

Nil
Nominee Director of 10B in Universal
Sompo General Insurance Co. Ltd.

Shri Y L Madan
Executive Director

59 years - 24.08.1950
M.Sc.,MBA, CAIIB
16.05.2008

31.08.2010

Having 37 years of banking experience.
He joined Canara Bank in 1973 as
Officer Trainee and has 35 years of
experience there. He served mostly in
northern areas of Punjab, Haryana,
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fam, feeett & rf fobam| e <fel, FaR Chandigarh, Bihar, Delhi and had a
¥ 0 o5 & garueia Ryl posting at Overseas Exchange
e T el T ST e A R Company in Doha, Qatar, managed by
= r i . - Canara Bank. He had a one year stint as
?mﬁgliaggw ioig Faculty in Canara Bank Training Centre,
N S d § aﬁE Mumbai. He was General Manager in
e HIAACTD T I Canara Bank from October 2003 until
W TR e % & FA @ | his appointment in 10B as its Executive
el & T o Director.
s = Shareholding in I0B  Nil
Other Directorships  Nil
03 sfieeft T e 03 Name Smt. Nupur Mitra
Freqrerss v Executive Director
A FCIAAAT 57 7 - 08.12.1952 Age and Date of Birth 57 years - 08.12.1952
Rlgul e, ToTest Qualification B.Sc., L.L.B.
[ERESERIC] 07.12.2009 Date of Appointment 07.12.2009
AT praAfafer Date of expiry of the
A B A" 31.12.2012 Current term 31.12.2012
I gﬁmﬁﬂaﬁmﬁmglwaﬂgﬁ Experience Having 34 years of experience in
& ¥ st efear & el ol st banking field. She joined Bank of India
X . . in 1975 as Direct Recruit Officer. She
K,q A ;g;g Eﬁ :ggﬁ; served in various capacities at Branches
ST FIAICTE | 1 T : and Zonal Offices. She moved over to
i 2001 e ¥ 3 A I 57 head London Branch in mid 2001 and
& E0H 59 T S & 7407 o urErer thereafter she was Chief Executive of
% fore e SETes % w9 H W | Ay Europe Operations. Back in India, she
R ST 3T o o e 3T e sfaa headed the Mumbai and Chandigarh
# wuE @ A% e e & Fuie Zones of the Bank. She was General
FterT § o wE A % w9 &, T Manager at the Corporate Office of Bank
S o 5 ot e % e of India, in charge of Credit, SME, Retalil
S aﬁfiarr{ oo ;;; (o Banking (Deposit & Advances), Card
S m‘) i ’ Gk ferh Products, Public Relations, Depository
"), , e, feied Services etc. until her appointment in
HeTail AT a1 AR AT IOB as its Executive Director.
e A oAy Shareholding in 10BNl
317 T = Other Directorships  Nil
04 «m &, faftar AR 04 Name Dr. Vinita Kumar
T TR Gol Nominee
o, s T 55 a9 - 25.12.1954 Age and Date of Birth 55 years - 25.12.1954
Qualification Ph.D, M.A.(Eco), Indian Economic
RiEnl e &, T, (arefee), S Service (1977)
s (1977) Date of Appointment 10.06.2008
foryfem #t A 10.06.2008 Date of expiry of the
T Current term Until further orders from Govt.
gt 3 aiE T T T T e Experience She is presently Economic Advisor,
) Department of Financial Services,
g FHI T A TR, ﬁﬁw%aﬂfﬂ% Ministry of Finance, GOI. She held the
o forumT § a1 FeRER € | 31 AT position of Additional Economic
form ST a7 TewEER © I 8| Advisor, Dept. of Commerce. She has
| .
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W
T YR F AGHE - (1) THAD authored two books — (1) “Economic
7Y TUS & e : & 3iiegy wiiia g Growth and Rural Poverty:The Indian
(1960-65) (2) @iz v : Trgifiarg Experience é1 960-65)" and (2)
e - Ff “Learning to Share: Experiences and
$ﬁﬁeﬂl e we Reflections on PRA and Community
' Participation”
S Y 9 Shareholding in 108 Nil
] e T Other Directorships  Nil
05 99 sfadt o Seaiehyae 05 Name Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran
e e 9 T RBI Nominee
T SR - 65 3% - 26.07.1944 Age and Date of Birth 65 years - 26.07.1944
e e e ey Qualification M.Sc., CAIIB.,
frafe @ it 27.02.2007 Date of Appointment 27.02.2007
S Date of expiry of the
wﬁﬁmﬁ N . Current term Until further orders from Gowvt.,
e - Experience Joined RBI in 1967 and has worked in
T 3qu i 19§7 i ﬁ's"ac a—"ﬁ A ol & various capacities in IECD, DBOD and
S S el Frafera, Ha H 33*4‘ o, Foreign Exchange (Exchange Control)
SHetaiteh sitefaaet fafera (Fafepre feefaon) Departments and RBI's Central Office
forereit & fafer vaf W m foran g 1 sy o in Mumbai. She retired as Chief General
2004 F ety st e o e 7R gl e Manager of Reserve Bank of India in
& w9 Harg gF € | 2004.
sEed § G YA Shareholding in 10BNl
P, S— T Other Directorships  Nil
06 T ot wstee 06 Name Shri N. Sridaran
FHan S Workmen Director
g 3 Sw-fafy 59 @ - 10.12.1950 Age and Date of Birth 59 years - 10.12.1950
T THHTAE Qualification SSLC
fafad #t adm 20-04-2007 Date of Appointment 20.04.2007
AT sHratary i Date of expiry of the
TAId i aE 19-04-2010 Current term 19.04.2010
v 02-05-1972 & & & «df gu| srafiat & Experience Joined the Bank on 02.05.1972. Having
37 it & e S d | T aTgane & 37 years experience in 10B, he is at
foeiera (e A 5 & ¥ present a special cadre assistantin 10B.
s § e 100 R Shareholding in [0B 100 shares
s - Other Directorships ~ Nil
07 ™ st &. T FAR 07 Name Shri K. Ananda Kumar
ARG FHEG RS Officer Employee Director
a1 i SR 54 79 - 30.08.1955 Age and Date of Birth 54 years - 30.08.1955
S & 3w, T, s Qualification B Com., A.C.A., CAIIB
firf %) At 26.03.2010 Date of Appointment 26.03. 2010
; o 25.03.2013 7 1 37,30 A & 3R HETH Date of expiry of the ~ 25.03.2013 or until he ceases to be an
i mﬁ;ﬁ S B T T AT SR Current term officer of I0B or until further orders.
N Experience Joined the Bank on 14.12.1981.
S ?2: ;;i?;ﬁiﬁﬁ;;fﬁii Possesses 28 years experience. At
| .
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IS Feies & 98 WE | present a Senior Manager in 10B.
el § wERARAr 2400 Shareholding in I0B 2400 shares
EEAEEsCl = Other Directorships il
08 =™ st &t f oo 1@ 08 Name Shri B V Appa Rao
ST T TR Part Time Non Official
g 3 Sw-fafy 59 719 - 06.06.1950 Age and Date of Birth 59 years - 06.06.1950
rrgar ft =, THET Qualification B.Com., FCA
afer =t aig 20 08 2008 Date of Appointment 29 08 2008
A Hratary Hi Date of expiry of the
gty &t ag 28 08 2011 Current term 28 08 2011
I 1980 F T SrETR 3 T OTe 3 ot Experience A qualified Chartered Accountant in
o ot 7o qa 3 debe AT S § U 1980, Shri B V Appa Rao, joined Andhra
AR 3 T T AT IR T 695 T Bank as Officer and served for 6 years.
Leaving Andhra Bank, he joined M/s
il T m Ll i‘:ﬁ The Andhra Sugars Limited of Andhra
3 s Y fe i?g % o yav Pradesh in the Senior Management and
At o A 7 W i W | e served for 7 years. He is presently a
o 1994 7 [ H gRaAw o of Senior Partner in M/s. B V Rao
T4 ST, 9eE Ry ¥ IS Associates, Chartered Accountants,
BIEEIS Guntur started in the year 1994.
aEaet # v = Shareholding in I0B  Nil
a1 fRerar N Other Directorships ~ Nil
09 =W st g it 09 Name Shri Sooraj Khatri
Sy, TR T Part Time Non Official
a1 3t Swr-faf 54 & - 06.08.1955 Age and Date of Birth 54 years —06.08.1955
- g, womert, 9w fafy & fewim Qualification B.Sc., L.L.B., Dip. In Labour Law
frafe @ it 26.10.2009 Date of Appointment 26.10.2009
FEaH Ffa 8 Date of expiry of the
S T T =T A & He e Te e Experience Practicing legal profession as an
! . \ Advocate in Rajasthan High Court. He
§‘| ST R T o i isalsoa Journalist, Editor and Publisher.
i Shareholding in 0B Nil
areholding in [
Tt 4 e W Other Directgr hi Nil
ships
3 Ry = P
10 7™ sft sTen® FUR Amfa 10 Name Shri Ashok Kumar Bhargava
TR 3T Shareholder Director
3 3 - fafy 66 % - 10-5-1943 Age and Date of Birth 66 years - 10.05.1943
e P, Toerst, drusgengat Qualification B.Com, L L B., CAIIB
fe &t A 08 12 2008 Date of Appointment 08.12.2008
T FErEt Date of expiry of the
T % A 07 12 2011 Current term 07.12.2011
CERE] GO AU A% % Tl gaUE % & § Experience Retired as General Manager of Punjab
g 40 55 1 3 T g National Bank. A professional banker
w g with 40 years of experience. He is at
| .
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Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth

Qualification
Date of Appointment

Date of expiry of the
Current term

Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth

Qualification

Date of Appointment

Date of expiry of the
Current term

Experience

present a Management and Financial
Consultant.

500 shares
SMS Power Generation Limited

Delhi Assam Roadways Corporation
Limited

Transrail Logistics Limited

Dr. Chiranjib Sen
Shareholder Director

63 years - 29.09.1946
M.A(Econ), Ph D
08.12.2008

07.12.2011

Professor of Economics in the Indian
Institute of Management, Bangalore and
a visiting Professor of about 13
universities in India and abroad.

150 shares
Kudremukh Iron Ore Company Limited

SHRI A VELLAYAN
Shareholder Director

56 years - 09.01.1953

B.Com, Masters in Business Studies,
University of Warwick Business School,
UK

08.12.2008

07.12.2011

A Management graduate from the
University of Warwick Business School
in UK and a diploma holder in Industrial
Administration from the University of
Aston, Birmingham, UK. He is
associated with the Murugappa group,
a business conglomerate
headquartered in Chennai, with
interests in diverse areas of business
including Engineering, Abrasives,
Finance, General Insurance, Cycles,
Sugar, Farm Inputs, Fertilizers,
Plantations, Bio-products and
Nutraceuticals. Shri Vellayan is the
Chairman of two Public Limited
Companies viz. EID Parry (India)
Limited and Coromandel International
Limited and is also on the Board of
several reputed Public Limited
companies.
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Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Shri Vellayan is the President for
Southern Indian Chamber of
Commerce & Industry and a member
of the Executive Committee of FICCI,
Delhi and The Fertiliser Association of
India.

100 shares
EID Parry (India) Limited
Coromandel International Limited

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance
Co. Ltd.

Kanoria Chemicals & Industries Limited
Indian Potash Limited

Roca Bathroom Products Private
Limited

Silkroad Sugar Private Limited

Parry Infrastructure Company Private
Limited

Nimita Solutions Private Limited

Foskor Private Limited, Johannesburg,
South Africa

CFL Mauritius Limited
Parry America Inc. USA
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dR /Telegram : INDOSEAS
@Fﬁ‘ﬁ:r/Telephone : 28519491, 28415702
?—ﬁH/E-Mail : investor@iobnet.co.in
%) - )
é\\\é\\\ /Fax : 044-28523372/28585675

Indian Overseas Bank
P HIATAd, UI.aT. =.3765, 763, 37U AT, T~ 600 002

Central Office: P.B.No.: 3765, 763, Anna Salai, Chennai 600 002

ST DECLARATION

=g 9 ‘11%5 ot @ fF 5% 3 95 % This is to confirm that the Bank has laid down
. . . a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members

goft ge= ST % & IS gee (T e _ .
. ) and Senior Management (ie. General
WW) & foT ST e | it bt é 3 Managers) of the Bank and the said code is

M 3% & dauRe WA AT TN E | Hed posted on the website of the Bank. The Board
& = 3ﬁ( EIECRERE 3 IER gigdr &1 Members and Senior Management have

EERIE] FE F e &t g affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct.
F 3USIA AT oF For Indian Overseas Bank
= e
(TH.T. %2) (s. A. Bhat)
3T 9 gy ﬁm Chairman and Managing Director
. .
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Wi TFES o9 Ty geAtag H w1 Gug 49-V g
HiuwhaTt s gATUisHIoT

Heftag I o TUS 49 % FTHR &F YHIVA F € [

F  EEN SHBN S (AT & FAER g I a8 &
T faefta faeron 31l Aehe yare foawor &1 gefien
e
. 3 fogon & w1 of fyewor faw it gfe & Taq

T& 2 W TH g off de wier 94 AR AW 9H
der FEae =t e @R

ii. 2 goft fyewor o & framamd W 9 A T
Rl gqd Td & 3T A FAH /R HHH,
gre A ST A o SER §

@ SHER U e & SER 9% J a% & A
T8 H1E daed T T & St n@mul, TeEEH &
sk i EN HFT H Soaiod sid & |

T g9 fawita ROl & e erdies o wfE| w6
T FAT @A A e d 8 ad gee (A
RO | GaTod doh sl Sdeh =0 Yument oht
JATEHIAT BT el a1 & 3T g7 i feoi
1 AT AT GRETAT § A g hihar @l fSEen
TN 7 ¢ ST 3% GURA o "y § g gW U
T I A1 G IUTA SRR gHA @ et
it Awroden w8 |

¥ g deridees A e | s e
e @ 2
1 = o gl facdta R o aiais HEa &
Teequl aftad feRar S,

i oo & 3 dEee it § g meayyl uftad T
31T 3% fofta faawor o Ated & gshe fhar
T

11l wgermul enw@nereai T geAT S gq
SR8 8 3 (S gage o e =g A g
e € S famdte R ot ash i =i
fior gomelt & meerqul «fireht e €

(st T . e )
TR Ysiees TE Humhe

(TH.T .92)
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A. Indian Overseas Bank
\Z Central Office : 763, Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 002

\&

29" April 2010
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK

Financial Statements of the Bank for the 12 months ended
31.03.2010-Clause 49-V of the Listing Agreement with
the Stock Exchanges - CEO/CFO Certification

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, we certify
that:

a.  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash
flow statement for the year and to the best of our
knowledge and belief :

i.  These statements do not contain any materially
untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

i. These statements together present a true and
fair view of the Bank’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
no transactions entered into by the Bank during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of
the Bank’s Code of Conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and
maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of
internal control systems of the Bank pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls, if
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit
Committee

i.  Significant changes in internal control over
financial reporting during the year;

i.  Significant changes in accounting policies during
the year and the same have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements; and

ii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have
become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having
a significant role in the Bank’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

(B.S. KESHAVA MURTHY)
General Manager & CFO

(S.A. BHAT)
Chairman & Managing Director
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¥.4.002316
THARTT 000459TH
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Shareholders of
Indian Overseas Bank
Chennai

We have examined the compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance by Indian Overseas
Bank, Chennai for the year ended 31.03.2010,
as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
of Indian Overseas Bank with stock exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was limited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by Indian Overseas Bank for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements
of Indian Overseas Bank.

On the basis of records and documents
maintained by the Bank, the information provided
to us and according to the explanations given
to us, we certify that the Bank has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the above mentioned Listing
Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending
for a period exceeding one month against the
Bank as per the records maintained by the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

We further state that such compliance is neither
an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the
Bank.

For Om Agarwal & Co
Chartered Accountants

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam
Chartered Accountants

For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants

(K. C. Gupta) (K. M. Sukumaran) (T.V. Balasubramanian)
Partner Partner Partner
M.No. 072936 M.No. 015707 M.No. 027251

FRN 000971C FRN 0045325 FRN 0039908

For Bhaskaran & Ramesh For M. Bhaskara Rao & Co For Mittal Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

(J. Rangharajan) (K. R. Ratnam) (B. L. Gupta)
Partner Partner Partner
M.No. 24327 M.No. 002316 M.No. 073794

FRN 000462 FRN 0004598 FRN 001874C
Place: Chennai

Date:  29.04.2010
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(%.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
SCHEDULES 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
e LIABILITIES
Ll Capital 01 544 80 00 544 80 00
Rt 3T gy Reserves and Surplus 02 6979 78 31 6606 16 33
EekiNen Deposits 03 110794 71 10 100115 88 96
34 Borrowings 04 8982 20 19 10494 58 24
I éa?rri g gra¥ Other Liabilities & Provisions 05 3794 89 98 3311 96 34
?ﬁg TOTAL 131096 39 58 121073 39 87
st ASSETS
AT Red 9% & a8 7hdt  Cash & Balances with
T A9y Reserve Bank of India 06 7666 44 72 5940 44 42
S # 19 it g W aegr  Balances with Banks
37 Y W YT G99 and Money at Call and Short Notice 07 2158 19 35 4981 45 75
ICIECIC] Investments 08 37650 56 27 31215 43 87
g Advances 09 79003 92 57 74885 27 26
e aqfaat Fixed Assets 10 1699 56 55 1709 85 96
371 37Raat Other Assets 11 2917 70 12 2340 92 61
a?g TOTAL 131096 39 58 121073 39 87
qarsd é?:mTq“ Contingent Liabilities 12 39340 50 50 38379 26 22
TG Eq ]%rq faa Bills for Collection 3205 14 84 3505 07 48
qa RECIETURGIGRI Significant Accounting Policies 17
ag ) femfirat Notes on Accounts 18
YA A7 A T A 32 | Schedules Form Part of the Balance Sheet
TH. .92 S. A. BHAT
a7e7e] 9 §9g (29 Chairman & Managing Director
9T NUPUR MITRA
Fr T fA3 v Executive Director g fafyr &t m ﬁcﬁé 35 SIEW
VIDE OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
e Sgatteftea Chitra Chandramouliswaran - s s1raTe T . OM AGARWAL & CO I T W BHASKARAN & RAMESH
%, 3T FAR K. Ananda Kumar .. e K.C. GUPTA ERSIEE J.RANGHARAJAN
o &t e B.V. Appa Rao m Partner A Partner
W@'ﬂ‘ Sooraj Khatri 9.9.072936 M.No. 072936 9.9.024327 M.No. 024327
w .amta AK Bhargava THIAREA 00097 15t FRN 000971C THARTT 00046205 FRN 0004628
T AT A. Vellayan Faf gue uf VARMA & VARMA . MR T EIS F. M. BHASKARA RAO & CO
. TH.HHAA KM SUKUMARAN . AT K.R. RATNAM
GT'QT{R Partner m Partner
w.H.015707 M.No. 015707 w.5.002316 M.No. 002316
FrRIHTT DIRECTORS THARTT 00453208 FRN 0045328 THIRTT 000459TF  FRN 000459S
:jrﬂ\_;‘pr@o‘ #fteR TS =T PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM gﬁwﬂl’g?ﬁ. MITTAL GUPTA & CO
EIEICEEL RE) TV. BALASUBRAMANIAN BRIl B.L. GUPTA
GT'QT{R Partner m Partner
w.H.027251 M.No. 027251 w.5.073794 M.No. 073794
- Chennai THARTT 003990TH FRN 003990S THARTA 001874 FRN 001874C
29.04.2010 29.04.2010

Gt G CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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31.3.2010 hl AT a¥ o (7€ o9 o g @l
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2010

(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

EECiEel 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
i gure e g Iu
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
SCHEDULES 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
M INCOME
I G Interest earned 13 10245 77 35 9641 40 33
AT AT Other income 14 1143 25 37 1595 83 08
Gﬁg‘ TOTAL 11389 02 72 11237 23 41
SR EXPENDITURE
ERIERIRRICIE] Interest expended 15 7077 90 95 6771 81 35
perating expenses
afRTe 21 Operati 16 2466 49 71 1941 69 43
JTaYH R RS 579 (49 ) Provisions & Contingencies (Net) 1137 65 91 1197 93 47
Gﬁs’ TOTAL 10682 06 57 9911 44 25
o / 7 PROFIT / LOSS
Y 3 foru et o Net Profit for the year 706 96 15 1325 79 16
ST /R Profit /Loss brought forward 0 0
sﬁg TOTAL 706 96 15 1325 79 16
fafraism APPROPRIATIONS
ifaferen sRferd ffer & sfewor Transfer to Statutory Reserve 212 10 00 398 00 00
TS T8 37 3Ty e & afewr Transfer to Revenue and Other Reserves 127 59 03 9 66 34
{sﬁ ST (A | 37 Transfer to Capital Reserve 144 18 51 606 30 33
ooty ayrfera fafer | sfewor Transfer to Special Reserve 0 25 00 00
AT ST AT 9T (AT on S Wi Proposed Final Dividend (including Dividend Tax) 223 08 61 286 82 49
iﬂ:{_qqﬁaqﬁﬁﬁ Balance amount of profit carried over to
AT ATIRT Balance Sheet 0 0
EI5S TOTAL 70696 15 132579 16
e SR 376 (3.) Earning per share (Rs.) 12.98 24.34
W -1 T o 3= ST E | Schedules Form Part of the Profit & Loss Account
TH. .9 S. A. BHAT
27e7e] 9 §99 fA2W%  Chairman & Managing Director
ERRREE NUPUR MITRA a9 fafy &t g9t fRod & SRe
Frefarere: fs Executive Director VIDE OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
o =gHtefva Chitra Chandramouliswaran - g aryrare (ue . OM AGARWAL & CO T TIE T BHASKARAN & RAMESH
E WW K. Ananda Kumar .4t Rl K.C. GUPTA EETnEC J.RANGHARAJAN
oft ot e T B.V. Appa Rao m Partner i Partner
T Sooraj Khatri 9.9.072936 M.No. 072936 |.9.024327 M.No. 024327
T amfa AK. Bhargava THIRTA 00097 15 FRN 000971C THARTA 000462TH  FRN 0004625
T doetaT A. Vellayan af Tus 9t VARMA & VARMA T TR TG TS F. M. BHASKARA RAO & CO
. TH.gFHARA KM SUKUMARAN . IIATH K.R. RATNAM
| 3\3 X Partner | 3\3 { Partner
9.9.015707 M.No. 015707 .5.002316 M.No. 002316
N DIRECTORS THINEA 004532TF FRN 004532S THINEA 000459TF FRN 0004598
ﬁmﬁ a%ﬁ;g TRFT PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM Eﬁﬁmw@aéx. MITTAL GUPTA & CO
Al T.V. BALASUBRAMANIAN AT B.L. GUPTA
| 3\3 X Partner | 3\3 { Partner
9.49.027251 M.No. 027251 9.49.07379%4 M.No. 073794
3 Chennai THSANT 003990TH FRN 0039908 THEARTT 0018744 FRN 001874C
29.04.2010 29.04.2010
T AW CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
| 7 1 k




\ A%
sgfal SCHEDULES
(%.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)
-1 SCHEDULE - 1 31.032010T%  31.03.2009 T
s CAPITAL As at31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
CUEEai il AUTHORISED CAPITAL
TS . 10/ % 300,00,00,000 Ffaet 3R 300,00,00,000 Equity

(T = 5 .10/~ % 150,00,00,000 £
M)

fifim, AfMeq & 93« st

TF 5.10/- % 54,48,00,000 et W
(39 9IRT THR 5 IR 7 %.10/- &

Shares of Rs.10/- each

(Previous year 150,00,00,000

equity shares of Rs.10/-each) 300000 00 1500 00 00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED &

PAID UP CAPITAL

54,48,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

(Includes 33,36,00,000 shares of Rs.10/- each

33,36,00,000 SaT S ;?) held by Government of India) 5448000 544 8000
FIHA-2 SCHEDULE -2 31.03.20107%  31.03.2009 T
SRR 9 ey RESERVES & SURPLUS Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
I. 9= 9w I. SHARE PREMIUM 14000 00 140 00 00
I1. @ifafees sTRferfo=r Il. STATUTORY RESERVE
TN Opening balance 19198557 1521 8557
ST . yRadg Add: Additions 21210 00 398 00 00
T -1 TOTAL-II 21319557 1919 8557
I11. tLEﬁ 3TIT@T'?I'€H lll. CAPITAL RESERVE
¥ A. Revaluation Reserve
3. RIEERINIGE
Z% Opening Balance 1209 56 88 11397 06
;T . gRads Add Addltlons o 1123 55 41
El?l'lf: F2ifer / - g Less: Deductions / Depreciation * 339648 279559
737 TOTAL-A 117560 40 1209 56 88
o, fas =+ o ® B. Onsaleof Investments
T Opening Balance 7027067 164 90 74
A uliadd Add: Additions 1425777 5377993
I7-377 TOTAL-B 84528 44 7027067
g 331?@& C. Others
; Opening Balance 14692 32 78 4192
SE : uREss Add: Additions 16074 6850 40
A - g TOTAL-C 148 53 06 146 92 32
A -I11(37,31,3) TOTAL - 11l (A,B,C) 21694190 2059 19 87

IV. s g e st
() s T swfafdEr
ERNL]
e : uRadd
ST el

T -(1)
(i) faory smfafar

=7 -(ii)
(iii) fééqgﬁ T ST SR Ay
e ;. uRaHT
Tl el
- (iil)
T - IV (1,11 7 ii)
A (LIL ML aIV)

REVENUE & OTHER RESERVES
() Other Revenue Reserves

Opening Balance 21935355 217199 56
Add: Additions 129 49 04 215453
Less: Deduction 297 54
TOTAL - (i) 232299 62 21935355
(i) Special Reserve
Opening balance 126 60 00 101 6000
Add: Additions 0 250000
TOTAL - (ji) 126 60 00 126 60 00
(i) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening balance 166 97 34 285006
Add : Additions 0 1384728
Less : Deducation 781612 0
Total - (jii) 888122 166 97 34
TOTAL- IV (i, ii &ii) 2538 40 84 24871089
TOTAL (I, 11, I & 1V) 6979 78 31 6606 16 33

* 31.3.2010 7 faaeft wwarsi & wafed siei § qeprela qa1- fafe o & fFg T aftad = & FT gn. FAreE i € |

* Includes adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign branches at the rate of exchange as at 31.03.2010

| L

72




>>§>>>

D

&
&

sl ()

SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 ®) (Rs. in ‘000s)

3F\[§Eﬁ—3 SCHEDULE -3 31.03.2010 d<h 31.03.2009 dh
fagt DEPOSITS Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
31. 1. @i A&y A. 1.DEMAND DEPOSITS
1) S5 T i) FromBanks 3621077 66 00 66
i) o=t g i) From Others 924920 20 8064 66 94
i -1 TOTAL-1 9611 3097 8130 67 60
I11.9=F s ST Il. SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS 26450 89 07 22156 44 41
II1. wrfereh fHeiT . TERM DEPOSITS
1) S T i) FromBanks 1980 71 00 1559 68 08
i) sr=it & i) From Others 727518006 68269 08 87
T - 111 TOTAL-1lI 7473251 06 69828 76 95
g - 3 (LIT & III) TOTAL-A (LII&II) 110794 71 10 1001158896
a. ) 9Ra & vt § ey B. 1) Deposits of branches in India 105434 4270 95433 72 84
1) 9N & =< & rared § e 1) Deposits of branches outside India 5360 28 40 46821612
qT - 37 TOTAL-B 11079471 10 10011588 96
-4 SCHEDULE -4 31.03.20107%  31.03.2009 T
fod @ 3uR BORROWINGS Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
[. 9rdH AT Tg 38R l. BORROWINGS IN INDIA
gt fisd a9 9@ Reserve Bank of India 0 0
ECalke| Banks 4 15
=T FTE A ity Other Institutions & Agencies 1268 4557 3086 47 37
TAHTERT T T forad (SnEiEtans) Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI) 780 00 00 4800000
. < : Hybrid Debt Capital Instruments
e & 1 S fay St forad
’ =T issued as Bonds 1665 30 00 11553000
T 0T Subordinated Debt 2426 00 00 23110000
A - 1 TOTAL - | 6139 75 61 703277 52
II. 9°a & s @ faT T 3R Il. BORROWINGS OUTSIDE INDIA 28424458 34618072
T (I =) TOTAL (1 &1) 89822019 10494 58 24
III. s I 9 11 # wfwfea gfaga sar Nl Secured borrowings
included in | & Il above 50000 38 92501 67
-5 SCHEDULE -5 31.03.2010d%  31.03.2009 T
o 3T o grEEE OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS As at31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
. 537 foa . Bills Payable 665 65 01 692 66 64
I1. fa-safad gamEsH (fad) Il.  Inter Office Adjustments ( Net) 0 0
111. ;ﬁqxﬁ ST Ill. Interest Accrued 2194185 200 06 67
IV.3 = (3@3 qreYTT S g) IV.  Others (including provisions) 29098312 24192303
T TOTAL 3794 89 98 331196 34
| 73 L
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sIEfEEr (RT)
SpHEDULES (Contd.)
(%.°000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)
3?@1:[\3’1—6 SCHEDULE -6 31.03.2010 d<h 31.03.2009 dh
aeta R ﬁ‘oﬁ & qgl EE| CASH AND BALANCES WITH Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
31?( Q}ET RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
I. =9 9% (s fageft g Aie st 1. Cashonhand (including Foreign
wuH e witafad §) currency notes & ATM cash) 6403273 67996 93
1. wredta e % & @9 Il. Balances with Reserve Bank of India
1) =1 @ H g ) inCurrentAccount 6996 11 99 5260 47 49
11) o= @l § sfaem i) in Other Accounts
Bk TOTAL 7666 44 72 5940 44 42
317\{}13?—7 SCHEDULE -7 31.03.2010 d 31.03.2009 d<h
LRI RLIE I LR BALANCES WITH BANKS AND Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
ST AT 991 99 MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
. g4 I.  InIndia
1) o F 9w i) Balances with banks
F. a]?[\'@]ﬁ q a) In Current Accounts 168 25 34 21207 03
T, 37 591 9@l ° b) In Other Deposit Accounts 7318804 277879 42
11) T R qoT 37T AT T YT &1 ii) Money at Call and Short Notice
F. SH F Y a) With banks 539 00 00 114500 00
. g e & 919 b) With other institutions 0 0
RIS TOTAL-1 14391338 413586 45
II. «%d & @ Il.  Outside India
. =] Eeink: a) In Current Accounts 3511798 199 67 86
T, IS Ed ° b) In Other Deposit Accounts 1941119 4407758
T, G 9T a9 37 T AT g c) Money at Call and Short Notice 17376 80 205 13 86
I <11 TOTAL- I 7190597 845 59 30
T (I=ll) TOTAL (1 &1) 2158 1935 49814575
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st (TRY)
SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 ®) (Rs. in ‘000s)

- 8 SCHEDULE-8 31.03.2010d%  31.03.2009 Th
fafem INVESTMENTS Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
I. 9ra " fafqe= INVESTMENTS IN INDIA
1) "R gfasfrar )  Government Securities 3205277 66 2645558 11
1) o= emmfed gfagfaar i) Other Approved Securities 1057310 176 43 58
iil) 91 iy Shares 407 39 96 3216413
iv) fEaw 3t dy-ug iv) Debentures and Bonds 1973 22 84 1647 97 36
V) g’:iq;f SEL v) Joint Ventures 285000 285000
Vi) 3 - 9RefE e T= vi) Others - Units of Unit Trust of India,
& gfe Td 3 HEIA T IR Investments in other Mutual Funds 2053 44 99 16118459
anfurfsaes o | fafem & Commercial Paper
- 1 TOTAL-| 36621 08 55 302419777
II. ara 3 sTee fafyer* INVESTMENTS OUTSIDE INDIA*
i) Eerearil gﬁeﬂ‘aﬁ i)  Government Securities 86096 24 8018445
(gqﬁ Tt gL St & ) (including Local Authorities)
i) 1= iy Others
F) WR a. Shares 83629 111168
) feawr T du-1 b. Debentures & Bonds 1153415 160 49 97
M) 3= c. Others 448104 0
g - 11 TOTAL-1I 1029 47 72 9734610
(I3 1I) TOTAL (1&11) 37650 56 27 3121543 87
9T § Td &y Gross Investments in India 3679509 39 30497 1925
2T : B Less: Depreciation 17400 84 2552148
rae fafaaE Net Investments 36621 08 55 302419777
URE % 9L T A Gross Investments Outside India* 1086 1598 1056 45 92
HoTT TR Less: Depreciation 56 68 26 8299 82
EERBCIGCIE Net Investments 102947 72 9734610
E] ECRBCIEEIG] Total Net Investments 37650 56 27 3121543 87

*3]1.3.2010 % foeeft vmamel @ Hefeq el @

TEI-fafa & W afad=l & HRUT gAESH qfed |

* Including adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign branches at the rate of exchange as at 31.3.2010
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 ®) (Rs. in ‘000s)

3F\[§L€ﬁ—9 SCHEDULE -9 31.03.2010 d<h 31.03.2009 dh
SlBL ADVANCES Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
A 1) HAfFLTU gfse mfa@ A i) Bills Purchased & Discounted 4792 86 96 4490 94 59
1) Tt 3R, siaRgmee & afT i) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and
T YHRT IR Loans repayable on demand 34294 97 99 30862 66 93
111) "Efy 38R iiiy Term Loans 39916 07 62 39531 65 74
T TOTAL 79003 92 57 74885 27 26
3. i) Tf LRI gﬁq:[\ax B. i) Secured by Tangible Assets* 63258 46 98 63200 22 58
AT TOW 3 gfd A wied * includes advances against Book Debts
ii) a% / T TREE T SR i) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 4210 36 57 388969 19
iii) STy i) Unsecured 11535 09 02 7795 35 49
= TOTAL 79003 9257 74885 27 26
. 1) 9ra ¥ afim C. 1) AdvancesinIndia
i) TTftehdT & i) Priority Sector 272372248 24294 08 00
1) Trefsife &7 i) Public Sector 577846 12 5905 78 75
iii) 5/ iiiy Banks 54736 15 2105500
1v) 3= iv) Others 377641772 372050817
pIT TOTAL 713272247 6761549 92
1) 9N & =< 1w 1) Advances Outside India
i) SH g M i) Duefrom Banks 108 17 90 3982975
1) o= § wed i) Due from Others
%) 9 T TC firfise 7T faa a) Bills Purchased &
Discounted 34127990 29082377
©) Huag 3R b) Syndicated Loans 2024 82 11 17821117
) c) Others 213090 19 21811265
ar TOTAL 76767010 726977 34
F@@-1all) TOTAL (C-l &1I) 79003 92 57 74885 27 26
[ 76 |
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st (77
S‘CH EDULES (contd.)
(.°000 ®) (Rs. in ‘000s)
FHEi-10 SCHEDULE - 10 31.03.2010T%  31.03.2009 Th
ReR et FIXED ASSETS Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
I. uftEr . Premises
1’4’2009 7 T - At cost/ revalued amount as on 1.4.2009 161166 27 464 26 03
qd hd T W
T & T gRaeTF Additions during the year * 357422 11738513
1647 40 49 16381116
T8 & G el Deductions during the year* 90200 26 44 89
1638 38 49 161166 27
AT IR Depreciation to date 1597198 1171243
=t - TOTAL-I 1478 66 51 149453 84
II1. {Eﬁ!‘m =Te], capi Il. Capital workin progress 76728 1307 04
7T - 11 TOTAL- I 76728 1307 04
III. o= fRer smfat lll. OtherFixed Assets
(g wrffer i é) (including Furniture & Fixtures)
1.4.2009 &t Rgfy & SER @FE R Atcostas on 1.4.2009 74107 99 63853 95
¥ & g glgdT * Additions during the year * 122 65 90 193 67 09
863 73 89 8322104
¥ & ST FHelfaarE Deductions during the year* 4159 80 911305
82214 09 741 07 99
AT BT Depreciation to date 608 91 33 538 8291
- 111 TOTAL- Il 2132276 202 2508
I (I, I & II) Total (1, 11 &1I') 1699 56 55 1709 85 96

*31.3.2010 T el st & Weifeq st o qE-fafme @ w ufad=i o Hron g 9 |
* including adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign branches at the rate of exchange as at 31.3.2010
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

- 11 SCHEDULE - 11 31.03.2010T%  31.03.2009 T
o= s OTHER ASSETS Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
1) | FHEtad gEEsH (fFae) i) Inter Office Adjustments ( Net) 1280034 197 88 86
) sufaa = i) Interest Accrued 10403216 8911954
1il) =1fm &9 9 Heg X/ i) Tax paid in advance /
T | HRT 74T H Tax deducted at source 962 40 54 7612924
V) e - gt et <, iv) Stationery & Stamps 67415 68899
V) @ @ AT § 9 @ T v)  Non Banking Assets acquired in
N-SFmed st satisfaction of claims 15507 15484
Vi o= vi) Others 778 67 86 4821114
QT TOTAL 29177012 23409261
SRR 12 SCHEDULE - 12 31.03.2010%  31.03.2000 T
RRUECRUR CONTINGENT LIABILITIES Asat31.03.2010 Asat31.03.2009
i) &% % foeg a@ 5= ®=0 & &9 & i)  Claims against the Bank not
iR T far T @ acknowledged as debts 782230 745129
1) 3fvm: Hea fafqat & fae afaa iy Liability for partly paid investments 1160 282450
111) sepran s fafoma Sfaeet & iy  Liability on account of outstanding
FIECRAIC ] forward exchange contracts 15631 41 67 154420176
iV) Hucsh! &t T 9 & T TRt iv) Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
% 9§ a) Inindia 8445 29 69 8044 63 48
. 9T & e} b) Outside India 2470275 2719026
V) TR, gSiHd F 37 aeare v) Acceptances, Endorsements &
Other obligations 8047 64 96 73347475
vi) o 0 e forg d vi)  Other items for which the bank is
g &9 9 ot @ contingently liable
%. faaEys g-a7 T[h/ a. Disputed IT demand /
arfie & 27eftq Oet cases under appeal 4069242 639 15 47
dg. 3= b. Others
1. EE‘_’ﬁ gl W Aefed feu SH A i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining
Y Gfyeret #it AT T to be executed on capital accounts 307763 375794
1. &t WY & d8d d& F ITA¢ i) Banks liability under currency swaps 2776 81 65 224033 05
i U U & & @Y (Fuaeh) iy Interest rate swaps under taken (USD) 193260 37 1756 41 88
V. &9 & &Y (91.5.) iv) Interest rate swaps (INR) 107500 00 1800 00 00
V. W1 fashed F 8T 8% 3 T v) Bank’s Liability under Currency Options 781920 0
Vi. hfee fewee &Y vi) Credit Default Swaps 5519730 6751264
Vil. 3@ s geafiEr yHu-u vii) Inter bank Participation Certificate 0 0
Viil. @l & d&d o & 33T viii) Banks Liability under Gold 34 48 96 345920
Bk TOTAL 39340 50 50 38379 26 22
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

g 13 SCHEDULE - 13 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
I FA T I A T
TR sarst INTEREST EARNED Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
1) =/ faell W T S/ SeeT i) Interest/discount on advances/ bills 76594817 728955 32
i) fafqemt w= e i) Income on investments 23816010 2156 31 60
1i1) 9rdta R o & gfrat iiiy  Interest on Balances with
T 3 SFa-ds FRE W s Reserve Bank of India
and Other Inter-Bank Funds 192 60 64 168 19 83
iv) = iv) Others 1208 44 273358
q7 TOTAL 1024577 35 9641 40 33
s 14 SCHEDULE - 14 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
T A FH T a% 1 AT a%
OTHER INCOME Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
i) wHftem, fafme it <ot i)  Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 5777031 593 78 01
1) faframt & faspa | @ (frae) i) Profiton Sale of Investments (Net) 291 85 67 636 64 80
i) fafeml & qaeaisd | @ (frae) i) - Profiton Revaluation of Investments (Net) -533317 -11723 89
iv) ofy, yeai 31T 37 St & iv) Profit on sale of land,buildings
fosha oy (fraer) and other assets (Net) 16074 68 50 40
V) fafema geael W A (fFed) v)  Profit on exchange transactions (Net) 127 04 26 157 34 36
vi) fafag s vi)  Miscellaneous Income 198 37 56 2567940
RIKl| TOTAL 11432537 1595 83 08
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 ®) (Rs. in ‘000s)

- 15 SCHEDULE - 15 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
I FAG T I FA T
T fpar T SN INTEREST EXPENDED Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
1) e W = i) Interest on Deposits 62717876 5955 83 04
1) ardta Red a9 / sfat- 9% i) Interest on Reserve Bank of India /
3YN I N Inter-Bank Borrowings 4127425 502 88 96
111) T i) Others 3933794 3130935
q77 TOTAL 7077 90 95 67718135
g 16 SCHEDULE - 16 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
I AT T I A T
iR S OPERATING EXPENSES Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
1) FH=E F e 3R )  Paymentstoand provisions foremployees 1734 74 90 127184 21
3 AT graee
i) wrer, X & g i) Rent, Taxes and Lighting 204 47 48 206 41 47
iii) TEoT SR EA-gr iy Printing and Stationery 154619 1558 38
iV) [ERIECEC LI iv) Advertisement and Publicity 358257 269474
V) &% it guft W gemEE v) Depreciation on Bank’s property
(qsft smferferer & ofafid (Net of depn. transferred
STEerIu &t fAaa i) from Capital Reserve) 1117594 100 94 20
Vi) eyl &t W, o 3 == vi) Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses 7347 8972
Vil) dEr-Tdee ® 9Td ek a9 T vi) Auditors’ fees and expenses 178331 198157
(ST A - wers 9feEd) (including Branch auditors)
Viil) fafer g9r vili) Law charges 54291 65368
1X) T wegd, R, ZoftmA amfR iX) Postages, telegrams, telephones, etc. 158759 148387
X) " Iy ST X)  Repairs and Maintenance 85583 78579
Xi) s xi) Insurance 11394 11 8933 06
Xil) 311 3 xii) Other Expenditure 201 85 41 180 68 74
—= TOTAL 2466 49 71 1941 69 43
g0 |
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SCHEDULE 17
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

General

The financial statements have been prepared
on historical cost basis unless otherwise
stated and further on the assumption of going
concern concept.

Revenue Recognition

Income is recognized on accrual basis on
performing assets and on realization basis
in respect of non-performing assets as per
the prudential norms prescribed by Reserve
Bank of India. Recovery in Non Performing
Assets is first appropriated towards interest
and the balance, if any, towards principal,
except in the case of Suit Filed Accounts
and accounts under One Time Settlement.

Interest on bills purchased/Mortgage Backed
Securities, commission (except on Letter of
Credit/Letter of Guarantee/Government
Business), Exchange, Locker Rent and
Dividend are accounted for on realization
basis.

Income from consignment sale of precious
metals is accounted for as Other Income
after the sale is complete.

Expenditure is accounted for on accrual basis,
except otherwise stated.

In case of matured Term Deposits, interest
is accounted for as and when deposits are
renewed. In respect of Inoperative Savings
Bank Accounts, unclaimed Savings Bank
accounts and unclaimed Term Deposits,
interest is accrued as per RBI guidelines.

Legal expenses in respect of Suit Filed
Accounts are charged to Profit and Loss
Account. Such amount when recovered is
treated as income.

In respect of foreign branches, Income &
Expenditure are recognized / accounted for
as per local laws of the respective countries.

Foreign exchange Transactions of Indian
Operations

Balances in NOSTRO and ACU Dollar
accounts are stated at closing rates. FCNR/
EEFC/RFC/FCA (all foreign currency deposits




| TaegEtumt /Auaumdt / thdtte (T4t fageh
HET 3R ) i fort & sifom T & forw @] wer
Ft HTTE SHHT W & SER f@rn T E | e
afeal, qaanet S fareft qmed § qog-avfied
T G HfGTeT B AT # At #it gafea
W @ T 2

Teft enfae, et a9 B aN {fua awd
fafma-g0 & STTHR FshmE arel fafme et &
T T -l TS o Sd of foran T
g, g & guaey faet gl i, A1t T
TH EfeR @l & AHEl ® B H @ 4 @
A 3 W FHEINE & S €, ‘ST Jaa qe
YEEE’/ 37 SMfadl & @i’ H S W@ g |

3.2. foceft qzmei § qearfid At ol &t e

Tfed Wepfd, ais aar 371 arearsi & faurdt &
sifom g & forw ] Therd 1 STt SiHa
& TR e T g |

3.3. 379 3 =59 Gaeh e &1, Awr-afgdl |, 39 oAaed

5.

fu S it atE & an fafrg @ W e T
2l

fereyft vm@ETen s fomia feeRun shr

&1 AT

faasfht smarst @t onfial vd aare 1 AT S
aufd - R A/ § AHUE 11 &l e
T T AT T 3T T T G ot / B B S
T fae fee & f9eM & gl ad ae faaef 4o
o] 9 o 78d @1 S |

ECR

5.1 e fiwd 3 g/ SR faenfee & STER 9Rd §

fd U fAay & ‘PR & fau e, st &
foTT 3Ty’ 3K “uftudraan e &1fia” g & e
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3.2

3.3

including interest accrued thereon) and
PCFC/WCFC/TLFC/FCL (all foreign currency
lendings) are stated at the FEDAI weekly
average rate applicable for the last week of
the quarter. Other Assets, Liabilities and
Outstanding Forward Contracts denominated
in foreign currencies are stated at the rates
on the date of transaction.

Profit/Loss on valuation of all assets, liabilities
and outstanding forward exchange contracts
at year-end exchange rates advised by FEDAI
is taken to revenue with corresponding net
adjustments retained in “Other Liabilities and
Provisions”/ “Other Assets Account” except
in case of NOSTRO and ACU Dollar accounts
where the accounts stand adjusted at the
closing rates.

Acceptances, Endorsements and other
obligations including guarantees of Indian
operations denominated in foreign currencies
are stated at the FEDAI weekly average rate
applicable for the last week of the quarter.

Income and Expenditure items are translated
at the exchange rate ruling on the date of
incorporating the transaction in the books
of account.

Translation of the Financial Statements of
Foreign Branches

Assets and Liabilities of Foreign branches
are translated at the year-end closing rate
in compliance with Accounting Standard 11
and the net gain/ loss arising out of this is
kept under Foreign Currency Translation
Reserve until the disposal of the net
investment.

Investments

Investments in India are classified into “Held
for Trading”, “Available for Sale” and “Held
to Maturity” categories in line with the
guidelines from Reserve Bank of India.
Valuation and disclosures of Investments are
made under six classifications viz.,

a) Government securities (including State
Government securities),

b) Other Approved securities,

c) Shares,

d) Bonds & Debentures,

e) Subsidiaries / Joint ventures,

f)  Units of Mutual Funds and Others.
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5.2. WYA WU & IS T N I el A/ A 5.2 Interest on Investments, where interest /

90 fa @ «ff a1ferss fadi & w=hran &, @t fae |
TS &1 T8 A (60T HIEUS] o SFTHR Fohal STER
W TE E

5.3 faareil 1 qeared wreda s S gr s fmfefad

ferem-fadtit o sFTER fopan T 2

5.3.1 ‘SUR & U aitd’ - AfFa g & 39 ot

(&9 wd oY q - TS fRT fom) & d8d ga arma
W YIRA 3T ST @ | SRl Heaish, Siet el off
AR &, AR & W I STt J a1 S e ; 4
T 3% U7 U € T g S SiAdl WS 5| an
% 3Faiid gesh v | fage god g9, Ak #1E €,
T § guiRa far S @ ok faa gfg, afk &g
2, &1 TeRar! fhar S 2 |

5.3.2 “fast & fou 3uete” - 39 3t § Aok gfeefaa

F1 oA 3faa W SR 9o & 9 § sifehd e
STAT @1 Avs TIRER ekl ulaefaal o,
T, 3778, 0. UH. €T, §RT Hf9a HAehe aX W Hedifehd
o ST @ | TST WhR, 3T STHIfRd wfeefeat
I fea=ii / sfvel &1 qedis gfawa 3@, 3UR
ha-fashd <0 IR q9T U, 3173, TH.UH. €. T g1 TEatfad
Y TH 6 FTEAR TS | FIeS 3 T &
ISR R W Yedifhd fFar T 8, eFaes st
IR H ITAH T -0 § I SEER
IR R ‘T I / T W JeAi{ehd f5ar e 2
3T .1/~ Tfa HFOA /BUE o SMYR W gedifhd
foFa ST 2

2l el 3T arforfsas o SR SHist & gar o
1 T@E AN R T b a1 1T € | e Hue
IS § 1 el B 3T TR qod A R
e A AT THE deg W qeAifhd fHar S g |

EtusEg / THIEUAUAEIT g T TR
g & fore aretun o & S0 I qed Teiad
& T A A HT TAH ALTH & TR
W S &9 G fHar T |

I [HA o MR W YA FH01 & ded
e goa g, 3 #iE €, i f&ar s i) e
g ot F1E &, F TS BT ST | GATHT
FRO § AfFd Ffasfad & 96t o7 § Hi3 aZad
T B

5.3.3 ‘uftvyeEar & fou eiita’ .U fae & Afumen

AN / IR AT W ora S § | g gffa

5.3

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

principal is in arrears for more than 90 days
and income from units of Mutual Funds is
recognised on cash basis as per prudential
norms.

Valuation of Investments is done in
accordance with the guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India as under:-

“Held for Trading”:- Individual scrips under
this category (both long and short-not to
be netted off) are held at original cost. The
same is valued at daily basis at market rate,
wherever available, or as per the prices
declared by FIMMDA and in respect of each
classification under this category, net
depreciation, if any, is charged to revenue
and net appreciation, if any, is ignored.

“Available for Sale”:- Individual securities
under this category are marked to market
at quarterly intervals. Central Government
securities are valued at market rates declared
by FIMMDA. State Government, other
Approved securities and Debentures / bonds
are valued as per the yield curve, credit
spread rating-wise and other methodologies
suggested by FIMMDA. Quoted equity
shares are valued at market rates, Unquoted
equity shares and Units of Venture Capital
Funds are valued at book value/NAV
ascertained from the latest available balance
sheet, otherwise the same is valued at Re.1/
- per Company/Fund.

Treasury Bills and Commercial Papers and
Certificate of Deposits are valued at carrying
cost. Units held in Mutual fund schemes
are valued at Market Price or Repurchase
price or Net Asset Value in that order
depending on availability.

Valuation of Preference shares is made on
YTM basis with appropriate mark up over
the YTM rates for Central Govt. Securities
put out by the PDAI / FIMMDA periodically.

Based on the above valuations under each
classification, net depreciation, if any, is
provided for and net appreciation, if any is
ignored. The book value of the individual
securities would not undergo any change
due to valuation.

“Held to Maturity”:- Such investments are
carried at acquisition cost/ amortized cost.
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5.5

5.6

5.7

6.2

The excess, if any, of acquisition cost over
the face value of each security is amortized
over the remaining period of maturity.
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and
sponsored Institutions and Units of Venture
Capital Funds are valued at carrying cost.

Investments are subject to appropriate
provisioning / de-recognition of income, in
line with the prudential norms prescribed by
Reserve Bank of India for NPA classification.
Debentures / bonds in the nature of advances
are also subject to usual prudential norms
and accordingly provided for, wherever
appropriate.

Profit / Loss on sale of Investments in any
category is taken to Profit and Loss account.
In case of profit on sale of investments in
“Held to Maturity” category, an equivalent
amount is appropriated to “Capital Reserve
Account”.

Incentive / Front-end fees, etc. received on
subscription to securities are taken to Profit
and Loss account.

Investments held by Overseas Branches are
classified and valued as per guidelines issued
by the respective regulatory authorities.

Advances

Advances have been classified as ‘Standard’,
‘Sub-standard’, ‘Doubtful’ and ‘Loss assets’
and provisions for possible losses on such
advances are made as per prudential norms
issued by Reserve Bank of India and also
as per the directives of Reserve Bank of India
from time to time. In case of overseas
branches, the provision is made on the
respective country’s regulations or as per
norms of Reserve Bank of India whichever
is higher.

The Bank holds floating provision for non-
performing advances over and above the
prudential norms. Such floating provisions
built over different periods would not be used
for any profit or dividend equalisation across
accounting periods.
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6.3. ATk Tl o o gy 6.3 Provisions on Standard Assets:
STYH HT THR IRAT s 5% & Type of Advance Provision made as per
oSl & oYX W YEd= RBI Guidelines
) P UE THUHd &7 & ot A 0.25% a) Direct Advances to Agriculture &
' SME Sector 0.25%
) E‘Tfﬁm T e &7 % fm 1% b) Advances to Commercial Real Estate Sector 1%
(31) T (3M) & 7 Site T wed All other advances not included in
= AT 0.40% (@) & (b) 0.40%
S @ TE srersi @ S A HW AR WS AH Provision held, if any for Standard Advances,
. s it over and above the requirements stated
* o ‘.%W{%Fﬁa i S # above would continue to be held for future
AT eﬁgﬂaﬁ  fore e feran S 312 3¢ - requirements of Provision towards Standard
g @ § & gTel S| Advances and shall not bereversed to Profit
5 SN & Loss a/c.
0.4 A = ”%qﬁ. ?E i N F P g? 6.4 Advances are stated net of provisions except
" hw TR general provisions for standard advances.
7. TEU-SRIAS 7. Gold Business
= & HI-[A5T & ARSI 379 c=-a1 & T Transactions in Gold other than purchase and
Tafd FeafE o |/ A I 81 sale are accounted for at prevalent notional
rates.
8. sfafesw 8. Derivatives
8.1. =aTet Hfea anfiaai / aaareti @1 yferenm i =mR 8.1 The Bank enters into Interest Rate Swaps in
YT & (I dh 4 A X faaw 3R 6 2 | order to hedge interest bearing assets /
liabilities, and for trading purposes.
8.2. Wa{ . ST FfE 359 H % Bl T e & 8.2 In respect of Interest Rate Swaps which are
& Wae F g1 / 47 (eret T i Ged Sue SR contracted for hedging purposes, the net
R # TE T I f&AfET F T W gy oy St amount receivable / payable is recognized
T i SRR 352 2T & 37 25a e fRfrma on accrual basis. Gains or losses on
& et E%‘ T E g T e I termination on swaps are deferred and
. recognized over the remaining contractual
g e gsi sy, o g S e @, % life of the swaps or the remaining life of the
MR W H TE 21 TH &S &R fafama &t gt sl assets/ liabilities, whichever is earlier. Such
T 3ffehd AT 74T -%, q(@ TP FHoTeawy g ore 41 Interest rate swaps are marked to market,
21 g e & S, SR 3 qee 8, se but the resultant gain or loss is not
’ ’ recognized, except where the swap is
AR Wt S / 3 5 e A A S € < designated with an asset/ liability which is
g y
et o e o[ H Sifeha v T E, Foreh werered also marked to market, in which case, the
YT I ATt o AT B i ST N / 3T B resulting gain or loss is recorded as an
IR o i g3 % THIATSIT i & &0 § qof fha adjustment to the market value of the
TR underlying asset / liability.
] . i 8.3 Trading Swaps outstanding at the year end
8.3. 3T § yaAferd HSRd T TSfd & THR Fuid are marked to market as per the generally
W I AR fAfFema & god & 9 | sifed fawar accepted practices prevailing in the industry
T 31K SR & T Eg qfad S oY - g @ § and the changes in the market value are
& ) Sy R . recognized in the Profit & Loss Account.
e il T U =T A Income and expenses relating to these swaps
oo AR T @I 7 | S e & are recognized on the settlement date.
. .




%
5

Y
T gL @ - g H AT AT T o ®I H a5 HaAT Gains or losses on termination of the trading
o swaps are recorded as income or expenses.
9. el alReat 9. Fixed Assets
9.1 m@mq&gﬁaﬁg}wm e &l Uferifys 9.1 Fixed Asset§ except revalued premises are
AN T T T # 3 Greteta St % qeq stateq at historical cost and are broadIY
classified/ grouped under the following heads:
I&d ®9 ¥ Fifihd / Gee5 fHa1 T &:
. i) Premises.
1. IRW
ii. whFmedta gsh i) Capital Work-in-progress.
1. 3= 3r=a anfeaar fomd iiiy Other Fixed Assets including
?)) H@@ﬁ;é‘ ( a) Metal Furniture.
C)) Wj % b) Wooden Furniture.
d) == C) Elec?tncal Installation.
e) FEETt Wi § d) Vehicles.
e) Computers.*
v e ﬁt{u{ AT I i *  ATMs along with cost of development of the
Wi v
Hfed T, FE e S S {1, Rl leasehold and freehold sites, computer
3 3 37 TR & N 1 FHP2e 3 peripherals like UPS, Batteries, etc and their
T&d YSficpd fopam T 2l replacement costs are capitalized under the
head computers.
2 HT IR Pricr % greht
9-2 TR aj\%.l%:;acr N g]irqﬁgq;r ﬁ;?; 9.2 Depreciation is provided on straight-line
A R S LR h SR method at the rates considered appropriate
g by the Management as under:
e 25 % Premises 250 %
e 10 % Furniture 10 %
3(‘3 FEHA YR, . i
e :_;[ ST G- 20% Electrical Installations,
¢ Vehicles & Office Equipments 20 %
5 3313 % Computers 33 1/3 %
ST oA 100 % °
Fire Extinguishers 100 %
T STl & YRR 9 W IR & 5 - ed bortion of the fixed
. R & epreciation on revalued portion of the fixe
EEF{WEFI fafy @ & -2 assets is withdrawn from revaluation reserve
QI # S H T E and credited to profit and loss account.
9.3 3AEul / YAHedi®A & aE & fagrs fohu fom 9.3 Depreciation is provided for the full year
TIETH I JTaEM ‘I\i gt & forT fmam 72 2 | irrespective of the date of acquisition /
) - revaluation.
9.4 @ SAT-3T ANl 1 STTHH Fal AT S Hehell
Tl o 3 9.4 Depreciation is provided on Land and
qT’ Fel S ST T T AT H 3 REERS Building as a whole where separate costs
o fHer T g are not ascertainable.
9.5 22 archt Hufwal & ume ¥ U2 &I o1 & & 9.5 In respect of leasehold properties, premium
T w1 URINe 5T T | is amortised over the period of lease.
9.6 fRvh TrERi 3% e o G ¥ fow 9.6 Depreciation on Fixed Assets of foreign
o o % fp branches is provided as per the applicable
_é dfer AL P < STTHR AT Rl laws of the respective countries.
|
. .
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10.

Staff Benefits

10.1 Provision for gratuity and pension liability is

made on actuarial basis and contributed to
approved Gratuity and Pension Fund.
Provision for encashment of accumulated
leave payable on retirement or otherwise is
made on actuarial valuation at the year-end,
in compliance with Accounting Standard 15.

10.2In respect of overseas branches gratuity is

11.

12.

accounted for as per laws prevailing in the
respective countries.

Net Profit / Loss

Net Profit / Loss disclosed in the Profit and
Loss Account is after:

i) Provision for taxes on income and wealth

Provision for non-performing advance and
general provision for Standard Advances

Depreciation/Amortisation/ provision on
investments

Other usual and necessary provisions
Provision for Taxation

I) Provision for Taxes has been made on
the basis of estimated tax liability which
includes adjustments for Deferred Tax in
compliance with Accounting Standard 22.

Securities Transactions Tax is charged to
Profit & Loss Account.
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1. S HEMESE

AT T AT ATl 1 TGRS 31 A,
2010 % YA o mE F | 9@ gfafedt &
faeito = s S 2 | g% faenfud & S arelt S
fafteat 3ot Feayul 7 814 % BT fheft Fehr & gicemet
Jug F 370 T P A |

2. fHaw

2.1 9Rd Rod 3% & R & SFaR 9 & a0
wEwiferat (Jeft)a @i gai | affg fovan T €,
ST EH TSR B

syt el A e e feet
(3. FUSH) ERRIGNG
31.03.2010 31.03.2009 | 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
RS | 2552035 | 22901.12 69.36 75.09
s fmem® | 1126335 | 7596.07 30.61 2491
e e afa 11.39 NSl 0.03 ™

2.2 “ gftyeae & foe iR o ded THUasTR faefaat
g fiord d% grr fAaffa 25 % #t @i & i
g S 9 2010 F 9uIfd d% % & T F 9E
et &1 22.39% W |

‘TR & foq eaiia’ yawt & fFae & day o
%.114.47 30 & fifem (e av €.222.61 #:0F)
&1 39 T8 & S IRnYA ¢ T g |

grgiar TR A & ufd £.100 HUE (e o
%.100 HUZ) & Afhd qoa H gl i
Hfydeisha IUR 3T FOT STeAATS o dod UK &
fou uifydss & ufd %.4855 #E (fd ad €.2200
FUE) o 3fehd T it giaferai i fremfin sureE
3 gfean for. # war 2|

ST 8 el & Fed IR H €. 21,89,07,080/- (et
7 % 21,89,07,080/-) o 9o I €, S 3
& dfed wd afta gt S § wer gSt & ufa
AT ETH B |
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Schedule 18
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1. Reconciliation

Reconciliation of inter-bank and inter-branch
transactions has been completed up to 31¢
March 2010. Steps for elimination of
outstanding entries are in progress. Since
the outstanding entries to be eliminated are
insignificant, no material consequential effect
is anticipated.

2. Investments:-

2.1 In accordance with RBI guidelines, the
Investments Portfolio of the bank (domestic)
has been classified into three categories, as

given below: -
Category Gross Book Value Percentage to
(Rs. in crore) Total Investments
31.03.2010 31.03.2009 | 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Held to Maturity| 25520.35 | 22901.12|  69.36 75.09
Available for Sale | 11263.35 | 7596.07|  30.61 24.91
Held for Trading 11.39 Nil 0.03 Nil

2.2 SLR Securities under “Held to Maturity”
accounted for 22.39% of bank’s Demand and
Time liabilities as at the end of March 2010,
which is within the ceiling of 25% stipulated
by RBI.

2.3 In respect of Held to Maturity category of
Investments, premium of Rs.114.47 crores was
amortised during the year (Previous year

Rs.222.61 crores).

2.4 Securities of face value of Rs.100 crores
(previous year Rs.100 crores) towards
Settlement Guarantee Fund and securities for
Rs. 4855 crores (previous year Rs.2200 crores)
towards collateral for borrowing under
Collateralised Borrowing and Lending
Obligations have been kept with Clearing

Corporation of India Ltd.

Shares under Investments in Schedule 8
includes Rs.21,89,07,080/- (Previous year
Rs.21,89,07,080/-) being advance towards
share capital in Regional Rural Banks pending
allotment of shares.

25
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3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.2

4.3

Advances

The Classification for advances and provisions
for possible Loss has been made as per
prudential norms issued by Reserve Bank
of India.

Claims pending settlement and claims yet
to be lodged with Guarantee Institutions
identified by the branches have been
considered for provisioning requirements on
the basis that such claims are valid and
recoverable.

In assessing the realisability of certain
advances, the estimated value of security,
Central Government guarantees and
subsequent conduct/ recoveries have been
considered for the purpose of asset
classification and income recognition.

The classification of advances, as certified
by the Branch Managers have been
incorporated, in respect of unaudited
branches.

The Bank has a floating provision of Rs.
171.36 Crores (Previous Year Rs.171.36
Crores) in respect of Gross Non-performing
Advances over and above the minimum
provision prescribed by RBI with a view to
strengthening the financial stability of the
Bank.

Fixed Assets

During the year 2008-09, the bank has
revalued its premises (land and buildings)
other than those at overseas branches and
added an amount of Rs. 1123.55 crores to
the existing carrying value of assets. The
revaluation has been done by approved
valuers.

Pending completion of certain legal and
other formalities, title deeds have not been
executed / registered in favour of the Bank
in respect of one premises amounting to Rs.
4.16 crores (previous year six properties —
Rs.8.35 crores).

A sum of Rs.1.61 crores being profit on sale
of Fixed Assets during the year has been
appropriated to Capital Reserve as on
31.03.2010.
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6.2

10.

Rupee Interest Rate Swap:

An amount of Rs.4.69crores (previous year
Rs.8.83 crores) is kept in deferred income
on account of gains on termination of Rupee
interest Rate swaps taken for hedging and
would be recognized over the remaining
contractual life of swap or life of the assets/
liabilities, whichever is earlier.

Capital and Reserves:

During the year, the Bank has raised Tier |l
Capital amounting to Rs.800.00 Crores
(previous year Rs.955.30 Crores) by issue
of Lower / Upper Tier Il Bonds.

The Bank also raised Rs.300 Crores (Previous
Year Nil) by way of Perpetual Bonds eligible
for inclusion as Tier | Capital.

Taxes

Taking into consideration the decisions of
Appellate Authorities, judicial pronouncements
and the opinion of tax experts, no provision
has been considered necessary in respect
of disputed and other demands of income
tax amounting to Rs.406.92 crores (previous
year Rs.639.15 crores)

Salaries

The bank holds a provision of Rs.406 Crores
as at 31.03.2010 towards arrears of salaries
for the period from November 2007 to March
2010 on an estimated basis. Provision made
during the year on this account is Rs.202
crores (including Rs.34 Crores relating to
previous year).

Profit and Loss Account

The profit for the year includes an amount
of Rs 4.89 Crores, representing amount
transferred from Blocked Nostro Accounts as
per RBI directives. The amount has been
appropriated to Other Revenue Reserves.

Agricultural Debt Waiver and Debt Relief
Scheme 2008

10.11n terms of Agricultural Debt Waiver and Debt

Relief Scheme 2008, framed by the
Government of India, the Bank has received
Rs. 371.97 crores towards 1%t and 2
installment from Reserve Bank of India on
account of loans to small and marginal
farmers, out of the amount eligible for debt
waiver of Rs.580.88 crores.
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FAE H U WA “Tes T Hemud 2008 &
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10.2The balance amount due from the
Government of India under the above
scheme amounting to Rs.208.91 crores is
shown as ‘Claim Receivable from Government
of India for ADW&DRS 2008’ and included
under advances in Schedule 9 as per Reserve
Bank of India circular.

11 Shree Suvarna Sahakari Bank Ltd

During the current financial year, the Bank
has taken over specific assets and liabilities
of M/s. Shree Suvarna Sahakari Bank Ltd.,
Pune (which was under moratorium), with
effect from the close of business on 19.05.2009
with the approval of RBI and other
authorities. The deficit representing excess
of liabilities over assets taken over as on
the said date amounting to Rs.246.52 crore
has to be absorbed over a period of three
years, as permitted by Reserve Bank of India.
The Bank has absorbed one-third of the
deficit, amounting to Rs.82.17 crores during
the current year. The balance of deficit
amounting to Rs.164.35 crore will be
absorbed before 31.03.2012.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

In accordance with the guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India vide Master Circular
dated 1.07.2009, the following additional
disclosures are made :-

Lo 1. Capital:
(=70 ) (Rs. In Crore)

»H forerm 2009-10 2008-09 S.No. Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
1 demuem(%) (F9a]) 14.26%  12.70% i) CRAR (%) (Basel I) 14.26%  12.70%
i HemusR e g (%) 8.36% 7.58% i) CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 8.36% 7.58%
i Hemuam e 11 §sh (%) 5.90% 5.12% i)y ~ CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 5.90% 5.12%
IV T SR rReiar iv)  Percentage of shareholding of

& giyerear 61.23%  61.23% Government of India 61.23%  61.23%
v oedetens & e & whie W 300.00 = v)  Amount raised by issue of IPDI 300.00 Nil
Vi e et et K ?groﬂn:n;?irii?er?ti soue of Uhpet 800.00  955.30

T WA 800.00 955.30

[91 |
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2. 389 : 2. Investments:
2.1 fawt &1 g 2.1 Value of Investments
(T H) (Rs. in Crore)
31.03.2010 31.03.2009 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
[. fqash = 9&a 9 ()  Gross Value of Investments
1) 9 ¥ 36795.09 30497.19 (@) In India 36795.09  30497.19
11) 9Na & amex 1086.16 1056.46 (b) Outside India 1086.16  1056.46
1. qeae™ & fau gagm (i) Provision for Depreciation
1) 9 ¥ 174.01 255.21 (@) In India 174.01 255.21
11) 9Na & el 56.68 83.00 (b) Outside India 56.68 83.00
1. faasi & fAaa ge (i) Net value of Investments
1) 9 ¥ 36621.08 30241.98 (@) In India 36621.08  30241.98
11) 9Ra & s 1029.48 973.46 (b) Outside India 1029.48 973.46
2'2_‘,@?“:[% TRyTa W’mﬁﬁﬁﬂw 2.2 Movement of Provision held towards
+ ofy ¢ §3° depreciation on Investments including securities
7 TR FITHT T FoTe ) matured for payment
(%. ®Ug W)
(Rs. In Crore)
2009-10 _ 2008-09 200910 2008-09
1. omfys oy 342.82 31441 (i)  Opening Balance 342.82 314.41
1. Sie & &3 e U gegs  141.08 253.23 (i)  ADD Provisions made during the year 141.08 253.23
i, = : af % = fFw MU 24933 224.82 (iiiy  LESS Write off/Write Back of excess
fer gEEE 5 provisions during the year 249.33 224.82
22 @R e/ QAT BT (iv) Closing Balance 234.57 342.82
1v. g 9 234.57 342.82 2.3 Repo transactions:
)3 A% aTRa (Rs in Crore)
3 Particulars Minimum Maximum Daily Average Ason
(E Eh_ﬁg fl) outstanding outstanding outstanding March 31
N during the year  during the year  during the year
forn AHdE A G ;;:3?; 31;;? 09-10 0809 0910 0809 0910 0809 2010 2009
I e - ’ Securities sold
09-10 0809 09-10 08-09 09-10 08-09 2010 2009 under Repos (LAF) 12000 24500 59500 350000 22240 57568 Nil 24500
Eﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁia‘? Securities sold
(TATTS) 2000 24500 59500 350000 2240 51568 w2450 under Repos i .
(Inter Bank) 493 551 15923 37508 1564 4089 NI Ni
ft & dea A "
o gttt Securities
(f-3%) 49 550 193 W 16 49 | OW Purchased under
. reverse repo (LAF) 30000 5000 780000 470000 292733 307.12 Nl Nil
h e
gl mh gffoat Securities
(TeTTT) WM 00 WO 400 WTB WL W W\ Purchased under
fad Rt et reverse repo
Tl T wfagfar (Inter Bank) Nil 18998  Nil 69874  Nil 3886 Ni il
Cukc) WOM® W OME W R W W
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(® Bz )
¥, e & &t fawd O
Wb H wHaviE W g
fowm ot sl R
(O 6] “@ 8) © U]
| wENFF TSI 623.51  595.33  0.00  9.00 15.29
2 faia g 253.48  233.00  0.00 1821 18.21
3 4% 2578.73  2569.25  0.00  0.00  0.00
4 faht st 783.19  650.01  0.00 84.76 114.55
5 ot/ SgE sE 2850  28.50  0.00  0.00  0.00
6 = 196.39  182.60  0.00 45.26  0.00
7 YU ¥ R EEE 127.33 XXX XXX XXX XXX
7 4591.13  4258.69  0.00 157.23 148.05

k
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2.5 S T THTAAR (a9

IS e o (T yraee d EELaa e ™

2.4 Non-SLR Investment Portfolio
Issuer Composition Of Non-SLR Investments

(Rs. in crore)

No  Issuer Amount Extent of Extentof Extentof Extent of
Private below  Unrated  Unlisted
Placement Investment Securities ~ Securities

grade

Securities
" @ ®) @ ®) 6) ™
1 PSUs 623.51 595.33 0.00 9.00 1529
2 Fis 25348  233.00 000 1821 18.21
3 Banks 2578.73  2569.25 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 Private Corporates 783.19 650.01 000 8476 11455

5  Subsidiaries /

Joint Ventures 28.50 28.50 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 Others 196.39 182.60 0.00 4526 0.00

7 Provision held
towards depreciation*127.33 XXX XXX XXX XXX
Total 4591.13  4258.69 0.00 157.23 148.05

Exclusive of provision for non-performing investments
and interest sacrifice on restructured investments.

2.5 Non Performing Non SLR Investments

(¥ Fg #) (Rs. In Crore)
IEEru T Particulars Amount
1 378d 2009 T FT FRAH 9 16.83 Opening Balance as on 1 April 2009  16.83
| 39e § o & < Wi 0.00 Additions during the year since 15t April  0.00
Sy o & I weifaar 12.72 Reductions during the above period 12.72
31 03 2010 @ =1 3ifqw 9w 4.11 Closing Balance as on 31%t March 2010 4.11
el BIEGRCLIG] 4.11 Total Provisions held 4.11
3. DERIVATIVES:
3. Sfafe= :
3.1 Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
3.1 9@l & R / =S W @Y ,
. (Rs. in Crore)
(2.HTE H)
PARTICULARS 2009-10 2008-09
o Rupee X Total Rupee FX Total
2009-10 2008-09 Exposure Exposure  Exposure Exposure
OO UHUE A T UHTH ol
SfEq Sifaq Sifaw SifEq i) The notional
principal of swap
) o agreements 107500 193260 3007.60 180000 175642 3556.42
FTeUE g W 1075.001932.603007.60 1800.001756.423556.42 i) Losses which
.. . would be incurred
1) =/ & Ted A if counter-parties
FET T failed to fulfil their
e B[ FA H obligations under
TH Bt E A 3T the agreements 2392 916  33.08 54.33 66.58 12091
B aref @ 23.92  9.16 33.08 54.33 66.58 120.91 iii) Collateral required
TN by the bank upon
iii) =9 &9 W &% g0 e ) ) ) ) ) )
il ¥ = = - = = - entering into swaps Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
. . iv) Concentration of
V) @7 ¥ 39 &0 credit risk arising
SifiEm T ST I OYA A I@ YA A from the swap Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
V) Wuesd #km e 13.88  -7.94  5.94  26.07 -9.98 16.09 v) The fair value of the
swap book 13.88 794 594 2607 998 1609
| L
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3.2 TIfa e SR =reT &€ eRafesy 3.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives
(2.30E H) (Rs. In crore)
Y g fereroT ThY S. No. Particulars Amount
1) T8 ¥ A AT =R & @ SRafe (i) Notional principal amount of exchange
> & traded interest rate derivatives
l KSR ) LA undertaken during the year
11) 31 7 2010 7% = (instrument wise) Nil
RAFeT 37 Feulas I W (f?ﬁ@'d’cm) = (i) Notional principal amount of exchange
traded interest rate derivatives outstanding
111) FEET EATE SR = W S 3 as on 31% March 2010 (instrument wise) Nil
Fe(s g WA ST S “Iea gt (i) Notional principal amount of exchange
T e (f@aar) = traded interest rate derivatives outstanding
and not “highly effective” (instrument wise) Nil
1v) fep « o (iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded
T & SR qA HI T qA H 3ifehe interest rate derivatives outstanding and not
FHE AT I I gl T 2 (foramar) = “highly effective” (instrument wise) Nil
3.3 DISCLOSURES ON RISK EXPOSURE IN

3.3

AT # SEH TRl S I Fohe1ahiuT

3.3.1 TUMCHh YehelehiuT

M)

3)

Zod (feraelt)

d%, SfehT ad § =W R S S I S w5
FH B & 3LV T FfReT & foIg =] X &7 (3718
N TH), T WY 9 Gt S9N H FAT HA | o
FIRE TEH it F 3 off ST e @ aifds &
ARt @ qE SR AN R ST H g FH |
TH HE % e RS 9 dbi o WY & W@ o &
o R faaa= € 1

fagsft sur / w @ wA R [dft] wewiferat / e
I & ST o FRUT A / foAma U 7 I
F4 areft SifEw 1 gfore & foe efafesy o
F TN FA & o faef wmared ek & fftrm
3 % i Sifew g Hifqal safy 3d § o
Ty & 3 SRAfeT 3G A SMER T TeH 1
SYAH A F LA 3 B

Sfafesy TSR F qedi® F o [T d% &
UG T 3T JUTelt @ 3R AfFd Tt #t faet
Trg T gfaqfa Tefq @ guf ®9 § T § @9 g
Sftafea @-37 & fasaed & faw anfd sgr st
7T B F ot gt

deh A gfewen foadl & &9 § SRafesq & suam 9
S Sfem e B & o sfE e

DERIVATIVES

3.3.1 Qualitative Disclosure

a)

b)

Treasury (Foreign)

The Bank uses Interest Rate Swaps (IRS),
Currency Swaps and Options for hedging
purpose to mitigate interest rate risk and
currency risk in banking book. The Bank also
offers these products to corporate clients to
enable them to manage their own currency
and interest rate risk. Such transactions are
entered only with Clients and Banks having
agreements in place.

The Risk Management Policies of the Bank
allows using of derivative products to hedge
the risk in Interest / Exchange rates that arise
on account of overseas borrowing / FCNR
(B) portfolio / the asset liability mis-match,
for funding overseas branches etc., and also
to offer derivative products on back-to-back
basis to customers.

The Bank has a system of evaluating the
derivatives exposures separately and placing
appropriate credit lines for execution of
derivative transactions duly reckoning the Net
Worth and security backing of individual
clients.

The Bank has set in place appropriate control
systems to assess the risks associated in
using derivatives as hedge instruments and
proper risk reporting systems are in place
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1 efial / 2aaet @ rafy, St oft A E, &
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Toft TfoRem AFeT SUEET & SR W UReied fhy
TR | A Giarsl 1 geais aTsIR o F1 ael
7 3ifehd F & MER W fhan 71 | efafesy #
TR L o T 5% & g A s S

yeeT 3 orEis i 3ueed 2 |

eftafeey daed rdta fisd a% & fegnfEs &
IFTHR 3 w1 &

T - (33t

%, T Wl § = ) ST S 7 B
& IRYT T JIRET 3G S M7 BN 7 Trafdy s
1 AT A B & [T T =T o T (BAEARTH)
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d)

e

o)}

to monitor all aspects relating to derivative
transactions. The Derivative transactions were
undertaken only with counterparties well
within the exposure limit approved by
appropriate credit sanctioning authorities for
each counter party.

The Bank has set necessary limits in place
for using derivatives and its position is
continuously monitored.

The Bank has a system of continuous
monitoring and appraisal of resultant
exposures across the administrative hierarchy
for initiation of necessary follow up actions.

Derivatives are used by the Bank to hedge
the Bank’s Balance Sheet and offered to
select corporate clients on back-to-back
basis. In respect of hedge transactions the
value and maturity of hedges has not
exceeded that of the underlying exposure.
In respect of back-to-back transactions the
transactions with clients are fully matched
with counter party bank transactions and there
is no uncovered exposure.

The income from such derivatives are
amortised and taken to Profit and Loss
Account on accrual basis over the life of the
contract. In case of early termination of
swaps undertaken for Balance Sheet
management, income on account of such
gains would be recognised over the remaining
contractual life of the swap or life of the
assets / liabilities whichever is lower. In case
of early termination of derivatives undertaken
for customers on a back-to-back basis,
income on account of such things will be
recognised on termination.

All the hedge transactions have been
accounted on accrual basis. Valuations of
the outstanding contracts are done on Mark
to Market basis. The Bank has duly approved
Risk Management and Accounting procedures
for dealing in Derivatives.

The derivative transactions are conducted in
accordance with the guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India.

Treasury (Domestic)

The Bank uses the Rupee Interest Rate
Swaps (IRS) for hedging purpose to mitigate
interest rate risk in Govt. Securities and to
reduce the cost of Subordinated Debt and
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a)

b)

c)

d)

term deposits. In addition, the bank also
enters into rupee interest rate swaps for
trading purposes as per the policy duly
approved by the Board. Swap transactions
are entered only with Banks having ISDA
agreements in place.

The Bank has put in place an appropriate
structure and organization for management
of risk which includes Treasury Department,
Asset Liability Management Committee and
Risk Management Committee of the Board.

Derivative transactions carry Market Risk
(arising from adverse movement in interest
rates), credit risk (arising from probable
counter party failure), liquidity risk (arising
from failure to meet funding requirements or
execute the transaction at a reasonable
price), operational risk, regulatory risk and
reputation risk. The Bank has laid down
policies, set in place appropriate control
systems to assess the risks associated in
using derivatives and proper risk reporting
and mitigation systems are in place to
monitor all risks relating to derivative
transactions. The IRS transactions were
undertaken with only Banks as counter party
and well within the exposure limit approved
by the Board of the Bank for each counter

party.

Derivatives are used by the Bank for trading
and hedging. The bank has an approved
policy in force for derivatives and has set
necessary limits for the use of derivatives and
the position is continuously monitored. The
value and maturity of the hedges which are
used only as back to back or to hedge
bank’s Balance Sheet has not exceeded that
of the underlying exposure.

The Accounting Policy for derivatives has
been drawn up in accordance with RBI
guidelines, as disclosed in Schedule 17 -
Significant Accounting Policies (Policy No.8).
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3.3.2 HETHS FheThTuT (T.FE W)
HH.  faeru 731 Sfafesy = &
gfafese

1. sfafesw

(HTeuleh Hd ThA)

%. gfeRen & fag 2620.98 1998.85

T, SR & oy 155.84 1008.75
. 99K g7 & ad &

Jiferd H @t fRafq

. offEar (+) 245.79 0.47

T, Fam(-) 47.19 39.69
1ll. 3¥R TSR 506.99 99.16
V. = < H gaifed uh

A & e 1 gere

(100%f=t01)

%. yferen eftEfesy ™ 75.64 42.31

g, IR efafesy 12.05 69.43
v. af % e e e 100% 01

T AT T AR

)

3.3.2 Quantitative Disclosures (Rs. in Crore)

S. PARTICULARS CURRENCY  INTEREST RATE
NO. DERIVATIVES DERIVATIVES

(i) Derivatives (Notional
Principal Amount)

a) For Hedging 2620.98 1998.85

b) For Trading 155.84 1008.75
(i) Marked to Market Positions

a) Asset (+) 245.79 0.47

b) Liability (-) 4719 39.69
(iii) Credit Exposure 506.99 99.16

(iv) Likely impact of one
percentage change in
interest rate (100*PV01)

a) on hedging derivatives 75.64 42.31

b) on trading derivatives 12.05 69.43
v) Maximum and Minimum of

100*PVO01 observed during the year

a) on hedging Maximum 75.64  Maximum 29.78
Minimum 23.24 Minimum 0.00

b) on trading Maximum 12.05  Maximum 41.81
Minimum 8.04 Minimum 0.00

4. ASSET QUALITY:

4.1.1 Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)
(Rs. In Crore)

2009-10  2008-09

iil.

F. Teel W SAfHad  75.64 3Had 29.78
A 23.24  =gAAE 0.00
g, MR | SYhad 12.05 37¥shaq 41.81
A 8.04  =AAE 0.00
S TuTe
4.1.1 ASish Al (TAUW)
(230 ¥)
2009-10  2008-09
fad TdT & qeT §
et &1fm (%) 2.52 1.33
T & g=ad (96d)
. URf9 3y 1923.41 996.95
@, 9 & AT ke 3126.83  2261.85
. a9y & A weiaar 1439.16 1335.39
o, g9 9y 3611.08 1923.41
T = g9
% gRfys 3y 999.14 363.20
@ T & U aReEe 2097.21 1971.33
T a Y & A weraar 1101.38 1335.39
¥ HAIT Y 1994.97 999.14
AT S gHeT & [T g
(W SR W IEEE F BIEH )
. URf9 3y 752.04 569.94

@, o & S U T gEEE 1183.66 365.50
. 92 @M F e T/

QIR SAfefisr graem 571.91 183.40
AR 1363.79 752.04

i) Net NPA to Net Advances(%) 2.52 1.33
ii)  Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening Balance 1923.41 996.95

b) Additions during the year 3126.83  2261.85
c¢) Reductions during the year 1439.16  1335.39

d) Closing Balance 3611.08  1923.41
iy Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening Balance 999.14 363.20

b) Additions during the year 2097.21 1971.33
c) Reductions during the year 1101.38  1335.39
d) Closing Balance 1994.97 999.14

iv) Movement of Provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 752.04 569.94
b) Provisions made during the year 1183.66 365.50
c) Write-off/Write-back of
€XCess provisions 571.91 183.40
d) Closing balance 1363.79 752.04
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4.1.2 9T FHAS SFLIE: 4.1.2 Provision Coverage Ratio
g fied F% & et & SEr 31.03.2010 The Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR)
T URefed JTaem= Farsl &1 o (REem) computed as per the RBI guidelines stood
53.97 % @I at 53.97% as on 31.03.2010.
49 EH’H“TI'%TH A A e 4.2 Particulars of Accounts Restructured
CER:D (Rs. In Crore)
Hdem  THUw/AET e CDR SME/Debt
qoelt g Mechanism  Restructuring Others
T A SRt 3 4. 10 1401 6626 Standard ~ No. of Borrowers 10 1401 6626
1M THAT T 285.66  791.38 5745.00 advances  Amount outstanding  285.66 79138  5745.00
e restructured Sacrifice
EFmmged=s®) 1147 9.00 5071 (diminution in
the fair value) 11.47 9.00 50.71
KSERED] TRt 1 . 2 96 290 Sub standard ~ No. of Borrowers 2 % 290
S ST TP 49.94 1441  32.80 advances  Amount outstanding  49.94 1441 3280
Rl ‘ restructured Sacrifice (diminution
Erageads) 030 - - in the fair value) 0.30 — —
TR ST 33 4. _ 16 67 Doubtful  No. of Borrowers — 16 67
SRR I } 996 64.18 advances  Amount outstanding — 9.96 64.18
e restructured Sacrifice (diminution
(3 e A %) - - - in the fair value) — — —
¥ ST . 12 1513 6983 TOTAL No. of Borrowers 12 1513 6983
TR 335.60 815.75 5841.98 Amount outstanding  335.60 815.75  5841.98
[ Sacrifice (diminution
Eragadsd) 11.77 9.00 50.71 in the fair value) 1.77 9.00 50.71
4.3 qRE Yl qQAAETT 85 (e g/ 4.3 Details of Financial Assets sold to
QA ETEMAT shut st s TE fewta siat Securitisation / Reconstruction Company,
3 o for Asset reconstruction
(5. Fs ) (Rs. in crore)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
foreroT 2009-10 2008-09
() No. of accounts Nil 1
(1) @t = LA ! (i) Aggregate value (net of provisions)
(if) T / s w1 o o of accounts sold to SC/RC Nil Nil
TT @l 1 FRfAT I
[ wee @ e | = = (i) Aggregate consideration Nil 1.94
i) SfET of (iv) Additional consideration realized
(1) T 1.94 in respect of accounts transferred
(V) T auf # sfafd @l % gay in earlier years Nil Nil
I T T sHfaRan gfehe NGl NGl (v) Aggregate gain/loss over net
(V) froa adt-qed W gt A aw/at g 194 book value NIl 194
| 98 k
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4.4 Details of non-performing financial assets
purchased/sold from other banks

4.4.1 Details of non-performing financial assets

] purchased:

(7. ¥03 7) (Rs. in crore)
fereot 200910 2008-09 Particulars 2009-10  2008-09
L E;_Eﬁ Z?; ijntm 4 f$T T 1 (a) No. of accounts purchased

LA LA during the year Nil Nil
(@] wHfeRd T LA A (b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil

2. [F] & % & = Y 2 (a) Of these, number of accounts
Gifod @il & g = Nl restructured during the year Nil Nil
[w@] Tufed e A A (b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
4.4, Foepa & T ST Fcltd SRAEt &1 faaoT 4.4.2 Details of non-performing financial assets

(5. FiT 1) sold:

(Rs. in crore)
feermm 2009-10 2008-09 Particulars 2009-10  2008-09
1. fasra fepT T pSl pS 1. No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
2 . wHfEd s ;A A 2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3 . 9T Gl gl A NG 3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
4.5 WER SAMEAT TR GTEEE 4.5 Provisions on Standard Asset

(®. FUg ) (Rs. in crore)
fa 2009-10 2008-09 Particulars 2009-10  2008-09
I S % 9 FrE 440.24  359.95 Provisions towards Standard Assets 440.24  359.95
5. WER AT 5 BUSINESS RATIOS
\EcTul 2009-10 2008-09 Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
() efgd s Ml & (i) Interest Income as a percentage

TRyeA S sTd IS g 8.85%  9.67% to Average Working Funds 8.85% 9.67%
(1) FEar ffeEr & gfe gfoed (i) Non Interest Income as

F ®Y 4 o 3T 0.99% 1.60% a percentage to Working Funds 0.99% 1.60%
(111) FrE=wd FfeE & gfa giaed (i) Operating Profit as a percentage

FHFETHE YREHEES oY 1.59% 2.53% to Working Funds 1.59% 2.53%
(1v) 3ftea enfeat @« 0.53% 1.17% (iv) Return on Avg. Assets 0.53% 1.17%
(V) 9fy =t sReaR (v) Business (Deposits plus advances)

(SATE + 7TT ) (5. FWg H)  7.120 6.895 per Employee (Rs. in crore) 7.120 6.895
(Vi) ofq = e (. &0 H) 0.0263  0.0520 (vi) Profit per employee (Rs. in crore)  0.0263  0.0520
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6 ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT:
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2010

(Rs. in crore)

Day 2to7 8to14 151028 29 days >3mto >6mto > 1yrto >3 yrsto > 5 yrs TOTAL
1 days days days to 3mnth 6 mnth 1yr 3 yrs 5 yrs

Deposits 1600.03 2340.35 3461.44 1606.05 9617.84 1981550 20943.86 44648.08 188216 4879.40 110794.71
Advances (Gross) — 2847.29 420246 744538 169045 4984.56 3808.50 5674.82 29147.41  9488.39 1149322 80782.48
Investments (Gross) 33422 1719.42 161622 1221.05 213558 411175 6339.30 11438.16  1103.89 786167 37881.26
Borrowings 5756  330.10 384.23 4643 13836 16228 99162 2036.33 400.00 443529  8982.20

Foreign Currency
Assets 78947 19327 64736 51095 2652.75 1244.03 2056.90 1347.90 611.18  1067.13 11120.94

Foreign Currency
Liabilities 46537 21798 51879 44189 206725 1861.85 2771.81 1370.30 25355 139512 11363.91

6. ST Tar gaieA
A= 31, 2010 T 3 (AT Al 9 T 1 LB A]N B AFRGeFIr H FEE
(®. FE ¥)

Ifeg 297 8914 15828 29fAi® 3%@¥ 6"ed la¥g 3ayg  Savy A
ES] ES] & 3R AYRT  AfUwa Amd AYwT S
6Med® ladfds 3aas Sadaw

SHIY 1600.03 2340.35 3461.44 1606.05 9617.84 19815.50 20943.86 44648.08 1882.16 4879.40110794.71
A (Hhe) 2847.29 4202.46 7445.38 1690.45 4984.56 3808.50 5674.8229147.41 9488.39 11493.22 80782.48
faw (T%9) 334.22 1719.42 1616.22 1221.05 2135.58 4111.75 6339.3011438.16 1103.89 7861.67 37881.26
LIN 57.56 330.10 384.23 46.43  138.36  162.28 991.62 2036.33  400.00 4435.29 8982.20

EES qamemiaa  789.47 193.27 647.36  510.95 2652.75 1244.03 2056.90 1347.90  611.18 1067.13 11120.94

ﬁévﬁg&ué%‘ri 465.37 217.98 518.79 441.89 2067.25 1861.85 2771.81 1370.30  253.55 1395.12 11363.91
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LENDING TO SENSITIVE SECTOR (As
certified by the Bank)

7.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(5. 30 H)
ot 2000-10  2008-09 (Rs in crore)
#) T O SfE Category 2009-10 2008-09
: . Direct Exposure
) fesshaus (@)
YR 1 39 Regeht i) Residential Mortgages -
Hufed W S FR Ui Lending fully secured by
gﬁsﬁgmﬁgﬁgqﬁﬁf mortgages on residential
qa@mémwﬁmé proper.nij tlt:at tihs obr will be
1 SR FoRT ) e s 316222 3900.36 oceupied by The borrower
or that is rented,; 3162.22  3900.36
mﬁﬁ 3 i Out of which, Individual housing
El%ﬁ °mqﬁ loans eligible to be classified
AR AT 0T 224013 3027.34 under Priority Sector 224013 3027.34
1) =OTSoR T T AT i) Commercial Real Estate -
TR HORTE R F4 FR Ffeod Lending secured by mortgages
YR (FATA 9aH, BISH-HIeT 5T, on commercial real estates
a@aﬁpﬁ’qmﬁﬁmqﬁq{, (office buildings, retail space,
agfay-aReaR e el wed, agfay multi purpose commercial
WWQW@WWW, prelzm.ises, mult.i-family residential .
ST A T e s, ndustil o waehouse
C{m ¥ . s i <) space, hotels, land acquisition,
SHR ﬁﬁg_ﬁfﬁa :. 5 development and construction etc.)
() T wfsfem € | 7100.57  5819.07 Exposure includes non-fund
iii) é%mw@‘ﬁm{ﬁﬁﬁ based (NFB) limits; 7100.57  5819.07
IR ST 371 T U S - iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed
ERIGER 0.32 0.63 Securities and other securitised exposures -
Q. FITTe TR Fua a. Residential 0.32 0.63
. 379 15.00 - b. Commercial Real estate
c. Others 15.00
) TR RO SEH: T Ew
) %’aﬁ(@@aﬁ)aﬁ“{wﬁa (b) Indirect Exposure: Fund based and
o f'( ﬂ)wﬁfﬁaﬂmﬁﬁ non-fund based exposures on
s AR SR SER SR 949 10 75171 National Housing Bank (NHB) and
] ’ ’ ’ Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 949.10 751.71
TTeR ST g ol et HOT S 12721 12197 Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 11227.21 12219.17
7.2 St AR H FTOT SAEH 7.2 Exposure to Capital Market:
(5. T H) (Rs in crore)
feeTor 2009-10 2008-09 Category 2009-10 2008-09
. - ' oot ae (i)  direct investment made in equity
1) Sl M’ e EIT@, shares, convertible bonds, convertible
RadTeite feaer e 399 debentures and units of equity —
pﬁmq@aﬁmﬁmw oriented mutual funds the corpus of
which is not exclusively invested in
LR IE ’;*ﬁ ffera ;‘a‘*’ afre: corporate debt; 34880  396.82
PR F0T H T S T E; 348.00 396.82
| .
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(. FTH ) (Rs in crore)
et 2009-10 2008-09 Category 2009-10 2008-09
) v (emegden / Sugend afed), (i) advances against shares/bonds/
TRadreiiaratel st ultadTefte debentures or other securities or
fe i e 37 o st 1 shes
el A1 fe A v F o (including IPOS/ESOPS),
el & Tl / aret / feawy A e convertible bonds, convertible
gferferat o it ar fefey smem w e, 10,81 18.94 debentures and units of
e i 3 5 equity-oriented mutual funds. 10.81 18.94
m 3 )
) e F@ﬁ?ﬁ ;; (i) advances for any other purposes where
Stel bl L Rl shares or convertible bonds or
qfRereiter feaed =1 gt 3@ convertible debentures or units of
T el 1 (A H equity oriented mutual funds are
gmqgﬁqiﬁa;gqﬁmwg; 806.26 812.72 taken as primary security; 896.26  812.72
iV) el T / uRad et atet / (iv) advances for dang otr:ler p:JIrposelzs to the
FE e e e g extent. secured by the co atera
. . d security of shares or convertible
qrgaﬁ ?ﬂ < ﬁgﬁu{m;i ﬂi bonds or convertible debentures or units
S 1 e © B AE B, of equity oriented mutual funds ie.
e S gRadsier atel O gikadste where the primary security other than
%ﬁaﬁms‘ﬁaﬁmvﬁgmmﬁ shares/convertible bonds/ convertible
FE — debentures/ units of equity oriented
ﬂ ’ ﬂ K mutual funds does not fully cover
H () 31 el (o fore e a0, 9 Rl the advances; il il
V) RiGaEH RyTy Y 9 THfA (v) secured and unsecured advances
A 3T =T T 3 ATk dd to stockbrokers and guarantees
ﬁﬁtﬁm’ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ; 141.89 175.43 issued on behalf of stockbrokers
) 5 e and market makers; 141.89 175.43
Vi) e e S aTeT § 9 e
) ; . (vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against
Fi et & gads & SiveE # g0 B )
e . . the security of shares/bonds/debentures
& fou vl / sitet / fesferdl =1 o= wfeegfoe or other securities or on clean basis for
Ft gfefa o 9ft a1 fef sTeR w meeting promoter's contribution to the
FIIRET B HoX F; gl 250.00 equity of new companies in
B anticipation of raising resources; Nil. 250.00
Vi) wenfym et yare /
ﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬁiﬁw' = = (vii) bridge loans to companies against
’ expected equity flows / issues; Nil Nil
Vi) Qﬁ'@?ﬂ et R (viii) underwriting commitments taken up by
%éa.i ?JTé. .aaé. S ;E.@r*i?ﬁm%aﬁ the banks in respect of primary issue of
et & gelg § g1 g F shares or convertible bonds or convertible
arefeiad gfaga; N N debentures or units of equity
. ?]%’W%f%ﬂ( . ) oriented mutual funds; Nil Nil
1X) W 2fem o fore wefe sl o
F o TR 0.42 (ix) financing to stockbrokers
kS for margin trading; 0.42 Nil
X) m]ﬁﬁjﬁ (TP 3 ﬁ:ﬁiﬁ) (x) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds
6 wfe et 1 S 314.71 116.96 (both registered and unregistered) 31471 116.96
st AR F et IR S 1712.89  1770.87 Total Exposure to Capital market 171289 1770.87




7.3 ifigm yaf-ar <erE FOT S
(5. FgH)
St 3132010 3132010 313.2009 3132009
& s & b
faasfm  afayeed  feaamm  gRamees
()
smgeEul  6196.37 343 721974 293
e 198830 = 201235 9
T 154576 = 130587 A
Bl 592 = 1739 w=
I 080 = 578y
EIGEIEGE 0.00 = 127 =
IHR-TW 000 = 000 T
el 9737.15 343 1056240  2.93
7.4 S T ARAIAG Tohel SURhal ST (THATA),

g IURdl Hiar (Shaftwer) o e

e i e & feenfaden 3t 2010 & fow g
% % 07 i TS 1 WAl ok TR Tehel St
T SIfEE W H OSFHT TR E.1557.04 FE
(gsfie fAfer &1 15%)2 31X 9qg U A &
T £.4152.11 FUg (Yt ARt 1 40%) 21

(5. HUTH)
%. IREA RV R 9% @M wWaEy @ a 31032010
g #am  Sifem & fEdw  stowm  Aqid  aa fe
it LH dmE @i fEwm T
dim st g d Rafy
Rl & A
g
. wfta  1557.04 whet A A A A £.2076.05 T
I T 1650.00 FT T F S WY
EEicd AU U 390 Tl
Ft 350.00 g 123.52
fafies R faaR
(z%) F F
o argaf
2. TR 89.80  224.50 Wmadf  @m A 22-09-09 v
oty (quwel  (queel s
fowaed, 20 frl) 50 frel) @ S g
f
3. it 89.80  157.15 2009-10 157.15  22-09-09 157.15
@R - (quEE (queed (Fuget (queet
st 20 fa) 35 i) 35 fi) 35 fi)
ECpers
iy,
Fiemal §
faw
4. #em  89.80  179.60 2009-10 179.60  29-10-09 180.81
TR TA(qeEE  (quEe (quEel (quedt
?ﬁs;; 20 fira) 40 firl) 40 firat) 40.27 Tt
T,

o

&

2

3

2
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7.3

Risk Category-wise Country Exposure:

(Rs in crore)

Risk Category

Exposure  Provision  Exposure  Provision
(net) as at held as at (net) as at held as at

31.3.2010 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2009
Insignificant 6196.37 343  7219.74 293
Low 1988.30 Nil 2012.35 Nil
Moderate 1545.76 Nil 1305.87 Nil
High 5.92 Nil 17.39 Nil
Very High 0.80 Nil 5.78 Nil
Restricted 0.00 Nil 1.27 Nil
Off-credit 0.00 Nil 0.00 Nil
Total 9737.15 343 1056240 293
7.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL),

Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by
the bank:

As per RBI guidelines and terms of Loan
Policy Document of our Bank for 2010, the
permissible level of Single Borrower exposure
ceiling is Rs. 1557.04 crores (15% of Capital
funds) and Rs. 4152.11 crores for Group
Borrower limit (40% of Capital funds)

(Rs. In crore)

Sl Name of Exposure  Limit Period  Amount Board Position
No. the Ceiling  Sanctioned during  Outstanding sanction as on
Borrower which  during the details  31.03.2010
[imit period limit outstanding
exceeded  exceeded
1. Indian  1557.04 FB 1650.00 Not Not Permitted  FB: Cedt Balance
Farmers & NFB 350.00 exceeded applicaple to consider NFB: 123.52
Fertilisers Credit
Company facilities
Ltd. upto Rs.
(IFFCO) 2076.05
Crores
2. Emmar 8980 22450 Amount  NA 22.09.09 NIL
Properties (USD 20 (USD 50  yetto be
PJSC, mio) mio) disbursed
Singapore
3. Govemment 89.80 15715 2009-10 157.15 22.09.09 157.15
of Sri Lanka (USD 20 (USD 35 (USD 35 (USD 35
investment mio) mio) mio) mio)
in Sri Lankan
Development
Bonds, Colombo
4. Olam 89.80  179.60 2009-10 179.60 29.10.09  180.81
International (USD 20 (USD 40 (USD 40 (USD 40.27
Pte Ltd,  mio) mio) mio) mio)

Singapore
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8. faree 8. MISCELLANEOUS
8.1 a% ¥ JATA A F F AT FHT TT gEEE 7} 8.1 Amount of provisions made for Income Tax
) . during the year:
THY (. F0s H)
(Rs. in crore)
2009-10  2008-09 2009-10 200809
31 X T grrerr () 4594 698.20 Provision for Income Tax (net) 4594 69820
feTam dafeas #X (42) Provision for Minimum
% f e 250.74 Alternate Tax (MAT) 25074 —
42 IYR (250.74) MAT Credit Entitlement (250.74) —
IS A1 R & T graee - 12.94 Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax — 12.94

8.2 WA RSTS slsh ERI TT 7T STATA AT
GhHSTHWT : I
8.3 YU T HhITTHAT - Fh 37T
(%. ®0g A)

8.2 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI:
NIL

8.3 Provisions and Contingencies — Break-up
(Rs. in crore)
2009-10  2008-09

Break up of ‘Provisions and

G ERCIcR =] 2009-10  2008-09 . 0
Contingencies’ shown under
¥its & ded quIT T Lo
« s the head Expenditure in
T F SAH R Profit and Loss Account
T FH3TT ~ o
Provisions for depreciation
e W qeR™ & foe yaem -120.02 1.07 on Investment -120.02 1.07
S SRl & 9f gEwE 919.46 365.50 Provision towards NPA 91946 36550
e 3Nl & gfd yraee 01 47 .4
’ 6-0 7:40 Provision towards Standard Assets 6.01 47.40
SR (Thatel, ST
FI F Gufed AL AlZa) Provision made towards Income Tax
F gfa B T yrEaee 271.99  628.51 (incl FBT, Deferred Tax & Wealth Tax) 271.99  628.51
3 YU g Shfhard 60.22 155.45 Other Provision and Contingencies 60.22 155.45
e 1137.66  1197.93 TOTAL 1137.66  1197.93
8.4 T YT 8.4 Floating Provisions
(5. HUE H) (Rs. in crore)
TereruT 2009-10  2008-09 Particulars 2009-10  2008-09
%) 3l yEuE & @ (a) Opening balance in the
T ol 3y 171.36  259.92 floating provisions account 17136 259.92
T) @@ 9 § fHu T s (b) The quantum of floating
a3 TET provisions made in the
RS RS accounting year Nil Nil
K WMG[M i o A # (c) Amount of draw down made
! A S 88.56 during the accounting year Nil 88.56
) 3.“. HAE % @ (d) Closing balance in the floating
¥ oifam oy 171.36 171.36 provisions account 17136 171.36
. .
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8.5

TRl T GoheTahIuT

8.5.1 TTEHI i 1RTehTEA

(%) a5 & URY § ofeq e #it gen 47
(@) o & < T i B g

(M = & A fafia femat & g
() a9 & fq H cfea fSrepradt st g 58

1291

1280

8.5.2 SIT3HT etehurel NI TR 3o

(F) & & gR F sF-FrEifaq At

Edlstell 2
(@) 7 & <A fHT dAwue g R
arfyfaofal &t e 1

(M) & & I Pt e e 1
(%) I=a =med | sffta & faws

A diell S Her 1
(@) T & 3fq F F-Fmifaq stfufviaf
& qe 1

8.6

Tehic SMTATEA-TF (TASTE)

% o O I T T TR Y- 1
LRIENRCLIRIEIC] =
ot qedifend faeita aread =
af 2009-10 & A d% 7 TH THIA SLAHA T
(TeAstret) 39 o= & 9 S e 2 % a8 a1

S T & T H 12% % A HRUIR
FH AT W

Sfealigd & STaer 3R HIT TaAeidht 7 2 T8 %
3 ST foFan @ iR g & STER 31-03-2010 T
& AU 39 TS & SHNUT g Ay 997/a 421 2 |

8.5

Disclosure of complaints

8.5.1 Customer Complaints

(@) No. of complaints pending at the
beginning of the year 47

(b) No. of complaints received

during the year 1291
(c) No. of complaints redressed

during the year 1280
(d) No. of complaints pending at the

end of the year 58

8.5.2

Awards passed by the Banking
Ombudsman

(@) No. of unimplemented Awards at the
beginning of the year 2

(b) No. of Awards passed by the Banking
Ombudsmen during the year 1

(c) No. of Awards implemented during the year 1

(d) Appeal against the awards allowed

in the High Court 1
(e) No. of unimplemented Awards at the
end of the year 1

8.6

Letters of Comfort (LoC)

Letters of Comfort issued during the year One

Assessed Financial Impact Nil
Cumulative Assessed Financial Obligations Nil

During the year 2009-10, the Bank has issued
a Letter of Comfort (LoC) undertaking to
maintain a minimum CRAR of 12% in respect
of Bangkok branch.

There is no other LoC issued by the Bank
other than the one mentioned above
and as assessed there is no financial impact
on account of this LoC as on 31.03.2010

8.7

ST SAUH (Ah FR YA FTAR)
(2.H0T )

T WA e foT Sifaerl W 99w,

T JifereRT R Seft svd

gfagfeat o mft § 1292.01

TH UFR I A Huifvew glasfoai

I SFTAT qoo 7218.87

8.7

Unsecured Advances (As certified by the
Bank)

(Rs. In crore)

Total amount for which intangible
securities such as charge over
the rights, licences authority, etc.,

has been taken 1292.01
Estimated value of such
intangible collateral 7218.87
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8.8 FHTTITH BTN (2.F% )
T YR/ R 14.38
9 AWK AIAHI A3 (ST o5 STLE
PETAE IR
9.1 AWIhT A 15 - HAE o

1) &% 3 01 39 2007 ¥ IEAT Tt A@ERR
T gy o “HHErt o et At
o6 15 (e ) st 7o on|

1) 39 9% % yEer § HHart 9 & fou sHfig
TSHTUThTA a1 1 AT %.267 HU'S (e
o & oL .356 HUE) 21 31-03-2010 Fi
TETE =M, % o [T .89 HAE A AT
(et o %.80 HUE) &9 I &I @I
g i T 1 %.178 HUS (st o
%267 FUF) H A AT TG H 3 A
ST ST T8T @ aNeh 59 3TTel & as § yerfid
R ST Eeh |

1. A @R AR -1 5(UEniEa) @ TaR
TR TN o I T T o o F wear
T (o7 S-S el & A eehrefa HHar e
 gRivTE fafy freed @

(%) TATE @ ASEE
e o aaAE qeal 7 uRkadH

8.8 Bancassurance Business (Rs. In crore)

Fees / Remuneration Received 14.38

9. DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

9.1 Accounting Standard 15 - Employee

Benefits

i) The Bank had adopted Accounting
Standard 15 (Revised) “Employees
Benefits” issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, with effect
from 1t April 2007.

i) The balance of unrecognised Transitional

Liability on account of Employee Pension

amounted to Rs.267 Crores (previous year

Rs.356 Crores) at the beginning of this

year. A sum of Rs. 89 Crores (previous

year Rs. 89 Crores) has been charged
to Profit & Loss Account of the current
year ended 31.03.2010. The balance

Unrecognized Liability of Rs.178 crores

(previous year Rs.267 crores) is being

carried forward to be charged off in the

next two years

i) The summarized position of Post-

employment benefits and long term

employee benefits recognized in the Profit

& Loss Account and Balance Sheet as

required in accordance with Accounting

Standard-15 (Revised) are as under:

(a) Defined Benefit Schemes:

Changes in the present value of the obligations

(F.Eb'ﬁ's,’ﬁ) (Rs. in crore)
LN Heet IR PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(fHifereh) (fferh) EEEUl ENCASHMENT
(e it A W WA i
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
o Present Value of
a&%mﬁ obligation as at
A the beginning of
a?hmqu 1709.90 157227 507.34 466.18 254.00 247.83 the year 170990 157227 507.34 46618 25400  247.83
N A 136.79 117.92 3926 3637 1848 1896 Interest Cost 136.79 1792 39.26 36.37 1848 1896
Bk 3L10 2857 2691 2583 1522 1496 CorentSenico Cost 3110 2857 2691 283 182 1%
Benefts Paid (10443)  (7360) (3820) (321) (1513) (21.69)
Tt ol (10443) (73.60) (33.20) (23.21) (15.13) (21.63) Actuaral loss/
TS R aTas (gain) on
s S
Esra?frrr-rqya 2049.47 1709.90 523.28 507.34 264.35 254.00 year end 204947 170090 52328 50734 926435 25400
: 106 §
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Change in Fair Value of Plan Asset

(Rs. in crores)

PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
ENCASHMENT
(Funded) (Funded) (Un Funded)

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

(&85 H)
ENE] et CECaN
(feferen) (feferen) TheThTT
( forfren)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
CLEE L
BIEE it
ﬂﬁﬁ@@ 1709.90 1572.27 507.34 466.18 0.00 0.00
BISEI
WIARA T 11543 9122 5558 4302  0.00 0.0
CRiEaEn]
YA 366.12 19291 180.00 11.00 15.13 21.63
Fere (10443) (73.60) (3320) (2321) (15.13) (21.63)
TR R
i 55
T/ () (9205) (7290) (3366) 1035 000 0.00
GLEE G
o1 #
3@3@@ 1994.97 1709.90 676.06 507.34 0.00 0.00

@ GHAUTTC AT Wied - 39 A ¥-9.1(11) 3@
e - o § ugEr T WA

Fair Value of Plan
Assets at the
beginning of

the year @ 1709.90 1572.27 507.34 466.18 0.00  0.00

Expected return
on Plan Assets 11543 91.22 5558 43.02 0.00 0.00

Employer’s

contribution 366.12 192.91 180.00 11.00 1513 21.63

Benefit Paid  (104.43) (73.60) (33.20) (23.21) (15.13) (21.63)

Actuarial loss/
(gain) on

Obligations (92.05) (72.90) (33.66) 10.35 0.00  0.00

Fair Value of
Plan Asset at
the end of

the year @ 1994.97 1709.90 676.06 507.34 0.00  0.00

@ including transitional liability — See Note 9.1(ii) above
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crores)

PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
ENCASHMENT
(Funded) (Funded) (Un Funded)

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

(2.5 H)
LK) et STAHTE
(i) (o) THETHLT
(T fAferh)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
T 3T
el
AT
WW 2049.97 1709.90 523.28 507.34 264.35 254.00
ELEEEE
BISEIE 5]
FA(ID
'ﬁﬁ@ 1816.97 144290 676.06 507.34  0.00  0.00
affee et
o 23050 267.00(14146)% - 26435 254.00

*  3qd 178 HUS H AT HhHUTRIA ST A
2, 9 31 & S R

k¥ g UUE 15 S B 90 59(h) & ded .152.78 HE
%} afaer Fh % S g A avtar 8|

Estimated Present
value of obligations
as at the end

of the year 2049.97 1709.90 523.28 507.34 264.35 254.00

Actual Fair value
of Plan Assets
as at the end

of the year 1816.97 1442.90 676.06 507.34 0.00  0.00
Un-funded
Net Liability 232.50* 267.00(141.46)** 264.35 254.00

* Includes unrecognized transitional liability
carried forward Rs.178 crores.

** This represent the Present Value of future
reduction of Rs.152.78 crores under Para
59(b) of AS15R.
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Expenses Recognised in Profit & Loss

(.5 (Rs. in crores)
thct et TR PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Fafere) (ffos)  Trdia ENGASHMENT
(‘?I fifere) (Funded) (Funded) (Un Funded)
010 2000 2010 2000 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current Service
S S T 31.10 2857 2691 2583 1522 1496 Cost 3110 2857 2691 2583 1522 14.96
AN AT 136.79 11792 39.26 3637 1848 18.96 Interest Cost 136.79 11792 3926 36.37 1848 18.96
Expected return
T ARTR on Plan Asset (115.43) (91.22) (55.58) (43.02) 0.00 0.00
Fw ey (11543) (91.22) (55.58) (43.02)  0.00  0.00 .
Net Actuarial
¥ TEEHT T (Gain)/Loss
faaAE recognised in
(c) /= 368.16 13764 1663 (818) (822) (6.12) the year 36316 137.64 1663 (8.18) (8.22) (6.12)
Effect of limit
TS as per AS15R — — 1132 - — —
SR G S T — — 1132 - - — Total expenses
. recognised in
ELEKIEEEE] Profit & Loss
WA Aga=d 42062 19291 3854 1100 2548 27.80 Account 420.62 19291 3854 11.00 2548 27.80
¥ o ‘f?’i[,?? =9 T Sqil'@lﬁ Py gfeEa - Investment percentage maintained by Pension
B & Gratuity Trust
TR (%) deRt = (%) Pension Trust (%) Gratuity Trust (%)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
F. FUforad a) Debt Instruments

FETERA AR 18.67  25.53  18.89  27.32
TEFERA A 3125 1617 2951 18.17

gy # fraw * 40.92 5041 38.51 43.97
= faawm 9.15 7.89 13.10 10.54
@, et foraa N = ™= Y

Central Government

Securities 18.67 25.53 18.89 27.32
State Government
Securities 31.25 16.17 29.51 18.17

Investment in PSU* 40.92 50.41 38.51 43.97
Other Investments 9.15 7.89 13.10 10.54
b) Equity Instruments Nil Nil Nil Nil

* I &1 o YA B a9 % Sfeia gu A% # 19 AR H%.99.50
FE (17.36%) 31 F=3<t ffey  £.0.05 #0% (0.02%) FF TR Ft
forandh e e 1

-1 hi ARG Toh {el ar&dielsh LA (A
Ed o ®9 4 A eTer)

ENE] Heet CECaN

(fAferen) (o) ECaHET|

(e forfren)

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

I 800% 7150% 800% 750% 8.00% 7.50%

BIEE Eie
AT AT & 800% 923% 9571% 957% Wo
EUR| PN NG Do Yo P T Y T

ST S wiwsE  waeE Rt

I JER I
IS S R A e e %.21.92 g (et ai®.53.37 #s)

* Investments in PSU includes own Fixed Deposits
of this Bank Rs.99.50 Crores (17.36%) in Pension
Fund and Rs.0.05 Crores (0.02%) in Gratuity Fund.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance
Sheet Date (expressed as weighted average)

PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
ENCASHMENT
(Funded) (Funded) (Un Funded)

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount Rate 8.00% 7.50% 8.00% 7.50% 8.00% 7.50%

Expected rate
of return on
Plan Assets 8.00% 9.23% 9.57% 9.57% 0% 0%

Expected Rate of

Salary increase 4% 5% 4% 5% 4% 5%

Method used Projected Projected Projected
unit credit unit credit unit credit

Actual return on Plan Assets: Gratuity Rs. 21.92 Crores (Previous

Year Rs.53.37Crores)
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Experience Adjustments

fereroT Teet STTRIYT haIHT Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment
(frferes) (T faferep) (Un funded)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ST T W Experience adjustment
: on Plan assets
?ﬁ) | e (33.66) 1035 FE— (Loss)/Gain (33.66)  10.35 Nil Nil
. Experience adjustment
AT A W on Plan Liabilities
ALHATT FASA (Loss)/Gain (21.67) 1052 (9.30) 8.87
(&) / @ (21.67) 10.52 (9.30) 8.87

AR qAlhd o qed e dad gi4 & FAM! 4,
IS AT W AT A, TEEH, S, w&ra
3T 37 WA FRH J FHAK ATWR F 7T F St
& fwme # foran 21

31-03-2010 &I a1 a¥ o forw FH=El & a0 @ §
T gFg & HROT T TC Jrae i &9 €.168 FUE
2, I9d %.406 HUS H1 qUfHd GEe a1 8, ¥4
graelier 31 & 70 & & oI gafe 7= 7 81

fagef wrmre & way & FEd oW A & fag arg
F1E JHIHT STURT & A Gl o 37919 H Ig 7 2|

(@) TRebeH! & fo e Tu facdfta srae faead @

T R : TN W H JAIHA &1 aE (e - T
femiferd 31.03.2010) TR dEl W TR @9 &
geof # 99 fpar T g |

T A T U9 F T2l o ARl & Hag 7
JATT AT & TR T T AT o 3R T
foFa T 21 F=Adt & Gy H arfas o 6 forn
TE

I gfg : T ST & MER W |

3Tl faretter & & srafar sternft ara d=get & forg
S 1 Galc 3Thel I g |

R SF3EM ST - wfesy 34y & SRo7 gare

g & R E €.716.16 HUE (Usd oy -
%.620.25 FE) |

(M)

(%)

The estimates of future salary increases,
considered in actuarial valuation, take into
account actual return on plan assets, inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
such as supply and demand in employee market.

The provision made on account of expected
increase in salary levels of employees for the
year ended 31.03.2010 is Rs.168 crores, forming
an aggregate provision of Rs.406 crores, which
is considered adequate for meeting the
incremental liability.

In respect of overseas branches, disclosures if
any, required for Employee Benefit Schemes are
not made in the absence of information.

(b) The financial assumptions considered for the
calculations are as under:-

Discount Rate: - The discount rate has been
chosen by reference to market yield on
government bonds as on the date of
valuation. (Balance sheet date 31.03.2010)

Expected Rate of Return: In case of Pension
and Leave Encashment, the expected rate
of return is taken on the basis of yield on
government bonds. In case of gratuity, the
actual return has been taken.

Salary Increase: On the basis of past data.

(©

Bank’s best estimate expected to be paid
in next Financial Year for Gratuity is Nil.

(d) The contribution on account of Defined
Contribution Scheme - Provident Fund
Rs.716.16 Crores (previous year Rs. 620.25
Crores).
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9.2 Accounting Standard 17 - Segment Reporting

The bank has adopted Reserve Bank of India’s revised guidelines issued in April 2007 on Segment
Reporting in terms of which the reportable segments have been divided into Treasury, Corporate/
Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking and Other Banking Operations.

Part A: Business Segments

Business Segments Treasury Corporate/Wholesale  Retail Banking Other Banking TOTAL
Banking Operations
Particulars 2009-10  2008-09  2009-10  2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10  2008-09  2009-10  2008-09
Revenue 289204 2917.86  4862.74 448728 3269.72 3288.83 350.84 44742 1137534 11141.39
Result 33.29 310.44 901.06 114566 97514  766.74 -78.36 205.22 1831.13  2428.06
Unallocated Income - - - - - - 13.68 95.84
Unallocated Expenses 0.19 0.18
Operating
Profit/Loss 1844.62  2523.72
Income Taxes 271.99 628.51
Provisions & Contingencies 783.50 569.42
Extraordinary profit / loss (82.17) -
Net Profit 70696  1325.79
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 41385.24  35306.77 52492.03 39708.52 33759.65 43396.01 2076.97 183554 129713.89 120246.84
Unallocated Assets 1382.50 826.56
Total assets 131096.39 121073.40
Segment Liabilities 36982.33 2927197 5113113 39280.99 33523.92 30689.07 1526.60 14378.49 123163.98 113620.52
Unallocated Liabilities 407.83 301.88
Total Liabilities 123571.81 113922.40

9.2 A@i%hd "M 17

- @ug e

U e & forw s 7 e s e gR 37 e 2007 § ST st fenfadi &1 a1 8, 57k S fiure fohw S aret @vel =t ¢ 5,
FHIARE / ol Ak, e e & 37 sk wrret & antiepd R g |

q T : HTR IS (5. T H)
TGS Bl FURE / e AT ReadfT AT IREH 3
foraroT 2009-10  2008-09  2009-10  2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 200809  2009-10  2008-09
e 289204 291786 486274 448728 326972 328883 35084 44742 1137534 1114139
R 3329 31044 90106 114566 97514 76674 7836 20522 183113 2428.06
SR - - - - - - 13.68 95.84
SRT 2R 0.19 0.18
RaTeT A/ 18462 25372
M 27199 62851
T @ SR 78350 569.42
TR A / & - - - - - - (82.17) -
fia 70696 1325.79
S L
TR 4138524 3530677 5249203 3970852 33759.65 4339601 207697  1835.54 12971389 120246.84
SR st 138250 82656
e it 13109639 12107340
TR 3698233 2927197 5113113 3928099 3352392 30689.07 152660 1437849 12316398 113620.52
IR 3T 40783 301.88
FI e 123571.81 11392240
110 |
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Part B - Geographic segments

it Ecrausip Fa
2009-10 2008-09 2009-10  2008-09  2009-10 2008-09

Domestic International Total
2009-10  2008-09 2009-10 2008-09  2009-10  2008-09

TSTE 10928.21  10655.40 460.81 51333 11389.02 11168.73%
smfsaal 121744.12 113595.78 935227 7477.62 131096.39  121073.40

Revenue 10928.21 1065540  460.81  513.33  11389.02 11168.73*
Assets 12174412 113595.78  9362.27  7477.62 131096.39 121073.40

*TH 5.68.50 U S hi STETEEET HE IMHe T8 2 |
9.3 AWIhd A 18 - T e FeheishivT

A U o A1 o 9 o 91 3T Y

* Does not include exceptional items of Rs. 68.50 crores.

9.3 Accounting Standard 18- Related Party
Disclosures

Names of the related parties and their
relationship with the bank

1 g g gfiega ety JF
N . 1 Parent Indian Overseas Bank
2 wedrh g ifvead UM A% .
5 S 2 Associates Pandyan Grama Bank
Neelachal Gramya Bank
3 eufrEr 3 T& 3. Subsidiaries None
4 Hoga: frEfE W g S 4 Jointly controlled Universal Sompo General
T T S fafiee entity Insurance Co. Ltd.
5 g]:\l;@l' g qgmm 5 Key Management Personnel
ST 9W Jeqmq R+ Sl Name Designation Remuneration*
4. & (%) No. Amount (Rs.)
1 sft U 9 Wamﬁﬁﬁ 23,41,058 1. Shri S.A. Bhat Chairman &
Managing Director 23,41,058
2 o A TATR FEAT FRE16,82,445 2. ShriYL Madan  Executive Director  16,82,445
3 ftwelt U e rEiver e 3,14,223 3. Smt. Nupur Mitra  Executive Director 3,14,223
4 ot StArEeE ud FEfues fAeve 14,04,027 4. Shri G. Narayanan Ex-ED 14,04,027

* qiRefies § 999 9 W, daq awE, e gierea af,
gt G S 3k ALt S e 7

qe: AEihT qH-18 § “Hafaq el gshetmor’ & 4 9 &
ME S TEAI WeAeT / HAFq 3TMl & Wi AF-3A1 Hl GHe
TR % WY A A G T[S FHSE e @ g & 8,
St TS g @ i sem @ S Seht aEiee aes & 4 5 |
Sfeaitad 2 6 afe gefyq wef & et garf § sheel wh & g
2 A TSR F SETTHA A4 2 |

9.4 A@ihd AM® 20 - 9fd AW 37

* Remuneration Includes salary & allowances, salary arrears,
performance incentives, leave encashment arrears and gratuity arrears.

Note: The transactions with associates / joint ventures have not
been disclosed in view of Para 9 of Accounting Standard - 18
“Related Party Disclosures”, which exempts state controlled
enterprises from making any disclosure pertaining to their transactions
with other related parties which are also state controlled enterprises
and Para 5 of the same Accounting Standard states that no
disclosure is required if there is only one entity in any category of
related party.

9.4 Accounting Standard 20 - Earning Per Share

fereruT 2009-10 2008-09 Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
et TeREmE o oY L & o8 Net Profit after Tax available for

ey frga o (5. HUS H) 706.96 1325.79 Equity Shareholders (Rs. In Crore) 706.96 1325.79
i 3 Weighted Average Number of

HEzcikpniciktea) 54,48,00,000 54,48,00,000 Equity Shares 54,48,00,000 54,48,00,000
I T A A g3 TF WA A 12.98 24.34 Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share ~ Rs. 1298  Rs. 24.34
EEMENCIE LD ] 10.00 10.00 Nominal value per Equity Share Rs. 10.00  Rs. 10.00
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9.5 AWk HIFeh 21 - TRIHA faa fqaRoT 9.5 Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated
Gilcaes) Financial Statements (CFS)
Hf FE s geen 98 €, e e whiEa As there is no subsidiary, no consolidated
faefter faaor 2 e smaves & Tsh T financial statement is considered necessary.

9.6 AWIHT HHH 22 : A W HU o (AT A@m

g8 & T, 9% 1 £.226.2]1 FUE F A H
3T (frset o &t i & o W& %.82.74
Fg) ® feae & foran g1 9% & U £.169.12
FUE T (et | H 2gd 2 (o af
i R & 2 €.57.09 g W) | fiE
X ST I Tarsh o 7@ 7l & 937 e
fﬁmw%:

9.6 Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for

Taxes on Income

The Bank has accounted for Deferred Tax
Liability of Rs.226.21 crores during the year
(Previous year Deferred Tax Asset of Rs.82.74
crores). The Bank has outstanding net
deferred tax liability of Rs.169.12 crores
(Previous year Deferred Tax Asset of Rs.57.09
crores). The breakup of deferred tax assets
and liabilities into major items is given below:

(2.H0T ) Rs. in crore

31-03-2010 31-03-2009 31.03.2010 31.03.2009

@ dwm S G DA DIL  DTA  DTL

FrA e 388.74 67.43 Depreciation on Investments 388.74 67.43

S ST W e 7.46 15.66 Depreciation on Fixed Assets 7.46 15.66
FHOG AN H T TEEE 138.41 129.07 Provision for Employee Benefits 138.41 129.07
qraEeEdi & fo gy 9.23 8.63 Provision for Frauds 9.23 8.63
I 64.52 2.48 Others 64.52 2.48

£ 219.62 388.74 140.18  83.09 Total 219.62 38874 14018  83.09
fraa Sty/Eidtta 169.12 57.09 Net DTA / DTL 169.12  57.09

9.7 A@IHA AFH 26 - A AAT

3% H TgF SFFAT HHaw H WE & JAR R
T 2 31 T8 T A 7y | i gan e | o
IR F AN A & IS T Y daT
32 1 ¥t 37912 ST 38 - @ & Hefhd
= wftst & gifiq foan man 21

A@HA AFE 27 - S 3Tl 4 fRal # fodta
Rt

FHadd Qe SRA SR &. . & 99 g
SUH % A F §F 7 £.28.50 FAE 1 A9 fHar
ST ¥t ¥ 19% R E 1 T 27 & SER ¥H
Ft SaTet STHEd Ya i T gwE # T 2
f& 31-03-2010 & T af & forw FAada T
SRA SV &, A1, & facfta siael &t ot sifaw
&Y fer S R |

9.8

9.7 Accounting Standard 26 - Intangible
Assets

The application software in use in the bank
has been developed in-house and has evolved
over a period of time. Hence, the costs of
software is essentially part of Bank’s
operational expenses like wages etc. and as
such are charged to the respective heads
of expenditure in the Profit and Loss Account.

9.8 Accounting Standard 27 - Financial

Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures

In the case of Joint Venture with Universal
Sompo General Insurance Company Ltd., the
bank has made an investment of Rs.28.50
crores being 19% share in Equity. Information
required to be disclosed as per AS 27 has
not been furnished since the financials for
the year ended 31.03.2010 of Universal
Sompo General Insurance Company Ltd., is
yet to be finalised.




9.9 WA AIFh 28 - JMXAAT hl 3Tsish BT

S g 9id 3 A & ke s’
T T E SR 3 U 5 S ud 28 &
SR AR SR “Tohel Gor gebrar” & 71
Jee & AAER a9 Fi Rt off st enfi # FiE
BIfeoT 78 2 1
9.10S Wk~ |I-sh 29 - ITTeRITHH ST 3T
&t o fae graes
Y Y T qNAT el QR S HET g St
feemfdait it Suga wH W e fpar T 2|
10 9RAt" RS e 3 Ry |, AR 3E/2009-
10/347 sisfienst. sl sidt. €.79/21.04.018/

2009-10 feAifRd 15-03-2010 & IR Afafaa
YHaTeh{uT

(i Freaferfiae wel & ehelaor 1 I8 ueet av &,
e fieet 91a & sise Isqd 46 U T §)

[. e, AYHE, o1 SifEA 9 f9sish A &at
T Fra1hT0T

STHISAT ShT S5 ohTUT
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9.9 Accounting Standard 28 - Impairment of
Assets

Fixed Assets owned by the Bank are treated
as ‘Corporate Assets’ and are not ‘Cash
Generating Units’ as defined by AS28 issued
by ICAI In the opinion of the Management,
there is no impairment of any of the Fixed
Assets of the Bank.

9.10 Accounting Standard 29 - Provision for
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

The guidelines issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India in this respect
have been incorporated at the appropriate
places.

10 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT
TO RBI CIRCULAR No. RBI/2009-10/347
DBOD.BP.BC.N0.79/21.04.018/2009-10
DATED 15.03.2010

(Previous year’s figures have not been
furnished since this is the first year of
disclosure of the following items)

I. CONCENTRATION OF DEPOSITS,
ADVANCES, EXPOSURES AND NPAS

Concentration of Deposits

(%. FUE H) (Rs. in crore)
g g2 STHHAE b A ST 14125 Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 14125
e e ST & e J CES Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest
STHTERT ST Bl SIS B HfeeT 12.75 deposits to Total Deposits of the bank 12.75
AMGAT T ST Concentration of Advances

(®. B3 H) (Rs. in crore)
e 92 SURehAISA P Faw Fel AH 9057 Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 9057
i ig ﬁa it W | e 72 Percentage of Advances of twenty largest
S v S T Ff 11.21 borrowers to Total Advances of the bank 11.21
T STEHT T S hTuT Concentration of Exposures

(3. BT ¥) (Rs. in crore)
o9 92 U / AEH B Faw Total Exposure to twenty largest
Fo Tt ot e 16727 borrowers / customers 16727
o ER SIS / TEH H FE Hl Percentage of Exposures of
F Fd Gﬁf@ﬁ & g & | CES twenty largest borrowers/
SUNHATS / Tl Bl o F0T Traeft customers to Total Exposure
St 1 g 14.08 of the bank on borrowers/ customers 14.08
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3TSTah STAAT ohT Ars1ahTuT (%. FE ) Concentration of NPAs Rs. in crore
maﬂm@zﬁﬁwmﬁ@wsﬁ@q 660.48 Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 660.48
1. gerf-o el smiat I SECTOR-WISE NPAs
T T, e e T Sl. No. Sector Percentage of
o At # NPAs to Total
qe | FFsla Advances in
B that Sector
| o T wwf - 1.33 1 Agriculture & allied activities 1.33
2 @ (geE, @, o T as) 5.9 2 Industry (Micro & small, Medium and Large) 5.99
3 gem 4.20 3 Services 4.20
4 s =0 3.37 4 Personal Loans 3.37
L. asts aTRaat &7 Sued I MOVEMENT OF NPAs
o T 5T T Particulars Amount in Rs.Crores
01.04.2009 T HeheT 3Fieh Gross NPAs as on 01-04-2009
it (FRfies 3i) 1923.41 (Opening Balance) 1923.41
a9 & d GaeT (7F ereis anfar) 3126.83 Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 3126.83
3U-T (37) 5050.24 Sub-total (A) 5050.24
raleg Less:-
1. e 547.82 () Up gradations 547.82
. agfeal (399 fHT TC @m § 9 (i) Recoveries (excluding recoveries
it T agferEl H BIEH) 502.78 made from upgraded accounts) 502.78
iii. 522 @r ¥ ereft T ww 388.56 (iii) Write-offs 388.56
3U-3T () 1439.16 Sub-total (B) 1439.16
31-03-2010 & foTT Hehet 3Tsish Gross NPAs as on 31.03.2010
ST (A= o) (39-37) 3611.08 (closing balance) (A-B) 3611.08
IV. et siaat, ssiss siear st aere IV OVERSEAS ASSETS, NPAs AND REVENUE
: Particulars Amount in Rs.Crores
oo Y &.HUE!
- Total Asset 9352.27
T S 939221 Total Nspi\e S 169.41
Pt ISl st 169.41 ot TIPS ‘
5o T 460.81 Total Revenue 460.81
] V  OFF-BALANCE SHEET SPVs SPONSORED (WHICH
V. q& o R g watst (e awis ARE REQUIRED TO BE CONSOLIDATED AS PER
TEUEl % SFER TR fFa ST STifer §) ACCOUNTING NORMS)
g wdtet & am Name of the SPV sponsored
axfta faaztt Domestic Overseas
hS hS NIL NIL

11 Q&I ATHS
foed ad & AFHS! I, Tl Fal AEATF T T,
U Tfed / qAartaq faa m

11 Comparative Figures

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped
/ rearranged wherever necessary.
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VST e S soh

A6 Garg el

31-03-2010 h! THTW I8 o [T Fohe Yo (o]

% T |

31.3.2010 i 99 o9

31.3.2009 ki FATE I

IR -1

T

fsfa = 102 45 77 35 96 41 40 33

I A 11662767 114120502 15273268 11168 73 01
= o YT

PESEZIE] 66 84 71 82 64 67 13 74

TR =3 § JraE 23547377 90394559 18407523 8307 8897

TR 2gare ST afkaat § gftadA &

J99 & Tec qrErer T Tfa-fafeE w

e H (g gig

2372 59 43 28 60 84 04

IREel |/ gisfa Tehd @y 23 7259 43 28 60 84 04
IR I I IAE ° FAepdl e
IREETa *arel W Hed gy / 2™

1)  wEe @ ey 106 78 82 15 157 90 30 68

1) o= 7 faxfta gt 4 sur -24 37 38 05 1 94 63 61

1il) 311 URETer e 2FAe 3 e -562 18 53 -10 98 85 45

76 79 25 57 148 86 08 84

IRETe T el W Hae gie/e™

(i) fafrem 64 88 45 55 27 40 73 03

(i) e & JIY 41 18 65 31 144 83 45 17

(1) 3= 3nfear 6549362 112620448 2796380 17503 8200

e st @ e -35 82 78 91 26 1773 16

Faet # faaa gfg
IR T-fafEl @ Ahe gare () -1210 19 48 24310 88
fefoem wsef fa-fafen @ A ehe gare

(1) = enfal it fasht / fuem 20 94 69 1 42 08 95
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Indian Overseas Bank

Cash Flow Statement
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31.03.2010

(Rs. in ‘000s)
Year ended 31.03.2010 Year ended 31.03.2009
Operating Activities
Income
Interest Earned 102 45 77 35 96 41 40 33
Other Income 11662767 114120502 15273268 111687301
Expenditure & Provisions
Interest Paid 66 84 71 82 64 67 13 74
Operating Expenses & Provisions 23547377 90394559 18407523 83078897
Net Increase of cash on operating activities prior
to the effect of changes in Operating Liabilities & Assets 23 72 59 43 28 60 84 04
Cash Profit generated from Operations 237259 43 28 60 84 04
Cash Flow from operating Liabilities & Assets
Net Increase / Decrease in Operating Liabilities
i) Deposits from Customers 106 78 82 15 157 90 30 68
i) Borrowings From Banks & Financial Institutions -24 37 38 05 1 94 63 61
i Other Operating Liabilities & Provisions -5 62 18 53 -10 98 85 45
76 79 25 57 148 86 08 84
Net increase / decrease in Operating Assets
) Investments 64 88 45 55 27 4073 03
i) Advances to customers 41 18 65 31 144 83 45 17
iy Other Assets 6549362 112620448 2796380 175038200
Net Increase in Operating Liabilities over Operating Assets -35 82 78 91 -26 17 73 16
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) -1210 19 48 2431088
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
i) Sale / disposal of Fixed Assets 20 94 69 142 08 95
i) Purchase of Fixed Assets -1 52 99 69 -2 321556
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) -1 .32 05 00 -90 06 61
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inflow
i) Proceeds of Tier | & Tier Il Bonds 11 .00 00 00 9553000
Outflow
i) Redemption of Tier Il Bonds 17500 00
i) Interest Paid on Tier Il Capital 3931913 3 04 67 61
iiij Dividend Paid 2868249 2 23 08 61
8 55 01 62 527 76 22
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 244 98 38 4275378
TOTAL CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR (A) +(B) + (C) -10 97 26 10 580 58 05
[117 ]




>

&

Balances at the Beginning of the year

Cash & Balances with RBI 59 40 44 42 91 24 23 28

Balances with Banks & Money at Call 49814575 109219017 12170884 103413212
Balances at the end of the year

Cash & Balances with RBI 76 66 44 72 59 40 44 42

Balances with Banks & Money at Call 21581935 98246407 49814575 109219017
TOTAL CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR -10 97 26 10 5 80 58 05

This Statement has been made prepared in accordance with Direct Method.

B.S. Keshavamurthy S.A.Bhat
General Manager Chairman & Managing Director

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

We , the undersigned Statutory Central Auditors of Indian Overseas Bank have verified the above Cash
Flow Statement of the Bank for the year ended 31.03.2010 . The Statement has been prepared in
accordance with the requirement of Clause 32 , of the Listing agreement with the Stock Exchange and
is based on and in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss Account and the Balance Sheet
of the Bank, covered by our report of even date to The President of India .

Om Agarwal & Co Varma & Varma PKF Sridhar & Santhanam

Bhaskaran & Ramesh M Bhaskara Rao & Co Mittal Gupta & Co

Place : Chennai

Date : 29.04.2010




ST GeheThTuT

et el e, qE g SR R U et % SER
T 11 &t eToensi o @& fadis 27-04-2007 & T8 gsft
i EREr (38 1) & dad FEfifia ey & 99
farferfiaa geetentor e S &1

e gsiee

fafi= gR ! FaTC JaM Fd g9 0 TfafafE § 9
% THR & SRGH a2 | SRGH A7 AT HRAR 0
31T & | YT SIS o &1 s 1 39 JhR 3 SUR S,
TSR S 31 G SS9 Sifad SeM1 usgdl
2| U Sifan & gt &9 @ geed S & forg A s
Sifaw i Fonferdl S g3 B & ot a1 3 2 S
Tl 30T 3T Tgferal dan & & e =fifea, @rem, deis,
Jate T 3R Jaw GEAT JUferal (THINETE) Wi €|

d% R SR R Sifew 31T gfaen & e 3w aema
I F & SR TR o qodi i SAFTH FH AT
TG 1 8 TGl 8 | S o SIad Faue & Sevdl | Sifaw
F 3T UgTH, IH A1, gated, fEA 3 T9e I
T WA 2 A1 §h i Gag Sad fheiigmt i gfaomed
T3 ST Wah | W SR 31U TS e gae Wi Sifat
T gug N SEH F e & % TR SR 8 |
SaH 98 ST & HIMEUS qMd: Sifad Har & ®9 F
= T 9 2 | 9% @ SR 98d gad Sifad gaed 9
geifea fafer Fifeat & sifaw e & surt & SR gefdfa
& g

% T TG ST TG TS TR@T S § T T off
2| fRy ded & s Iu-9iufd, Siften yeuT giufy aiga
7 & S 9% | 0 Siflew, SR Sifed, aiEre Sifie
FIT 3= S 3 TagT o [0 SaRerEt 21 9% 7 SUR
St e o fore or fife gfafy (dfdt), aer st
Tewe 3 o7 3111 ST yefe ifa (Twerdiat) S aitEr
g gemee & oY uftene sifian yeiae |iufa & 9m @
e Sifad yeee giafaar Ff feq &1 2|

% H Sp STaw Fae et S s9agR & 399 Fai=a
% T % & g T § Th [Uied iy gee
T R 2 S HRER 9T § 30 2 | 3 & w1 JauE
Ft goft & T 7T w9 & gard € <t 3%
# Sifim gee W qEy qdaeT & oy Swer &1 5H
sl 2o (23fte) it 2ot (fAReft) ot sur wmef
T T ft Sifleq gaee S & & S Afaa & e /

Vi
&

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

In accordance with the guidelines issued by Reserve
Bank of India, Mumbai, under New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel Il) dated 27.04.2007 under Pillar
Il requirement, the following disclosures are made
as per the specified Formats:

RISK MANAGEMENT

Banks assume various types of risks in its activities
while providing different kinds of services. As such,
risk taking is an integral part of the banking business.
In the normal course of business, a bank is exposed
to various risks including Credit Risk, Market Risk
and Operational Risk. With a view to managing such
risks efficiently and strengthening its risk management
systems, the bank has put in place various risk
management measures and practices which includes
policies, tools, techniques, monitoring mechanism and
management information systems (MIS).

The Bank, on a continuous basis, aims at enhancing
and maximizing the shareholder values through
achieving appropriate trade off between risks and
returns. The Bank’s risk management objectives
broadly covers proper identification, measurement,
monitoring, control and mitigation of the risks with a
view to enunciate the bank’s overall risk philosophy.
The risk management strategy adopted by the bank
is based on an understanding of risks and the level
of risk appetite of the bank. Risk appetite parameters
are normally expressed in terms of risk limits. Bank’s
risk appetite is demonstrated through prescription of
risk limits in various policies relating to risk
management.

The bank has set up appropriate risk management
organization structure in the bank. Risk Management
Committee of the Board (RMCB), a sub-committee
of the Board, is constituted which is responsible for
management of credit risk, market risk, operational
risk and other risks in the Bank. The bank has also
constituted internal risk management committees
namely Credit Policy Committee (CPC) for managing
credit risk, Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) for managing market risk and Operational
Risk Management Committee for managing
operational risk.

A full fledged Risk Management department is
functioning at the Bank’s Central Office, independent
of the business departments for implementing best
risk management systems and practices in the bank.
A Chief Risk Officer in the rank of General Manager
of the bank is in charge of the department who is
responsible for overall supervision on risk
management in the bank. In addition, the Mid-Office
in Treasury (Domestic) and Treasury (Foreign) and
Credit Support Services Dept. also carry out the risk
management functions and monitor the adherence/
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compliance to policies, risk limit framework and
internal approvals.

The bank has implemented the New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel-Il) with effect from 31.3.2008 and
is in compliance with the framework, in line with the
guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time. The
Basel-lIl Framework is based on three mutually
reinforcing pillars. While the first pillar of the revised
framework addresses the minimum capital
requirement for credit, market and operational risks,
the second pillar of supervisory review process
ensures that the bank has adequate capital to
address all the risks in their business commensurate
with bank’s risk profile and control environment. As
per RBI's requirement, the Bank has put in place a
Board approved Policy on Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) to address second
pillar requirements. This policy aims at assessing
all material risks to which the bank is exposed over
and above the regulatory prescriptions under the first
pillar risks, and ensuring adequate capital structure
to meet the requirements on an ongoing basis.

The bank has formulated a “Stress Testing framework”
in line with the RBI guidelines to assess the potential
vulnerability of the organization to exceptional but
plausible events. Stress testing and scenario analysis,
particularly in respect of the bank’s material risk
exposure, enable identification of potential risks
inherent in a portfolio at times of economic recession
and accordingly take suitable steps to address the
same. In accordance with the policy prescriptions,
the bank carries out various stress tests on bank’s
balance sheet periodically and place the reports to
ALCO / RMCB / Board.

The third pillar of Basel-Il framework refers to market
discipline. The purpose of market discipline is to
complement the minimum capital requirements
detailed under Pillar 1 and the supervisory review
process detailed under Pillar 2. In this context and
as guided by RBI a set of disclosure (both qualitative
and quantitative) are published in DF 1 to 10
(annexed) with regard to risk management in the
bank, which will enable market participants to assess
key pieces of information on the (1) Scope of
application (DF-1), (2) Capital Structure (DF-2), (3)
Capital Adequacy (DF-3), (4) Credit Risk: General
Disclosures (DF-4), (5) Credit Risk: Disclosures for
Portfolios subject to the Standardised Approach (DF-
5), (6) Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for
Standardised Approaches (DF-6), (7) Securitisation:
Disclosure for Standardised Approach (DF-7), (8)
Market Risk in Trading Book (DF-8), (9) Operational
Risk (DF-9), and (10) Interest Rate Risk in the
Banking Book (IRRBB) (DF-10) etc. This would also
provide necessary information to the market
participants to evaluate the performance of the bank
in various parameters.
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Qualitative Disclosures Applicability to Our Bank
EACR Gl 3\@ [ a’é ENE %mméq\%@ﬁ a) Summary information on Applicable to the
1 wal T FEeA W R "HI-EEHE q s the terms and conditions of Bank as we raise
Ll FA9YA: 2R | 91 3= ngﬁqgrm the main features of all both Tier | and Tier
. - capital instruments, |l capital from the
Ejl'é:lizﬁ ) %.mqrir  fer am, :ﬁml especially in the case of market to meet
gt forad & 7met § g 3T 2R 2 gt 33 capital instruments eligible increase in capital
EERSS RIEEG) 2l for inclusion in Tier 1 or requirements from

in Upper Tier 2

time to time




AT Yhe 1ot

.

.

ST,

farfeafiad & 37 4 gt
e 2R 1 gsh #

J& IR S

sferfaa

Ferst faed (TR 1 gt
I 01 % ®9 H)

3 gt forad

TR 1 Yt ° et 7 @, 9
3R faer & e $X

TR 2 Yt i et ThA (TR 2
gsht & seifaat & fae)
Feaa TR 2 gSft H e
% e o =0T gt fered

ROSIEEIRIRE L]

e @ =re] o & aRH ot T
|

gstma et & &0 F afieaq
3 T T

foreR 2 TeR 2 gsft & onfhet S
% foT U oy F=O

FA T THH

58 @ =e] & & & ot
wh

g fAfeet & &9 | e
(i ERC]
gt & @ a1y sweifoat, af &
ESREREI

%.544.80 FT
%.5715.37 50

%.780.00 0T
(o % <X 33T T
- %.300 FUE)

EE’I
%.165.24 FUT

7.4846.28 TS
%.3942.50 Hg
(fegapEe #) (af &
EREEC
%.800.00 FE)

%.1665.30 S

%.510.00 F0T

%.1665.30 S

%.2426.00 TS
%.290.00 Fg

%.2277.20 S

NG
%.11721.20 50

Q%
&

Quantitative Disclosures

b)

c)

The amount of Tier 1
capital, with separate
disclosure of:

paid up share capital
reserves

innovative  instruments
(Perpetual Debt Instrument
as Tier 1 capital)

other capital instruments

amounts deducted from Tier
1 capital, including goodwiill
and investments

The total amount of Tier 2
capital (net of deductions
from Tier 2 capital)

Debt capital instruments
eligible for inclusion in
Upper Tier 2 capital

Total amount outstanding

Of which amount raised
during the current year

Amount eligible to be
reckoned as capital funds

Subordinated debt eligible
for inclusion in Lower Tier
2 capital

Total amount outstanding

Of which amount raised
during the current year

Amount eligible to be
reckoned as capital funds

Other deductions from
capital, if any

Total eligible capital

Rs. 544.80 crore
Rs. 5715.37 crore

Rs. 780.00 crore
(raised during the
year — Rs.300Cr)
Nil

Rs. 165.24 crore

Rs. 4846.28 crore
Rs. 3942.50 crore
(at discount) (raised
during the vyear
Rs.800.00 crores)

Rs. 1665.30 crores

Rs. 510.00 crores

Rs. 1665.30 crores

Rs. 2426.00 crores
Rs. 290.00 crores

Rs 2277.20 crores
Nil

Rs.11721.20 crores
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Table DF - 3
CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Qualitative disclosures:

A summary discussion of the bank’s approach to
assessing the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities:

Banks in India implemented capital adequacy
measures in April 1992 based on the capital
adequacy framework (Basel-l) issued by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) and the
guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
from time to time. Such a measure was taken in
order to strengthen the capital base of banks and at
the same time to make it compliant with the
international best practices in the matter maintaining
capital adequacy. Initially the Basel framework
addressed the capital for credit risk, which was
subsequently amended to include capital for market
risk. In line with the guidelines issued by the RBI
the bank was compliant with the relevant guidelines.

Subsequently the BCBS released the “International
Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital
Standards: A Revised Framework” on June 26, 2004.
The Revised Framework was updated in November
2005 to include trading activities and the treatment
of double default effects and a comprehensive
version of the framework was issued in June 20086.
Based on these guidelines and to have consistency
and be in harmony with international standards, the
RBI has issued guidelines on 27" April 2007 and
subsequent amendments on implementation of the
New Capital Adequacy (Basel-lIl) Framework from time
to time.

In line with the RBI guidelines, the Bank had migrated
to the revised (Basel-ll) framework from 31.3.2008
and continues to be compliant with the requirements
of Basel-Il framework. In addition to this, the bank
continues the parallel run of Basel | framework in
terms of the guidelines issued by the RBI through
prescribed reporting formats. The RBI has issued
directions vide their circular dated 7" April 2010
continuance of the parallel run and prudential floor
until further advice. The Bank is in full compliance
with these guidelines.

Basel-Il Framework provides a range of options for
determining the capital requirements for credit risk,
market risk and operational risk. The Framework
allows banks and supervisors to select approaches
that are most appropriate for their operations and
financial markets. In accordance with the RBI’s
requirements, the Bank has adopted Standardised
Approach (SA) for credit risk, Standardised Duration
Approach (SDA) for market risks and Basic Indicator
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Approach (BIA) for Operational Risk to compute
capital. As such, the Bank is maintaining capital for
Credit, Market and Operational Risk as on 31.3.2010,
in line with the RBI guidelines in this regard.

The Bank has computed capital for market risk and
operational risk as per the prescribed guidelines at
the bank’s Central Office, based on the relevant data.
In computation of capital for Credit risk under
Standardised Approach, the bank has relied upon
the borrower-wise data captured from each individual
branch besides portfolios held at Regional Office and
Central Office of the bank. For this purpose, the
Bank has developed in-house software, which
enables computation of capital for credit risk of the
advances portfolio of the branches and generation
of the requisite reports at the branches, Regional
Offices and Central Office level. Necessary training
is imparted to the field staff periodically on various
aspects of capital computation to ensure accuracy
and adequacy.

Banks generally use a number of techniques to
mitigate the credit risk to which they are exposed.
The Bank has also used the Credit Risk Mitigation
in computation of capital for credit risk in order to
get capital relief. The Bank has followed the RBI
guidelines in force to arrive at the credit risk
mitigation, risk weighted assets, eligible capital and
capital to risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR).

Reserve Bank of India has prescribed that Banks
are required to maintain a minimum capital to risk
weighted assets ratio (CRAR) of 9% on an ongoing
basis, as against 8% prescribed in the Basel
document. RBI has also prescribed Prudential Floor
at 80% of minimum capital requirements computed
as per Basel-| Framework for Credit and Market risks
as on 31.3.2010. The framework issued by RBI
additionally prescribes maintenance of a minimum
Tier-1 CRAR of 6% on or before March 31, 2010.
Against this, the Bank’s total CRAR and Tier-1 CRAR
stand at 14.78% and 8.67% respectively, which are
well above the minimum level prescribed by RBI.

The Bank has put in place the policy on Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and
the framework in consideration of the relevant risk
factors of the bank as a measure towards Pillar 2
requirements of the revised framework commensurate
with the bank’s overall risk profile. In framing the
policy the bank has taken into consideration the
requirements prescribed by RBI in their guidelines.

As regards the adequacy of capital to support the
future activities, the bank draws assessment of
capital requirements periodically taking into account
future growth of business. The surplus CRAR
maintained by the bank acts as a buffer to support
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the future activities. Moreover, the headroom
available to the bank in the Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital
components provides additional capital support to
meet the future needs. Thereby, the capital risk of
the bank is adequately addressed.

Quantitative disclosures
(Rs. In Crore)

Capital requirements for credit risk:
Standardised Approach

Portfolios subject to standardised approach 6232.28
Securitisation exposures 0.00
Total 6232.28

Capital requirements for market risk:
Standardised Duration Approach

Interest rate risk 236.02
Foreign Exchange risk (including gold) 8.82
Equity risk 149.58
Total 394.42

Capital requirements for operational risk
Basic indicator approach

Operational Risk 511.42
Total Capital Ratio for the Bank

Total CRAR 14.78%

Total CRAR (subject to application of Prudential Floor) 14.78%

Tier 1 CRAR 8.67%
Table DF-4

CREDIT RISK : GENERAL DISCLOSURES FOR
ALL BANKS

Qualitative disclosures:
Credit Risk:

Credit Risk is the possibility of losses associated
with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or
counter parties. In a Bank’s portfolio, Credit Risk
arises mostly from lending activities of the Bank if a
borrower is unable to meet its financial obligations
to the lender. It emanates from changes in the credit
quality/worthiness of the borrowers or counter parties.
Credit risk includes counterparty risk and country risk.

Credit rating and Appraisal Process:

The Bank manages its credit risk through continuous
measuring and monitoring of risks at obligor
(borrower) and portfolio level. The Bank has a robust
internal credit rating framework and well-established
standardized credit appraisal / approval process.
Credit rating is a facilitating process that enables
the bank to assess the inherent merits and demerits
of a proposal. It is a decision enabling tool that
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helps the bank to take a view on acceptability or
otherwise of any credit proposal. In order to widen
the scope and coverage further, the bank has started
using additional rating models, which were developed
in-house. This will cover borrower accounts of Rs.
5 lacs and above.

The rating models factor quantitative and qualitative
attributes relating to Risk components such as Industry
Risk, Business Risk, Management Risk, Financial
Risk, Project risk (where applicable) and Facility Risk
etc. The data on industry risk is regularly updated
based on market conditions.

Credit rating as a concept has been well internalized
within the bank. As a measure of robust credit risk
management process, the bank has implemented a
tiered system for validation of credit ratings at
specified levels which is independent of credit
departments, in order to draw unbiased rating for
borrowers necessary for moving to advanced
approaches. In respect of proposals falling under
powers of Bank’s central office, the validations of
ratings are done at Risk Management Dept. The Bank
uses credit rating for deciding interest rates on
borrowal accounts. The advantage of credit rating
is that it enables to rank different proposals based
on risk and do meaningful comparisons.

The bank follows a well-defined multi layered
discretionary power structure for sanction of loans
and advances. Approval Grid has been constituted
at all levels covering Exceptionally Large branch /
RO / CO for considering fresh/enhancement proposal.
The new products introduced by bank are examined
by the internal Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC), Credit Policy Committee/ Asset
Liability Management Committee depending upon the
type of risks involved in the new product / process
before being placed to Board for approval. The
system and procedure committee (SAPCO) lays down
the system and procedure to be followed for such
new products.

Credit Risk Management Policies

The bank has put in place a well-structured loan
policy and credit risk management policy duly
approved by Board. The policy document defines
organization structure, role and responsibilities and
processes whereby the Credit Risk carried by the
Bank can be identified, quantified and managed within
the framework that the Bank considers consistent
with its mandate and risk tolerance. Credit risk is
monitored by the bank on a bank-wide basis and
compliance with the risk limits approved by Board /
RMCB is ensured. The CPC takes into account the
risk tolerance level of the Bank and accordingly
handles the issues relating to Safety, Liquidity,
Prudential Norms and Exposure limits.
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The bank has taken earnest steps to put in place
best credit risk management practices in the bank.
In addition to Loan Policy Credit Risk Management
Policy the bank has also framed Investment Policy,
Counter Party Risk Management Policy and Country
Risk Management Policy etc., which forms integral
part of monitoring of credit risk in the bank. Besides,
the bank has implemented a policy on collateral
management and credit risk mitigation which lays
down the details of securities (both prime and
collateral) normally accepted by the Bank and
administration of such securities to protect the interest
of the bank. These securities act as mitigation
against credit risk to which the bank is exposed.

Credit Monitoring/Loan Review/Credit Audit

The Credit Monitoring Department monitors the quality
of loan portfolio, identifies problems and takes steps
to correct deficiencies. The objective of the
department is to minimize slippage of performing
accounts to NPA category. The department is also
micro monitoring the accounts by segmentation and
follow up the accounts on a daily basis to minimize
slippages.

All the borrowal accounts with fund based limit of
Rs. 1 crore and above are reviewed under Loan
Review Mechanism, which is essentially an off-site
audit mechanism. The credit audit is carried out in
terms of Guidance Note on Credit Risk issued by
Reserve Bank of India and the Credit Risk
Management Policy of the Bank.

The credit audit exercise has helped the bank to
identify deficiencies and early warning signals of
sickness/weakness in  borrowal accounts.
Essentially this is an onsite audit mechanism to
prevent deterioration in the quality of advances
thereby protecting the interest of the bank.

Classification of non-performing accounts:

The bank follows the prudential guidelines issued
by RBI on classification of non-performing assets from
time to time and makes provisions as required.
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Restructuring of borrower accounts

The bank has followed RBI guidelines in respect of
classification of re-structured accounts and makes

faemfardit 7 STERoT fohan & 3 yrae fahar 2| provisions as required.
(% &S H) Rs. in Crores
AATEF TheTshI0T gqﬁ A% T gASIGT Quantitative Disclosures Applicability to our Bank

F) %WEMWWW, oy fyemia 80782.48 a) Total gross credit risk exposures, Fund FB  80782.48
A SR A STenRa gos-g9% WRfresmRa 16739.97 based and Non fund based separately NFB  16739.97
) TR iers AT, Ay s T ameEnRa TR SR b) Geographic distribution of exposures,
s Fy SR 9o-go zg;\;ﬂrafea;;ed and Non fund based FB NFB
o faash P02 8L 1536306 o Domestic 73025.81  15363.06
o T 7159.67 1376.91 . Overseas 7750.67 1376.91
) SRR a1 S e v fa, e et ) ¢) Industry type distribution of exposures,
SRR e ST S fund based and non fund based
separately. Annexed
o) SR 1 SFATe ST TRuaa ST SrafeR d) Residual contractual maturity breakdown
of assets Annexed
%) T () T e) Amount of NPAs (Gross)
o A 126348 « Substandard 1265.48
o Tfemy (1,12,¥M) 2246.84 « Doubtful (D1,02,D3) 2246.84
o @M 98.76 o Loss 98.76
EJRRERRELI 1994.97 f) Net NPAs 1994.97
) T ST g) NPA Ratios
o THA MW & il Hebel TG 4.47% « Gross NPAs to gross advances 4.47 %
o et 1fim % uft et wdie 2.52% o Net NPAs to net advances 2.52 %
31) T 1 J=e (Fehet) h) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
o IRfiE o 1923.41 « Opening balance 1923.41
o 3 3126.83 « Additions 3126.83
o W@ 1439.16 o Reductions 1439.16
o IFATTY 3611.08 o Closing balance 3611.08
T) AN o foTu FTeermii o1 e i) Movement of provisions for NPAs
o URfEIW 752.04 o Opening balance 752.04
o (Y% I T 7T Hree 1183.66 o Provisions made during the period ~ 1183.66
° az\é@ﬁﬁmw 571.91 o Write off 571.91
o IR yEeEi F uREET ) « Write back of excess provisions -
o famaw 1363.79 « Closing balance 1363.79
3) St T &y IR 411 j)  Amount of Non-Performing Investments 411
9 et " S !
2) ﬁ%ﬁm@m%mmmmw- ) (Ii/lnovifrz]ry:Snttmogn%OV|S|0ns for depreciation
e ) « Opening Balance 342.82
o R 342.82 e Provisions made during the period 141.08
o 3FIfer & S o T e 141.08 . Write-off 0.00
® Wﬁ@ﬁﬁmw 0.00 o Write-back of excess provisions 249.33
o SRR STl st 249.33 e Closing Balance 234.57
o ¥ 234.57
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Residual contractual Maturity break down of Assets
(Rs. In crores)

Day1 2-7D 8-14D 15-28D 29D-3M  3-6M  6M-1 >1+to 3 >3 to 5>5 years
Year  Years years

40421 68MI0 T346S 26397 TPS3Y 976313 1331747 DIV 1037694  TRR1L

4224.27 6844.10 7324.65 2263.97 7795.39 9763.13 13317.47 42139.6810376.94 77222.11

23fta af=Ered & T T 3l #t wes
STITTER F0T Fehe eI

Covers Gross Assets for domestic operations

INDUSTRY WISE EXPOSURES

(3. FUET /) (Rs. In Crore)
I &1 AT STRTET Industry Name Outstanding
Frrer 106.58 fﬂ‘.’?l 106.58
S 469.19 ining 469.19
Fﬁ%’i‘lﬁisw 14450 5 Iron and Steel 4452.25
B L 286,35 Other Metal and Metal Products 886.35
All Engineering 2295.28
geft g 2295.28 . )
. Of which Electronics 79.33
IHH ¥ gelaI 79.33 Electricit 208
y 77
3@1‘?@?@2‘? 208.77 Cotton Textiles 2915.07
ﬂfﬁ A ST 2915.07 Jute Textiles 19.91
e 9 s 19.91 Other Textiles 1302.20
3T F= I 1302.20 Sugar 777 32
== 777.32 Tea 19.93
Rl ) 19.93 Food Processing 331.04
are qHET . 331.04 Vegetable Oils and Vanaspati 139.03
AT T S AR 139.03 Tobacco and Tobacco Products 41.59
eI, ST AT SR 41.59 Paper and Paper Products 1080.96
HTTS S FHATS = 1080.96 Rubber and Rubber Products 466.89
Wg 3 W IR 466.89 Chemicals, Dyes, Paints, etc. 1658.14
T, B3, U 3R 1658.14 Of which Fertilisers 24.94
3T 4§ 3t 24.94 Of which Petro-Chemicals 6.13
I 9 Ul e 6.13 Of which Drugs and Pharmaceuticals 100.25
I F AN 3R mEiEHa 100.25 Cement 679.10
HiHe 679.10 Leather and Leather Products 209.92
=T S =TwET A 209.92 Gems and Jewellery 286.84
FgHT T F ST 286.84 Construction 1963.44
ferefor 1963.44 Petroleum 521.99
uzifeem 521.99 Automobiles including trucks 901.44
sffmtaTEe fored 2o off wftret 2 901.44 Computer Software 162.19
FIET HFAT 162.19 Infrastructure 9688.44
TR FA 9688.44 Of which Power 1157.67
3 @ v 1157.67 Of which Telecommunications 1373.27
I ¥ ¥ HAR 1373.27 Of which Roads & Ports 1293.72
T8 O U AR 1293.72 Other Industries 4992 .24
3T I 4992 24 NBFCs & Trading 1727.84
TATHHTE 37 &R 1727.84 Residual Advances to
Y et 3T 3 9fa sEldre Tt 4247853 Balance Gross Advances 42478.53
H 80782.48 TOTAL 80782.48
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Table DF-5

CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS
SUBJECT TO THE STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative disclosures:

Credit Risk: Disclosures for portfolios subject
to Standardised Approach:

General Principle:

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, the Bank has
adopted Standardised Approach of the New Capital
Adequacy Framework (NCAF) for computation of
capital for credit risk. In computation of capital the
bank has assigned risk weight to different asset
classes as prescribed by the RBI.

External Credit Ratings:

Ratings of borrowers by External Credit Rating Agencies
(ECRA) assumes importance in the light of Guidelines
for implementation of the New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel-ll). Exposures on Corporates / PSEs/
Primary Dealers are assigned with risk weights based
on external ratings. For this purpose, the Reserve Bank
of India has permitted Banks to use the ratings of the
four domestic ECRAs viz. Credit Analysis and Research
Ltd, CRISIL Ltd, FITCH India and ICRA Ltd.

In consideration of the above, the Bank has decided
to accept the ratings assigned by all these ECRAs.

In order to facilitate the process of external rating
and enabling the customers to solicit external ratings
for their exposure smoothly, the bank has taken the
initiative by entering into separate MOU with all these
four credit rating agencies. The agreement provides
for extending concessional fees by the ECRAs for
rating bank’s customers. The MOUs do not have
any exclusivity clause to deal with. Borrowers at
their option can approach any one or more of the
above ECRAs for their rating. The Bank has only
used the solicited ratings assigned by any of the
ECRAs. External ratings assigned fresh or reviewed
during the previous 15 months are reckoned for
capital computation by the bank. Wherever a
borrower possesses more than one rating from ECRAs
the guidelines prescribed by the RBI are followed
as regards to assignment of risk weight for
computation of capital.

The bank has a well structured internal credit rating
mechanism to evaluate the credit risk associated with
a borrower and accordingly the systems are in place
for taking credit decision as regards the acceptability
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of proposals and level of exposures and pricing.
However, such rating cannot be used for application
of risk weight under Standardised Approach of capital
computation. Accordingly the bank has taken into
consideration the borrower’s loan exposure credit
ratings assigned by the approved ECRAs while
computing the capital for credit risk as on 31.03.2010
under corporate and PSE segments

In case of bank’s investment in particular issues of
corporates / PSEs the issue specific rating of the
approved ECRAs are reckoned and accordingly the
risk weights have been applied after a corresponding
mapping to rating scale provided in RBI guidelines.

For the purpose of capital computation of overseas
exposures, ratings assigned by the international
rating agencies namely Fitch, Moodys and Standard
& Poor’s is used, whichever is available, as per RBI
guidelines.

As regards the coverage of exposures in India by
external ratings as relevant for capital computation
under Standardised Approach, the process needs
to be popularized among the borrowers so as to
take the benefit of capital relief available for better-
rated customers. The borrowers need to consider
the external rating as an opportunity for their business
development, which would take some time.

Quantitative Disclosures

(5. FS ¥) (Rs. in crore)
Criczu FAFE  aRd T W Classification Exposure EAM covered  Unrated
F U F 3refie FTE after Mitigation under External
TR aEfa (EAM) Rating
() s ADVANCES/ INVESTMENT
Ay / frEw Below 100% risk weight 54409.69 1010655 44303.13
100% G ARIAFH  54409.69 1010655 44303.13 100% risk weight 41821.57  2541.89 39279.68
1009 st A 41821.57 2341.89 - 39279.68 More than 100% risk weight 9763.98  423.63 9340.35
100% Sifiaw IR 7 21fer 9763.98  423.63  9340.35
Deducted 0.00 0.00 0.00
R EE 0.00 0.00 0.00
- 10599524 1307207 9292316 Total 105995.24  13072.07 92923.16
s st OTHER ASSETS
100% Sfiaw 7 & F7 12236.96 0.00 12236.96 Below 100% risk weight 12236.96 0.00 12236.96
100% Shf R 2995.00 0.00  2995.00 At 100% risk weight 2995.00 0.00 2995.00
100% S R & 31t 40.00 0.00 40.00 More than 100% risk weight  40.00 000  40.00
ST ES .00 0.000.00 Deducted 0.00 000  0.00
T 15271.96 0.00 15271.96

Total 15271.96 0.00 15271.96
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Table DF - 6

CREDIT RISK MITIGATION: DISCLOSURES
FOR STANDARDISED APPROACHES

Qualitative disclosures:

Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for
Standardised Approaches:

Policy on Credit Risk Mitigation:

In line with the regulatory requirements, the bank
has put in place a well-articulated policy on collateral
management and credit risk mitigation techniques
duly approved by the bank’s Board. The Policy lays
down the type of securities normally accepted by
the bank for lending and administration/monitoring
of such securities in order to safeguard/protect the
interest of the bank so as to minimize the risk
associated with it.

The main types of securities (both prime and
collateral) accepted by the Bank includes Bank’s own
deposits, Gold/Ornaments, Indira Vikas Patras, Kisan
Vikas Patras, 10 year Social Security Certificates,
Shares and debentures, Central and State Govt.
securities, Life Insurance Policies, Mutual Fund units,
Immovable Properties, Plant and Machinery, Goods
and Merchandise, Documents of Title to Goods, Book
debts, Vehicles and other moveable assets. The
bank has also framed a well-defined policy on
valuation of immovable properties and Plant and
Machineries duly approved by Board.

Credit Risk Mitigation under Standardised
Approach:

(a) Eligible Financial Collaterals:

As advised by RBI, the Bank has adopted the
comprehensive approach relating to credit risk
mitigation under Standardised Approach, which
allows fuller offset of securities (prime and
collateral) against exposures, by effectively
reducing the exposure amount by the value
ascribed to the securities. Thus the eligible
financial collaterals are fully made use of to
reduce the credit exposure in computation of
credit risk capital. In doing so, in line with RBI
guidelines, the bank has recognized specific
securities viz (a) bank deposits (b) gold/
ornaments (c) life insurance policies (d) kisan
vikas patras (after a lock in period of 2 1~ years).

(b) On/Off Balance Sheet Nettings:

As per Bank’s policy on utilization of the credit
risk mitigation techniques and collateral
management, on-balance sheet netting has been
reckoned to the extent of deposits available
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against loans/advances of the borrower
(maximum to the extent of exposure), where bank
has legally enforceable netting arrangements
involving specific lien with proof of
documentation as prescribed by RBI. In such
cases the capital computation is done on the
basis of net credit exposure. In so far as off-
balance sheet netting is concerned, these are
covered by guarantees/credit derivatives
whenever specifically permitted by RBI.
Presently, the bank does not have any off-
balance sheet netting.

(c)

Eligible Guarantees:

Besides, other approved form of credit risk
mitigation is availability of “Eligible Guarantees”.
In computation of credit risk capital the types of
guarantees recognized for taking mitigation, in
line with RBI guidelines are (a) Central
Government (0%) (b) State Government (20%),
(c) CGTSI (0%) (d) ECGC (20%) (e) Banks in
the form of Bills Purchased/discounted under
Letters of Credit (both domestic and foreign banks
as per guidelines).

The bank has ensured compliance of legal
certainty as prescribed by the RBI in the matter
of credit risk mitigation.

Concentration risk in credit risk mitigation:

Policies and process are in place indicating the type
of mitigations the bank use for capital computation
under the Standardised approach. All types of
securities (financial collaterals) eligible for mitigation
are easily realizable financial securities. As such,
the bank doesn’t envisage any concentration risk in
credit risk mitigation used and presently no limit/
ceiling has been prescribed for the quantum of each
type of collateral under credit risk mitigation.
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JHEATCHS FHSTHITT Quantitative Disclosures

37T T TR TS 3UR ST TR For ea}ch separately disclosed credit risk

3 o #awe & SEpEAT & A1 o fadt Eoplicalie, on or off balance sheet netiing)

Fuifadss gRT el fohad T ) S that is covered by Eligible Financial

(STef @] &, 377 a1 31 Jeiq gfte AT & a=) 11413.33 Collateral after application of haircuts 11413.33

gEe® 87 & geH 157.84 Public Sector Entities 157.84

FORE 3137.33 Corporates 3137.33

fafoames fea wewifern (memd) 1018.62 Regulatory Retail Portfolio (RRP) 1018.62

saTet AR g qIRE aE 12.29 Claims secured by Residential Property 12.29

TS TR HaT 5T qIaa e 34.09 Claims secured by Commercial Real Estate 34.29

YT 3R 6753.58 Consumer Credit 6753.58

gsftma famqom Sugeed 38.86 Capital Market Exposure 38.86

T TwHEt 3.13 NBFC 3.13

3T ST - 37) AT F0T 0.09 Non Performing Assets — a) Housing Loan 0.09

3T AT - 31) 3 28.02 Non Performing Assets — b) Others 28.02

37T AT - ©% F0T 3(0.48 Other Assets — Staff Loans 30.48

3 anfeaar 37.92 Other Assets 37.92

W‘%ﬁ EC Ikl 160.58 Restructured Account 160.58
(®. BT ¥) (Rs. In Crore)

YHTATCHSh Gohe1ahiuT Quantitative Disclosures

3T 4 gIH TS 3UR SfRaq For ea}ch separately disclosed credit risk

FEIeTl % Tt T/ et Eplicatie, on or of balance shoet nefing)

(ST F+ft sty st o g forem &9 9 that is covered by guarantees / Credit

3T @) I HeR o T P R Derivatives (whenever specifically

(ST @ &, 37 a1 aff Ao wie AT a|)  6470.36 permitted by RBI) 6470.36

qrEaSaE 97 Ht HyA 2490.24 Public Sector Entities 2490.24

FaRe 3641.12 Corporates 3641.12

faframss fiea wewifoar (smemd) 286.03 Regulatory Retail Portfolio (RRP) 286.03

KSERERRCll 52.97 Restructured Account 52.97
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Table DF 7

SECURITISATION:

STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative Disclosures

DISCLOSURE

FOR

%) fefofad ==t & WHa Fd - 31.03.2009 Ht qure a) The general qualitative No securitisation
e S SR < disclosure requirement with for the year ended
e %H:%;ﬁ i ﬁrq,ﬁg respect to securitisation, 31.03.2009
O THEHTT ST gftgfaeheor 7@ fopar including a discussion of:
| TE . 's objectives |
*  fommE wfaed e % 39R The bank’s objectives in
A ﬁ.ﬁﬁ . relation to securitisation
: ) 3 a ﬁ’m & activity, including the extent
% d @ W 377 ghEdl & to which these activities
SAfd A & 39 g€ d% 2 transfer credit risk of the
2 fogfa underlying securitised
Wﬁgﬂ - i exposures away from the
mfafafes o sae & % F1 32| bank to other entities.
c *  The roles played by the
*  gfaqfosor gfear & 5% #i . DY
.. bank in securitisation
Waﬁ(w@{qa B H’cﬁ%%ﬁf process and an indication
% S % WA a1 % IR J g of the extent of the bank’s
a1t involvement in each of
them, and
* 30 FfafastoT e & o S * The regulatory capital
FH SR Tt fafame st approach that the bank
R follows for its securitisation
activities.
w) frfafad s a5 T b) Summary of the bank’s
R : : accounting policies for
ﬁ%m%m securitisation activities,
3roTeRt € e e wraR including :
*  faEd WA 3 e S *  Recognition of gain on sale,
and
*  yfaenfa fedl & qoars & fog *  Key assumption for valuing
PLCE] tga‘%rrmrq“ Aol e retained interests, including
AR R ’ S any significant changes
T % = : since the last reporting
Tftad der T gfedHi o guE period and the impact of
e & such changes.
c) Names of ECAls used for
) FffeRT & faT gE & T securitisations and the types
gwqam%qmaﬁtyﬁaﬂ%wm of securitisation exposure
St & R g o yels for éthiCh each agency is
used.
TS 1 g R T e |
Quantitative Disclosures
FHRATHS Tt d) the total outstanding Nil
. A exposures securitised by
¥) % 3R gfefasd S Sifem the bank and subject to
T o ST Aot THash securitisation framework by
& YAl % TR el THRT exposure type.
2 |
{ 135 |
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For exposures securitised
by the Bank and subject to
thesecuritisation framework.

Amount of impaired/past
due assets securitised; and

Losses recognised by the
Bank during the current
period broken down by
exposure type

Aggregate amount of
securitisation exposures
retained or purchased
broken down by exposure

type

Aggregate amount of
securitisation exposures
retained or purchased
broken down into a
meaningful number of risk
weight bands. Exposures
that have been deducted
entirely from Tier 1 capital,
credit enhancing 1/Os
deducted from Total Capital,
and other exposures
deducted from total capital
should be disclosed
separately by type of
underlying exposure type.

Summary of securitisation
activity presenting a
comparative position for two
years, as a part of the Notes
on Accounts to the balance
sheet

Total number and book
value of loan assets
securitised - by type of
underlying assets

Sale consideration received
for the securitised assets
and gain/loss on sale on
account of securitisation;
and

Form and quantum
(outstanding value) of
services provided by way of

credit enhancement,
liquidity support, post
securitisation asset

servicing, etc
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Table DF - 8

Market Risk in Trading Book:
Qualitative disclosure:
Market Risk:

Market Risk is defined as the possibility of loss to a
bank in balance sheet position caused by changes/
movements in market variables such as interest rate,
foreign currency exchange rate, equity prices and
commodity prices. Bank’s exposure to market risk
arises from domestic investments (interest related
instruments and equities) in trading book (Both AFS
and HFT categories), the Foreign Exchange positions
(including open position, if any, in precious metals)
and trading related derivatives. The objective of the
market risk management is to minimize the impact
of losses on earnings and equity capital arising from
market risk.

Policies for management of market risk:

The bank has put in place Board approved Market
Risk Management Policy and Asset Liability
Management (ALM) policy for effective management
of market risk in the bank. Other policies which
also deal with market risk management are Funds
Management and Investment Policy, Derivative Policy,
Risk Management Policy for forex operations, and
Stress testing policy. The market risk management
policy lays down well defined organization structure
for market risk management functions and processes
whereby the market risks carried by the bank are
identified, measured, monitored and controlled within
the ALM framework, consistent with the Bank’s risk
tolerance. The policies set various risk limits for
effective management of market risk and ensuring
that the operations are in line with Bank’s expectation
of return to market risk through proper Asset Liability
Management. The policies also deal with the
reporting framework for effective monitoring of market
risk.

The ALM policy specifically deals with liquidity risk
management and interest rate risk management
framework. As envisaged in the policy, liquidity risk
is managed through GAP analysis based on residual
maturity/behavioral pattern of assets and liabilities
on daily basis based on best available information
data coverage as prescribed by RBI. The bank has
put in place mechanism of short-term dynamic liquidity
management and contingent funding plan.
Prudential (tolerance) limits are prescribed for different
residual maturity time buckets for efficient asset
liability management. Liquidity profile of the bank is
evaluated through various liquidity ratios. The bank
has also drawn various contingent measures to deal
with any kind of stress on liquidity position. Bank
ensures adequate liquidity management by Domestic
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T 4382.47 394.42
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Treasury through systematic and stable funds
planning.

Interest rate risk is managed through use of GAP
analysis of rate sensitive assets and liabilities and
monitored through prudential (tolerance) limits
prescribed. The bank estimates earnings at risk and
modified duration gap periodically for assessing the
impact on Net Interest Income and Economic Value
of Equity with a view to optimize shareholder value.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
/ Board monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed
by the Bank and determines the strategy in the light
of the market conditions (current and expected) as
articulated in the ALM policy. The mid-office of
Treasury monitors adherence to the prudential limits
on a continuous basis.

Quantitative Disclosures:

In line with the RBI’'s guidelines, the Bank has
computed capital for market risk as per Standardised
Duration Approach of Basel-Il framework for
maintaining capital. The capital requirement for
market risk as on 31.3.2010 in trading book of the
bank is as under:

(Rs. In crores)

Type of Risk Weighted Capital
Market Risk Asset (Notional)  requirement
Interest Rate Risk 2622.42 236.02
Equity Position Risk 1662.01 149.58
Foreign Exchange Risk 98.04 8.82
TOTAL 4382.47 394.42

Table DF - 9
Operational Risk:
Qualitative disclosures:

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. Operational risk
includes legal risk but excludes strategic and
reputation risk.

Policies on Management of Operational risk:

The bank has framed operational risk management
policy duly approved by the Board. Other policies
adopted by the Board which deal with management
of operational risk are (a) information systems
security policy (b) forex risk management policy (c)
Policy document on know your customer (KYC) and
Anti-Money Laundering (AML) procedures (d) IT
Business continuity and disaster recovery plan (IT_BC-
DRP) (e) compliance policy and (f) policy on
outsourcing of Financial Services.
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The operational risk management policy adopted by
the Bank outlines organization structure and detail
processes for management of operational risk. The
basic objective of the policy is to closely integrate
operational risk management processes of the bank
by clearly assigning roles for effectively identifying
assessing, monitoring and controlling or mitigating
operational risk and by timely reporting of operational
risk exposures including material operational losses.
Operational risk in the bank are managed through
comprehensive and well-articulated internal control
framework.

The Bank has got embodied in its Book of Instructions
well-defined systems and procedures for various
operations. The bank has issued detailed guidelines
for handling computerized operations and a system
of EDP audit is in place to ensure adherence to the
laid down systems and procedures. The Bank has
clear guidelines as to the role functions of various
levels of employees. A training system with provision for
giving specialized training in credit /forex and other
functional area is in place. Conduct rules and service
regulations for all the employees are also in place.

Various internal and external audit systems are in
place to ensure that laid down systems and
procedures are followed and timely actions are
initiated for rectifying the deficiencies.

The Bank has put in place compliance policy duly
approved by Board. In terms of the RBI guidelines
on compliance functions in banks the bank has
established separate “Compliance Department” in
C.O. independent of business group. Compliance
officers are designated in each branch /department/
office to monitor the level of compliance. The
methodologies and system have been devised and
put in place for assessment of level of compliance.
Reporting systems on compliance function have been
devised and put in place.

In line with the final guidelines issued by RBI our
bank is adopting the Basic Indicator Approach for
computing capital for operational risk. As per the
guidelines the banks must hold capital for operational
risk equal to the average over the previous three
years of 15% of positive annual gross income as
defined by RBI.

Quantitative disclosures

In line with final guidelines issued by RBI, our Bank
has adopted the Basic Indicator Approach for
computing capital for Operational Risk. As per the
guidelines, the capital for Operational Risk is equal
to the average over the previous three years of 15%
of positive annual Gross Income as defined by RBI.
As per such estimate, the capital requirement for
Operational Risk as on 31.03.2010 is Rs. 511.42
crores.
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Table DF -10
Interest rate risk on the Banking Book:
Qualitative disclosures:

Interest rate risk is the risk where changes in the
market interest rates might affect a bank’s financial
condition. Changes in interest rates may affect both
the current earnings (earnings perspective) as also
the net worth of the Bank (economic value
perspective). The risk from earnings perspective can
be measured as impact on the Net Interest Income
(NI) or Net Interest Margin. Similarly the risk from
economic value perspective can be measured as
drop in Economic Value of Equity.

The bank identifies the risks associated with the
changing interest rates on its on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet exposures in the banking book from
a short term (Earnings perspective) and long term
Economic Value Perspective. The impact on income
(Earnings Perspective) is measured through use of
GAP analysis by applying notional rate shock upto
100bps as prescribed in the bank’s ALM Policy.
Prudential limits have been prescribed for such
impacts as a percentage of NIl of the bank and the
same is monitored periodically. For the calculation
of impacts on earnings, the Traditional Gap is taken
from the Rate sensitivity statement and based on
the remaining period from the mid point of a particular
bucket the impact for change in interest rate upto
100 bps is arrived at. The same is reported to Board
and ALCO periodically along with the rate sensitivity
statement. The limits are fixed on the basis of
previous year’s NII.

The bank has adopted traditional gap analysis
combined with duration gap analysis for assessing
the impact (as a percentage) on the Economic Value
of Equity (Economic Value Perspective) by applying
a notional interest rate shock of 200 bps. For the
purpose a limit of (+/-) 1% for modified duration
gap is prescribed in the Bank’s ALM policy and the
position is monitored periodically. The bank
calculates Modified Duration Gap and the impact on
Economic Value of Equity. Assets excluding
investment and liabilities are grouped as per rate
sensitivity statement and bucket-wise modified
duration is computed for these groups of Assets and
Liabilities using common maturity, coupon and yield
parameters. For investment portfolio the modified
duration of individual items are computed and taken.
The DGAP is calculated by the Bank once a month
and is reported to ALCO.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
/ Board monitors adherence to the prudential limits
fixed by the bank and determines the strategy in
the light of market conditions (current and expected)
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Quantitative Disclosures

The impact of changes of Net Interest Income (NII)
and Economic Value of Equity (EVE) calculated as
on 31.03.2010 by applying notional interest rate
shocks as discussed above are as under

(5. FUE H) (Rs in crores)
=S ® A AR & I S | 3 (3TIR) Change in ALM Policy Earning at Risk (EaR)
e e i s 26.03.2010 Interest Rate Limit for EaR 26/03/2010

1 ¢ = 5 avf qeh Up to Up to
1 year 5 years
0.25% Mt 135.30 0.25% change  135.30
(frzet o & T (5% of NIl of
3 37 & 5%) 491 13.50 previous year) 491 13.50
0.50% dfad  270.60 0.50% change  270.60
(fredt af & @ (10% of NIl of
33 37 & 10%) 9.81 27.01 previous year) 9.81 27.01
0.75% dfad=  405.90 0.75% change  405.90
iz af & w (15% of NII of
IME 3 & 15%) 14.72 40.51 previous year) 14.72 40.51
1.00% uftada  405.90 1.00% change  405.90
(frzat adf & T (15% of NIl of
e 3B & 15%) 19.62 54.02 previous year) 19.62 54.02
et ol He 26.03.2010 ECONOMIC VALUE OF EQUITY 26/3/2010
i SR A (Sefed) 1.00% MODIFIED DURATION GAP (DGAP) 1.00%
o 3 eyt (T 9.63% MODIFIED DURATION OF EQUITY (MDE) 9.63%
. FOR A 200 BPS RATE SHOCK THE DROP
200 sfdiey =X gud & foe et I T 19.26% IN EQUITY VALUE 19.26%
[ .
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A= gieTeht Hi A AUDITORS’ REPORT
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1.

4.

The President of India

g9 3 20T et & & 31 7= 2010 9%
e o1, 39 arqay # fu T 31 7 2010
&1 T Y & A1 7 g @I A Tt are faewo
H dw-aden #t 8, Ed gar g aa-adeE 20
SETE A 4] g FHEtaa B feEE 3 i =
AG-Thes! g - wdif 6 fHesh s qfed
1705 wmrarsi &t et b 81 89 R adn
I AG-ThEh g AE-uiferd st & =an
d% 7 reta Red 3% g0 S e & ey
& fobar &1 qo-17 ST oy 7 B @il # af-crEr
wiiferd 305 vRaTe / i @ uTe faewr gitaferd
g1 3 o iR vRarst g AhE & 1.35%,
SR & 4.99% , =S 3 & 2.19% A = FF
& 2.35% 1 HARE B | 7 fachta fgawon &t
et o gae W 8| 379 o T & R
W facty el & g9y § ot 1 o & gt
e 21

TR ST A udten el aRa § " @i
G el AT o STTHR (61 § | 37 ARl % et
T STHET 3 S 2 f 37 T T el A
T UHR IR S e % gn gfed &9 9
T IR § e @ 9 % fawda faawh § fawa-
a5 Galeft HE Mo TR A & T 2 | A wher
& st fachta faeret 7 femrd 7 uferel 3 gae
Ft 2 aral & g A 2 T W & e & an
R S H S 2 | A e o sfafd gae-aa g
T @l fagTal a1 IHE SThel @l g a9
T5d 6 T Ty fahte faawor @ qeie off fan
ST 2 | g favary 7 6 g an when w1 g
A & forg 3fea 3eR 2|

TA-T 31 -1 Wi Shebrdt fafram sifafam
1949 Ft Feta IR & FAw: T T T o F
IR U T

friferiiad &t 37T & TN fhar ST &:

1. T & AFEE & Hay 7 ILieyge off aee
SFHRRETH A% a1 g I T TT @Rt
HHRUE - 9 o |1 FEeaqul crarehur fife §.2.2,
TS 2.5 (S -17) oot T @ 7

1.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet
of Indian Overseas Bank as at 31% March
2010, the Profit and Loss Account and Cash
Flows Statement of the Bank for the year
ended 31 March 2010 annexed thereto in
which are incorporated the returns of 20
branches and 41 Regional Offices audited
by us and 1705 branches including 6
Overseas Branches audited by other auditors.
The branches audited by us and those
audited by other auditors have been selected
by the Bank in accordance with the guidelines
issued by Reserve Bank of India. Also
incorporated in the Balance Sheet and Profit
& Loss Account are the returns from 305
branches / centres which have not been
subjected to audit. These unaudited branches
account for 1.35 % of advances, 4.99 % of
deposits, 2.19% of interest income and 2.35%
of interest expenses. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s
Management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
the auditing standards generally accepted
in India. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material mis-
statements. An audit includes examination on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosure in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by the management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statements
presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss
Account have been drawn up in Forms ‘A’
and “B” respectively of the Third Schedule
to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Reference is invited to

i)  Significant Accounting Policy No.2.2 and
2.5 (Schedule — 17) regarding revenue
recognition which are not in conformity
with Accounting Standard - 9 issued by
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the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

i) Note No.3.2 in Notes on Accounts
(Schedule — 18) regarding recoverablility
of claims pending and / or yet to be
lodged with Guarantee Institutions.

The impact of the items stated herein
above on the Profit & Loss Account,
Balance Sheet, Capital Adequacy Ratio
and business ratios as stated in Notes
on Accounts (Schedule-18) is not
ascertainable.

The additional disclosures made in Note
No.4.2, 5, 6,7, 8.7 and 10.1 to the Notes on
Accounts (Schedule 18) with regard to
information in respect of Restructured
Accounts, Business Ratios, Maturity Pattern
of Assets and Liabilities, Exposure to
Sensitive Sectors, Unsecured Advances and
Concentration of Deposits, Advances,
Exposures and NPAs respectively are based
on the records / information as certified by
the Bank and relied upon by us.

As required by the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act
1970 and subject to

i) the limitation of the audit indicated in
Paragraph 1 above, and the limitation
of disclosure required therein

i) our observations in Paragraph 4 & 5
above, and

/i) Note No. 171 in Notes on Accounts
(Schedule 18) regarding the write off of
a sum of Rs 82.17 Crores being one
third of the deficit arising on the takeover
of the specific assets and liabilities of a
bank — as permitted by Reserve Bank of
India — as against writing off the entire
deficit of Rs 246.52 Crores as Is the
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

we report as under :

a) In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the

a7 g 3 79 T S 9Ra § e explanations given to us and as shown
e TR gl % SEY SId 9% by the books of the Bank maintained in
S . accordance with generally accepted
e A =zt ™ RS Accounting Principles in India.
‘ ‘
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i) The Balance Sheet is a full and fair

. Shae Balance Sheet containing the
& ew W & H necessary particulars, and is properly
T fo5o T @ % ' A% & 31 W drawn up so as to exhibit a true and
2010 F fgfd & THR 39 HHHS H fair view of the affairs of the Bank as
& i arafs o TeRfT A E at 31% March 2010.
.. i) The Profit and Loss Account shows
. o 3 @i @ 31 7 2010 F Fae o a true balance of Profit for the year
& A F T N i @ S ended 31t March 2010 and
iil. 7ot e fagof, 31 9, 20106 g i) The Cash Flows Statement gives a true
; ' . : and fair view of the cash flow for the
af & ?‘1 warE F W T fem year ended 31t March 2010.
ENUGIE
b) We have obtained all the information and
@) g U A ST ﬁ;ﬁmmaggﬁw explanations, which to the best of our
5 5 knowledge and belief were necessary for
el q—ﬁgﬂ %@%‘r‘!ﬂ Rl A the purpose of our audit and have found
52 € 3t 3% HarvsHs T g | the same to be satisfactory.
M) dF & S AR gl SHed § o 8, 9 9% c) The transactions of the Bank, which have
AR sl : come to our notice have been within the
# & % # el powers of the Bank.
) A% % FrEreE AR e § g e, d) The returns received from the offices and
AN SE-den & yASH o fore gt ureft branches of the Bank have been found
T & adequate for the purpose of our audit.
FA AT SAAWESSF.  Fa 99 Qus I Pl b e QU8 Her For Om Agarwal & Co For Varma & Varma For PKF Sridhar &
T GBI T BRI T BRI Santhanam
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
.4 .G & & AR
;WW ;@i ) ;@m ) (KC.GUPTA) (KMSUKUMARAN) (TVBALASUBRAMANIAN)
. . . Partner Partner Partner
072956 015707 5027251 MMNo. 072936 MNo 015707 MNo027251
TRREHO007IH TR, 00453200 TR 003990% FRN 000971C FRN 0045325 FRN 0039905
Pt TR QU T . TR TE S & P firct AT 0E % .
For Bhaskaran & Ramesh ~ For M Bhaskara Rao & Co  For Mittal Gupta & Co
A AR A R A G Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(3.3r) (. 9.T7) (.7t (RANGHARAJAN) (KRRATNAM) (BLGUPTA)
TR TRER R Partner Partner Partner
qH024327 91002316 1073794 MNo.024327 M. No.002316 MNo.0737%4
THRIRTE 00046288 THRIRE 0004597 THREA001874% FRN 0004625 FRN 0004595 FRN 001874C
LS CiE) Place: Chennai
| .
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Indian Overseas Bank
Central Office : 763, Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 002

FORM ‘B’
FORM OF PROXY

See Sub-Regulation (iii) of regulation 70
(TO BE FILLED IN AND SIGNED BY THE SHAREHOLDER)

Regd. Folio

No.

(If not

Dematerialised)

D P Id No.

Cl. Id No.
I/WE ettt ettt et b ettt nb ettt resident
0] OO U P PR OPRUPSOP in the
ISTIICE OF ..ttt et sttt et b et sbe ettt ebe et in the
State Of ..oeeeeieeeieee e , being a shareholder / shareholders of Indian
Overseas Bank, hereby appoint Shri/Smt ...........cccoociiiiiiiiiiiieiieieeeee e resident of
................................................................... in the district of .........ccccoeciiiiiiiiiiiiiieiceeee. In the
State Of ..oveeieieeeee as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my / our behalf at

the 10™ Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Indian Overseas Bank to be held on Tuesday, 20
July 2010 at Narada Gana Sabha, (Sathguru Gnanananda Hall) 314 TTk Road, Chennai - 600 018 and
at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ......ccccoevvieiiiiiieiene dayof....cccccoviennnn. 2010.
e , .
(Signature of the Proxy) 195?3;;; o
Name oo Revenue
AdAress ....ooceveviieniineee Stamp
......................................... Signature of the first named/sole holder
ATTENDANCE SLIP - CUM - ENTRY PASS
(Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall)
Name and address of the shareholder ..............coooiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Noof'sharesheld : .......cccooiiiiiiiiiiiee Regd FOliIoONO : ..o,
If not dematerialised)
DP ID NO: oottt Client Id NO: .ooovieiiiiiieccee
(If dematerialised)

I hereby record my presence at the 10th Annual General Meeting of the Bank held on 20™ July 2010 at
10.00 A.M. at Narada Gana Sabha, (Sathguru Gnanananda Hall) 314, TTK Road, Chennai - 600 018
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B : 044 - 28193617/3618, Therd : 044-28193619
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G O & Jed 814 W, AN A B faehed foran 7o gt al o1 foreft ganm it oS o Attt
& SiHe @ | WA & ST

TSI o 7o | STHa TRad g+ T Fffd THUATY 3T JTed et
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INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK

DEPOSITORY SERVICES
New No.47 (Old No.22), Halls Road,
Egmore, Chennai 600 008
Phone : 044-28193617/3618 Fax : 044-28193619

KEEPYOUR SHARES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM (ELECTRONIC FORM)

WHY TO DEMAT YOUR SHARES

% Noloss, theft or damage to the shares as they are in electronic form
% Transfer of Shares without any delay and stamp duty

% Dividend/Interest can be credited to the bank account directly

% Bonus/Rights shares get credited to your demat account directly

% Change of Address/Bank particulars are communicated to all companies automatically if the
change is effected in the demat account

% Facility available to get SMS alert for each debit/ credit of shares in the demat account

% Opting for Nomination ensures hassle-free transfer of shares to the demat account of Nominee
in the event of death of account holder

% Receive daily SMS alert on favourable change in the value of portfolio
% Youcan view your account through internet (IDeAS) free of charge

% Receive Monthly / Quarterly statement of Transactions / Holdings

POINTS TO BE NOTED BY EXISTING DEMAT ACCOUNT HOLDERS :

% Ensure to submit PAN particulars of all account holders if the status of account is blocked /
suspended. There is a possibility that the shares held in such blocked account are liable
to be attached by Income-Tax Authorities

% Opt for Nomination, if not already opted

% Provide your Mobile number to get SMS alert facility FREE OF COST
% Eachclient is entitled to receive statement of transactions / holdings:
Monthly — Ifthere is atleast one transaction in the respective month
Quarterly —If there is no transaction in a quarter

% IfDividends/Interests/Refund Orders are not credited directly through ECS (wherever applicable),
please ensure that correct MICR code of the branch is available in the demat account

% Delivery Instruction Slips can now be tendered at any of the Service Centres
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From: Date :

To:

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited
Unit : INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK
‘Subramanian Building’

No.1 Club House Road,

Chennai - 600 002.

Dear Sir(s),
Ref: PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICES (ECS)

Name of First Holder (In Block Letters)
Folio No.

No. of shares

Bank A/c Type Please tick (v/) Savings Current Cash Credit
Alc Alc Alc

Bank Account Number

Name of the Bank

Branch Name
IFSC Code*
Full Address of the Bank

9-Digit Code number & Branch appearing on the
MICR cheque issued by the Bank (Please attach
Photocopy of a cheque or a blank cancelled
cheque issued by your bank relating to your above
account for verifying the accuracy of the code).

I agree to avail of the Electronic Clearing Service, as and when implemented by Indian Overseas Bank for
payment of dividend to me.

I hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayed or
not effected at all for reasons of incomplete or incorrect information, I would not hold Indian Overseas
Bank / Registrar responsible.

I further undertake to inform the Registrar / Indian Overseas Bank of any change in my Bank, Branch
and Account no.

* Obtain from your Branch (Signature of the First / Sole Shareholder)
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1. EASY TRADE FINANCE

Hassle free working capital finance and Term Loan to Traders.
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UCTS AT A GLANCE

Purpose : To meet the working capital and term loan needs

Quantum : Maximum varies from Rs. 10 lakhs to Rs. 100 lakhs.

Security : Secured by immovable property / liquid security.

Margin : 30to 50 %

Repayment : Term Loan-48 EMI / cash credit- Annual renewal.

Eligibility . Persons with Independent and reqular Income. Age not to exceed 60 years.

Purpose . Acquisition / Construction of a flat or a House.

Quantum : Upto 80% of the cost or Rs.50 lakhs whichever is less.

Margin : 20 % inclusive of cost of land.

Security : Mortgage of property to be Financed.

Processing Charge :@ 1.50% Maximum of Rs. 30,000/-.

Repayment : Maximum 20 years

Purpose . topurchase new/old car/new Two wheelers.

Quantum . New car90% of cost, Old car 75% with a maximum of Rs. 5 lakhs. Two Wheelers 90%of
costor 10 times of Monthly salary or Rs. 60000/- whichever is lower.

Security : Hypothecation of vehicles

Margin : Variesfrom 1010 25%

Repayment : Varies from 36 to 60 EMI: Old Car- 36 EMI.

Loans for Doctors.

Purpose : To set up new Hospital / Nursing Home etc.

Quantum : Maximum Loan varies from Rs. 10 lakhs to Rs. 2 crores.
Security : Equipments / Immovable property / NSC/LIC.

Margin : Varies rom 15 to 30%

Repayment : 5to 7 years.

5. I0B - AKSHAY

Loans against LIC Policies

Quantum : 90% of Surrender value of Life Polices.
Security : Assignment of LIC Policy.
Repayment ;. Maximum - 36 EMI.

6. Commercial Cash Credit Against Jewellery

e For business needs/ running a commercial activity of people engaged in business, against prime
security of Jewels.

7. Clean Loan

e Loanforsalaried employees to meet personal and domestic expenses.

e Quantum of loan - 10 times the monthly salary or Rs.5 lakhs whichever is lower for employees whose
salary is routed through us and 5 times the monthly salary for other employees.

e Quantum of loan-for LIC agents, 10 times of average monthly commission in a year with a maximum of
Rs.2lacs.

e Repayment- 60 EMI where the loan amount is based on 10 months salary / commission and 36 EMI for
others.
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8. SAHAYIKA

e Loantomeet Social Commitments like marriage etc. Applicant should be an individual in employment or
Business/ professional or self employed with regularincome.

e Quantum ofloanamountRs.5Lacs.

e RepaymentPeriod:48 EMis.

9. Pensioners' Loan Scheme

e Allpensioners to meet personal expenses.

e Repaymentoutof pension amountin 48 EMI for thosebelow 65 years and 24 EMI for above 65 years.

e Quantum of Loan : Up to 65 years of age - 10 times the monthly pension or Rs. 1.00 lac whichever is
lower. Over 65 years of age - 10 times of monthly pension or Rs. 50,000 whichever is lower.

10. 10B Fine Gold

e |OB Fine Gold - 999.9 pure Gold from PAMP, Switzerland

e Why Gold?

- Safest form of INVESTMENT

- A Perfect GIFT for all occasions

- Effective Hedge against Inflation

- A very attractive corporate gift for employees as bonus during festive season

Packed in attractive, tamper proof CERTICARDS from PAMP, Switzerland

Available in 2,4,8,20 gram coins, and 50 & 100 gram rectangular Bars.

Highly Competitive rates - Discount can be considered on case to case basis for bulk orders.
For today's rates, vist IOBONLINE or call our toll free Number 1800 4251 230

11. 10B Jeevan

Group Insurance scheme in association with LIC for all account holders of IOB
Life Cover for Rs. 1 lakh (Natural Death) and Rs. 2 lakh (Accidental Death)
Coverage for a year, renewable every year

Very Low Premium - depends on age and month of joining the scheme

Simple procedure, no medical certification required

Nomination allowed

Members of joint accounts can be covered individually

12. 10B Healthcare Plus

e Health insurance for entire family including parents, of our individual account holders at a very low
premium

e No medical examination required

e Provides hospitalization expense in case of accidents, sudden iliness, surgery, in respect of any disease

e Entry age limitis between 3 months and 65 years, coverage is available upto age of 80 years only. Age
limit for dependent children - for male upto 21 years, for female upto 25 years or till their marriage,
whichever is earlier

e Pre Hospitalization ( Period upto 30 days prior to hospitalization) and Post Hospitalization (Period upto

60 days after hospitalization) expenses canalso be reimbursed

Ambulance Charges : Rs. 1000 per policy period

Funeral Expenses -in case of death of any insured persons, funeral expenses of Rs. 1000/- will be paid

under the policy

Pre-existing diseases can also be covered after three consecutive claim free policy years

Cashless transaction through Third Party Administrator of the policy

Coverage: Rs. 50,000 to Rs. 5lakhs.

Accidental Death can be covered on payment of additional Premium

Maternity Expenses and Baby Care Expenses covered subject to terms and conditions

Tax Benefitunder Section 80D

Treatments for NRIs while in India are covered.

FOR YOUR NEEDS, PLEASE CONTACT YOUR NEAREST BRANCH

152

L= 1



	GLANCE FINAL 15.06.2010 FINAL 3.30P.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 800
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 800
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1800
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000500044004600206587686353ef901a8fc7684c976262535370673a548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200208fdb884c9ad88d2891cf62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef653ef5728684c9762537088686a5f548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200204e0a73725f979ad854c18cea7684521753706548679c300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020b370c2a4d06cd0d10020d504b9b0d1300020bc0f0020ad50c815ae30c5d0c11c0020ace0d488c9c8b85c0020c778c1c4d560002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken voor kwaliteitsafdrukken op desktopprinters en proofers. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents for quality printing on desktop printers and proofers.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




